Mayor Joe A. Smith

City Clerk Diane Whitbey

City Attorney C. Jason Carter

NORTH LITTLE ROCK

City Council Members
Ward 1 Debi Ross
Beth White
Ward 2 Linda Robinson

Maurice Taylor

Ward 3 Steve Baxter
Bruce Foutch
Ward 4 Murry Witcher
Charlie Hight

“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.
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Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations.
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in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

By A. de Tocqueville
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November 24, 2014 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Mayor Mark Stodola, City of North Little Rock letter to Mayors, Board and City
Council members re: recent letter from Pulaski County Judge Buddy Villines

pertaining to Jail Funding.

2. James Murphy, North Little Rock Fire Chief letter to Mayor Smith re: sponsoring
legislation request to purchase generators for Central Station, Station 2 and Station 7.

3. Karen Scott, Finance Director email re: FY 13 Audited Financial Statements - City of

North Little Rock and FY 13 Audited Financial Statements - NLR Utilities
Accounting Department.

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS

R-14-171 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2225 Fendley
Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures (owner:

Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

Held Convene a public hearing

R-14-172 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2800 John
Ashley Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures
(owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

Held Convene a public hearing

0-14-95  Alderman Witcher
Amending Section 7.1.3 of Chapter 2 (Animal Control) of the North Little Rock
Municipal Code regarding keeping of Fowl in the city

Read 3 times and held public hearing held 11-10-14

CONSENT AGENDA
R-14-207 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Donald B. Blakey to the North Little Rock Airport Commission

R-14-208 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jim Julian to the North Little Rock Airport Commission
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R-14-209 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Mark K. Halter to the North Little Rock Airport Commission

R-14-210 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Joyce Brewer to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-211 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Betsy Davies to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-212  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Bubba Earnhart to the North Little Rock City Beautiful
Commission

R-14-213  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Gayle Fisher to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-214 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Pat Green to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-215 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Becky Hight to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission
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R-14-216 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Susan Langley to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-217 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Julie Richards to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-218 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Debra Roberts to the North Little Rock Historic District
Commission

R-14-219 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Charles R. Hart to the North Little Rock Historic District
Commission

R-14-220 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Kristal Clark to the North Little Rock History Commission

R-14-221 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jon W. Beavers to the North Little Rock History Commission

R-14-222  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Basil Shoptaw to the North Little Rock Housing and Building
Board of Adjustment and Appeals
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R-14-223  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jackie M. Alexander to the North Little Rock Planning Commission

R-14-224  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Charley Foster to the North Little Rock Planning Commission

R-14-225 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Tom Brown to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-226 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Andy Hight to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-227 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Carl Jackson to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-228 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Steve Sparr to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-229 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Mike Abele to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals
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R-14-230 Mayor Smith
Reappointing D. L. Lindsey to the North Little Rock Residential Housing
Facilities Board

R-14-231 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Cathy McGlothin to the North Little Rock Residential Housing
Facilities Board

R-14-232  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Virginia Raum to the North Little Rock Senior Citizens
Commission

R-14-233  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Dorothy Romes to the North Little Rock Senior Citizens
Commission

R-14-234  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Clark McGlothin to the North Little Rock Waste Water Treatment
Committee

R-14-235 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned vehicles and parts as surplus; providing for auction

thereof

R-14-236 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned computer workstations as surplus; providing for
auction thereof




City Council Agenda | 8
November 24, 2014 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

R-14-237 Mayor Smith
Amending the 2014 Budget for the North Little Rock Electric Department;
appropriating additional funds for tree trimming expenses ($250,000.00 - NLRED
Cash Reserves)

R-14-238 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a right-of-way easement from
the City of North Little Rock to Central Arkansas Water

R-14-239  Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an easement from the City of
North Little Rock to Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P. to allow construction of a
Gas Pipeline

NEW BUSINESS

RESOLUTIONS

R-14-240 Mayor Smith
Approving and adopting a five (5) year Capital and Reserve Plan for the North
Little Rock Electric Department

R-14-241 Mayor Smith
Approving amounts of liens to be certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector
against certain properties as a result of grass cutting expenses and abatement of
other nuisances

Convene a public hearing
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R-14-242 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 1718 West
19th Street to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures
(owner: Terry Melton)

Convene a public hearing

ORDINANCES

0-14-103 Mayor Smith
Amending Section 2.2 of Ordinance No. 7697 (the Zoning Ordinance) to add a
definition for "Columbarium" and amend the definition for "Church or Place of

Worship" to include columbarium as an appurtenance on church property

0-14-104  Alderman Baxter
Amending Article 21 (Table of Permitted Uses) of Ordinance No. 7697 (the
Zoning Ordinance) to allow "Office, General" in certain zones

0-14-105  Alderman Baxter
Reclassifying property located along Bayou Road from C-2 to R-1 to recognize
and allow residential homes by amending Ordinance No. 7697 (applicant: Eric
Holloway)

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it

to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened; speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic
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Respectfully submitted,

Diane Whitbey, CAMC / MMC
City Clerk and Collector

Words to live by
We have so much, yet many Americans feel dissatisfied.

Somehow the full table, symbol of abundance to the pilgrims, is not enough.

We yearn for something far beyond the material satisfaction.
Find your place in history this Thanksgiving by stretching beyond your table.

Celebrate your survival by offering peace and sharing with your neighbors.
Make the shift from an illogical feeling of lack to the recognition of abundance.
Invite the Spirit to your feast, and prepare to feed the world.
Jennifer James

City Offices will be closed, Thursday, November 27, 2014, and
Friday, November 28, 2014in observance of Thanksgiving.
Garbage routes will run one-day delayed the remainder of the week
(Thursday's pickup will be Friday and Friday's pickup will be Saturday).

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.

To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda and look for the Adobe PDF Agenda file.
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City of Little Rock
A . Mark Stodola City Hall, Room 203
Mayor 500 W. Markham

& . Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1427
L N Phone: (501) 371-4510
Fax: (501) 371-4498
www.littlerock.org

November 14, 2014
Dear Mayors, Board and City Council Members,

I am not sure Judge Buddy Villines’ most recent letter to the cities on the jail funding issue needs
a response, but so there is no misunderstanding, I would like to make the following observations
mentioned below. I regret that Judge Villines® feels we have gotten at odds with each other over
the jail funding issue, as we have been friends for many years and will remain so. Our positions
paralleled each other, however, with a different means to the same end. This response will also
lay out my ultimate recommendation to the Little Rock City Board of Directors.

1. First, let me say I have always been supportive of the concept that cities, while not
statutorily obligated to financially contribute to the county’s obligation to operate a jail,
should work in partnership and cooperatively with the county. This would include help
with funding the jail where necessary. In fact, it is what all the cities in the county have
been doing through contract for the past 20 years.

But it should be noted, it is a fundamental “County” obligation and responsibility to
maintain a jail. Municipal law enforcement “arrests” and County law enforcement
“confines.” Arkansas law requires that the county accept the prisoners that local police
officers arrest. This obligation is not conditioned on “if the cities pay a per diem, or
whether other agreements have been reached.” The law is very clear on this matter and
then Attorney General Mike Beebe’s opinion further confirms (also see A.C.A. § 312-41-
503 (a) (b)). That said, I believe several county officials have been led to believe
otherwise over the years. The initial agreement proposed by Judge Villines would have
turned this legal responsibility “on its head” by providing that if the city failed to
appropriate funds, the county would no longer be obligated to house prisoners arrested by
municipal police officers (see Section 8 of the Agreement attached to June 23, 2014
letter).

Chronologically, after receiving the county’s proposed 10-year contract, the cities offered
to extend the existing agreement for one year on the belief that an increased per diem for
holding state prisioners would be sought and approved during the upcoming legislative
session. (Governor-elect Asa Hutchinson as well as several legislators have expressed
their support for an increase). This was summarily rejected by the County Judge.

Next, we drafted an agreement which acknowledged the inequity of the existing state per
diem rates; and specified equal treatment in the housing of misdemeant arrestees between





municipal jurisdictions on a first-come first-serve basis. This was done as a way to ensure
fairness without favoritism among the cities. Importantly, the agreement included the 5%
increase requested, it provided for a 5-year agreement instead of 10 years; capped the CPI
to no greater than 3%, and “required” renegotiation among the parties if a “material”
increase in the per diem rate was passed by the General Assembly or if any change in
Arkansas law was made. If the parties couldn’t agree on what was “material,” it provided
for a standard process to determine such. These additional provisions certainly did not
“glter or change the public policy” that has been in place for 20 years between cities as
the Judge suggests. Again, this agreement was also rejected.

Subsequently, I suggested to the County Judge that we enter into a one-year agreement
with possible extensions, with the 5% increase and the CPI adjustment so that both the
counties and the cities could make the case for a per diem increase to the state legislature
and to also give the new County Judge an opportunity to prepare his own budget
priorities with input and approval from the Quorum Court. Again, this was rejected
without discussion.

On July 9, 2014, the County Judge sent a final draft indicating it was his “final” proposal
(see attachment). The term was set at 5 years; included the CPI cap; and provided that if
there was a significant increase in jail revenue the parties “may” agree to enter into
negotiations about payment amounts. At this time, some of the cities who benefited from
the existing internal inequities signed the agreement, while Little Rock and Jacksonville
abstained.

It should be noted that while the existing contract ended in August of this year, all of the
cities in the County, including Little Rock, have paid in good faith jail fees to the county
based on the previous contract through the end of the year. Thus, had the County not
insisted on the cities signing by August, I believe we could have met together to try and
iron out the obvious payment inequities which exist. This is a concern which Mayor Gary
Fletcher has voiced directly to the Quorum Court to no avail. By insisting on a 5-year
agreement, the County is mandating that this inequity continue.

It should also be noted that the County’s agreement fails to address how other smaller
cities and agencies should pay for the people they arrest that are housed in the jail;
agencies such as the UAMS Police, UALR Police, Capital Police, State Police, Cammack
Village, etc. Based on my most recent annual numbers, this accounted for 2,216
confinements, nearly as many as Sherwood processed through the jail in 2013 and more
than both Jacksonville and Maumelle. This inequity could have also been addressed by
the end of the year had we been given a chance. This was brought to the County’s
attention and ignored.

. As to the other issues addressed in Judge Villines’ letter, I must confess that it galls me
that the county took an average of 88 federal prisoners everyday last year for financial
reasons instead of locking up the prisoners our police officers are arresting that should be
in jail. The county may not have any control over the holding of state prisoners, but
clearly, they do have the ability to say no to the holding of federal prisoners. The county





has blatantly violated the contract provisions of the previous agreement for years; as well
as state law that requires the County give preference to taking prisoners arrested by the
municipalities. Prisoners of the U.S. Government can only be accepted if space and
staffing are available (see A.C.A. 12-41-503 (g)).

. I appreciate the intention of the County in thinking that by leasing 250 vacant jail beds to
the state that it would relieve jail overcrowding; apparently, it has had minimal effect,
since, as the Judge notes, the jail has been closed for 35 days since the agreement was
made. I thought leasing it to the state for $1 dollar was a bad deal at the time and
apparently so does Judge Villines in that he now suggests it should not be renewed.

I have not suggested that the County use its reserve funds (one-time money) for
operations, nor have I heard any other mayor suggest this. Both Judge Villines and I
agree, this is not the solution.

The bottom line is this. The County jail has been closed to accepting prisoners sentenced
to the jail, or suspects who should be in jail, 33% of the time this year. It is inevitably
making a mockery of the judicial branch of government, one of the three pillars of our
democracy. Not only do flagrant misdemeant law breakers never go to jail, (ask Judge
Vic Fleming); Judge Alice Lightle now advises that on several occasions felony burglars
are given recognizance bonds and advised to show up on their own for arraignment. How
likely is that to happen? You know the answer.

The County has basically given us a take-it-or-leave-it ultimatum which is internally
unfair and doesn’t fundamentally address the problem mentioned above. I would suggest
that the County look at its own budget priorities to see whether they can allocate an
additional $2 million dollars to the jail, which is the approximate amount they receive for
holding federal prisoners annually. This would at least free up the 88 beds taken by the
feds every day. It would also give our district judges the relief they need and make our
cities safer.

As for options:

The County proposes we sign the attached agreement as outlined above or pay a per diem
daily rate which frontloads the first day of confinement at $244.50. Every day thereafter,
the daily per prisoner cost is $43.52. Based on the County’s calculation of the number of
prisoners held, based on LRPD arrests last year, our cost would increase from $1,766,263
to $2,940,671 (see attachments). This is to be contrasted with the 5%, 5-year contract the
county proposes which would increase our payment under contract by $88,000 to
$1,854,576. It should also be noted that pursuant to ACT 209 a County jail fine is also
levied and collected by our LR District judges from people arrested and prosecuted in our
courts. The additional amount collected was $446,819.00 for a grand total paid by the
city to the County of $2,213,081.96.

While several legal minds disagree with the frontloading calculation, as well as the daily
rate, or whether the city is even legally obligated to pay anything, the only way to find





out is to take the risk. Ultimately, a court would have to make the decision which would
likely be appealed to the state Supreme Court.

On balance, given our tight budget, I am not sure it is worth taking the risk. (I should note
that the Arkansas Municipal League is handling a case out of Helena-West Helena that
should ultimately give us a court decision, but it will not be decided by the time we have
to make a decision and probably will not have an impact on us if we are in a 5-year
contract).

If we choose not to sign the contract, we could:

1) Pay the county’s daily rate;

2) Pay a daily rate which we think is more appropriate. (Based on my calculations, this
would be approximately what we are currently paying).

3) Not pay anything based on the theory that this is the County’s statutory obligation.

In the event of either option 2 or 3, the County would likely have to sue the City to try and
collect what they think is appropriate. The Judge also now says they will have to close 100 beds
unless we sign the contract or pay the frontloaded daily rate.

It should be noted that cities and counties are all over the map on this issue. Some cities don’t
pay anything at all, some pay by custom and some by written agreement.

I must confess [ am disappointed with the take-it-or-leave-it approach offered, when other
reasonable options which give the County the same amount of money were suggested. But, let
me reiterate what [ have said publicly many times before, I think it is bad public policy for the
cities and County to get into a lawsuit over the jail. Our citizens want us to do everything we can
to keep them safe.

Thus my reluctant recommendation is that we pay the additional $88,000 and hope the new
administration will be fair with the cities should an increase in the per diem prisoner rate be
provided during the 5-year period of the proposed agreement.

I Sl

Mark Stodola
Mayor

ce: Bruce Moore, City Manager
Tom Carpenter, City Attorney
Judge Vic Fleming
Judge Alice Lightle
Judge Mark Leverett
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT





WILCOX & BIVINGS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
4485 Tench Road, Suite 1320
Suwanee, GA 30024
Phone: 770-904-0419
Fax: 770-904-5299

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

MANGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department and the Utilities Accounting
Department, which is a major fund and represents 100% of the assets, net position, revenues and expenses of
the aggregate business-type activities and the financial statements of the North Little Rock Waste Water
Utility, which represent 86%o, 81%b, 72% and 69%b of the assets, net position, revenues and expenses of the
aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included
for such entities, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial
statements of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department and the Utilities Accounting Department were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.





Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

OPINIONS

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas, as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash
flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2014, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

OTHER MATTERS

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, the schedule of employer contributions on page 53 and the
schedule of funding progress on page 54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
compromise the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
supplementary information which consists of the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The combining nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
nonmajor financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.





Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS AND OMB CIRCULAR A-133

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2014, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

In accordance with U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2014, on our consideration of
the City’s internal control over compliance and on our tests of its compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ major federal programs. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations in considering the City’s internal control over compliance in
relation to its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas’ major federal programs.

Witeos & B/aﬂ% PC

October 31, 2014
Suwanee, Georgia
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Management of the City of North Little Rock (the “City”) provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
This narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities is for the year ended December 31, 2013.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements, which follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The total assets of the City exceeded its total liabilities as of December 31, 2013 by $188,322,578 (presented

as “net position”). Of this amount $25,590,576 was reported as “unrestricted net position” and may be used to
meet the government’s on-going obligations to citizens and creditors.

g

% The City’s total net position increased by $3,425,095 in 2013. Net position of governmental activities
increased by $438,860. Net position of business-type activities increased $2,986,235.

-

o,
0

% As of December 31, 2013 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$28,705,767, a decrease of $156,476 from 2012. Approximately 38.53% of this amount, $11,062,416,
is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

o,
Q

% As of December 31, 2013, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $11,994,799, or
19.74% of total General Fund expenditures.

X3

o

As of December 31, 2013, the net position of the proprietary funds totaled $99,306,378. Net position
increased by $2,986,235 during the year ended December 31, 2013.

X3

¢

As of December 31, 2013, net position of fiduciary funds was $43,632,316. There was an increase of
$3,826,524 in the total fiduciary net position held in trust for the year ended December 31, 2013.

% The City’s component units reported net position of $66,300,527 as of December 31, 2013. This was
an increase of $1,544,185 when compared to December 31, 2012.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements,
which consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods, such as uncollected property taxes
and earned but unused compensated absences.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Government-wide Financial Statements - continued

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (“governmental activities”) from functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (“business-type activities”). The
governmental activities of the City include general government (financial and administration), public safety,
public works, community development, street, and parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the
City include the City’s Electric Department.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of North Little Rock (known as the primary
government) but also legally separate component units. These consist of the North Little Rock Waste Water
Utility, the William F. Laman Public Library, the North Little Rock Airport Commission and the North Little Rock
Advertising and Promotion Commission. Financial information for the component units are reported separately
from the financial information presented for the primary government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this reporting package.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City can be divided into three categories - governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources, as well as
on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City maintains 24 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the General Fund, which is considered to be major fund. Data for the other 23 governmental funds
is combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13-16 of this reporting package. A budget to
actual comparison for the General Fund can be found on page 17-18 of this reporting package.

Proprietary Fund

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds and internal service funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its electric operations. Internal service funds are
an accounting convention used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among a City’s various functions.
The City uses an internal service fund to account for its Utilities Accounting Department (the “UAD”). The UAD
primarily benefits the Electric Department and is therefore included in the business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages
19-21 of this reporting package.






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Fiduciary Fund

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are
not available to support the City’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. The City has one fiduciary fund, the Non-Uniformed Employees Retirement Fund.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-23 of this reporting package.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on
pages 26-52 of this reporting package.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also includes certain required
supplementary information and additional financial schedules. These can be found on pages 53-63 of this
reporting package.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following table looks at the City as a whole and provides a summary of its net position for 2013 compared
to 2012:

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK ARKANSAS’ NET POSITION

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Current and other assets
Deferred outflows of
resources

$ 39,452,616 $ 39,672,246 $ 55,333,501 $ 50,772,491 $ 94,786,117 $ 90,444,737

3,313,567 1,970,203 3,313,567 1,970,203

Capital assets

Total assets

66,043,452

68,245,766

105.496.068

107.918.012

121.851.450

180.498.518

126.181.366

178.924.060

187,894,902

285,994,586

194,427,132

286.842.072

Long-term liabilities 11,392,326 12,158,413 72,716,760 70,154,848 84,109,086 82,313,261
Other liabilities 5,526,402 6.743,399 11.461.615 9.462.834 16,988.017 16,206,233
Total liabilities 16,918,728 18,901,812 84,178,375 79.617.682 101,097,103 98.519.494
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets 59,083,476 59,166,958 79,570,017 85,491,569 138,653,493 144,658,527
Restricted 519,375 2,328,557 19,141,121 15,744,918 19,660,496 18,073,475
Unrestricted 28,974,489 27,520,685 (__2.390,995) (__1.930.109) 26,583,494 25,590,576

Total net position $_88,577.340 $ _89,016,200 $ _96,320,143 $ 99,306,378 $ 184,897,483 $ 188,322,578
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position. In
the case of the City’s, assets exceeded liabilities by $188,322,578 as of December 31, 2013. The City’s net
position increased by $3,425,095 during 2013. The largest portion of the City’s net position, $144,658,527
reflects its investments in capital assets (such as land, buildings and improvements, furniture, machinery and
equipment, computer equipment, vehicles, utility systems and infrastructure); less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $18,073,475 represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of $25,590,576 may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. As of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for
the government as a whole, as well as for its governmental and business-type activities, with the exception of
business-type activities negative balance of $1,930,109 as of December 31, 2013.

Analysis of the City’s Operations

The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $438,860 for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and increased net position by $11,138,331 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $2,986,235 for the year ended December 31, 2013
and increased the net position by $2,370,729 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS’ CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 8,230,215 $ 8,410,979 $ 94,294,219 $ 95,782,990 $ 102,524,434 $ 104,193,969

Operating grants and

contributions 2,210,404 835,650 - - 2,210,404 835,650

Capital grants 7,829,373 3,236,971 - - 7,829,373 3,236,971
General revenues:

Taxes 49,745,502 51,290,667 - - 49,745,502 51,290,667

Franchise fees 2,738,721 3,051,992 - - 2,738,721 3,051,992

Investment income 61,029 51,789 500,750 95,118 561,779 146,907

Miscellaneous 1,095,215 1,733,171 1,098,130 2,351,198 2,193,345 4,084,369
Total revenues 71,910,459 68,611,219 95,893.099 98,229,306 167.,803.558 166,840,525
Expenses:

General government 20,646,378 28,169,440 - - 20,646,378 28,169,440

Public safety 35,650,056 34,598,547 - - 35,650,056 34,598,547

Public works 1,052,433 813,200 - - 1,052,433 813,200

Street and traffic 2,190,617 2,110,807 - - 2,190,617 2,110,807

Health and sanitation 5,307,288 5,839,420 - - 5,307,288 5,839,420

Community development 4,348,277 1,411,141 - - 4,348,277 1,411,141

Culture and recreation 3,344,189 6,992,540 - - 3,344,189 6,992,540

Interest and fiscal charges 232,890 237,264 - - 232,890 237,264

Electric Department - - 81,522,370 83,243,071 81,522,370 83,243,071
Total expenses 72,772,128 80,172,359 81,522,370 83.,243.071 154,294,498 163,415.430
Increases (decreases) in net

position before transfers ( 861,669) ( 11,561,140) 14,370,729 14,986,235 13,509,060 3,425,095
Transfers 12,000,000 12,000,000 (_12,000.000) (_12.000.000) - -
Increases (decreases) in

net position 11,138,331 438,860 2,370,729 2,986,235 13,509,060 3,425,095
Net position -

Beginning of year 77,439,009 88,577,340 93,949,414 96,320,143 171,388,423 184,897,483
Net position -

End of year $ 88,577,340 $ _89,016,200 $ _96,320,143 $ _99,306,378 $ 184,897,483 $ 188,322,578





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Governmental funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$28,705,767. Approximately 38.53% of this total amount or $11,062,416 constitutes unassigned fund
balances available for spending. The remainder of the fund balances are either restricted ($8,376,346),
assigned by designation by management for encumbrances and accumulated vacation and sick leave
($9,267,005).

The General Fund is the chief fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund was $11,994,799, while total fund balance was $20,448,941. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to the fund’s
total operational expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 19.74%b6 of total expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 33.65%0 of that same amount.

The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $419,024 during the current fiscal year. Key factors included:

Total revenues decreased by $562,783, highlighted by the following:
Sales taxes increased $147,693.

Property taxes increased $341,069.

Franchise fees increased $313,271.

Fines and forfeitures increased $107,775.

Licenses and permits increased $39,883.

Charges for services increased $49,496.

Intergovernmental revenues decreased $1,926,477.
Investment earnings decreased $1,353.

Miscellaneous income increased $365,860.

VVVVVYYYVYVYY

Total expenditures increased by $739,053. Classifications were stable with changes highlighted by the
following:

> Total general government increased by $626,542.

» Emergency services decreased by $156,264.

» Public safety - fire increased by $695,589.

» Public safety - police increased by $780,894.

> Public works decreased $193,263.

» Sanitation increased by $690,837.

» Special appropriations decreased by $1,690,887.

Other financing sources, consisting of transfers from the Electric Department, had no change at $12,000,000
while other financing uses increased by $402,177 due to a transfer to the Street Fund of $500,000 in 2013.

Proprietary funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Electric Department had a negative
balance of $3,715,052 as of December 31, 2013. The fund had a net change in position increase for the fiscal
year totaling $3,185,549.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City made revisions to the original budgeted expenditures as necessary during the year, as approved by
the City Council. However, all departments remained diligent in keeping expenditures within budget. The final
amended General Fund budgeted expenditures totaled $60,545,710 as compared to the original budgeted
expenditures of $59,028,000, an increase of $1,517,710. The main components of this increase in expenditures
were increases in public safety - fire of $437,649, public safety - police of $394,700, planning of $179,170,
sanitation of $170,000, code enforcement of $124,800 and Administration of $116,181.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,
2013 amounts to $194,427,132, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings and improvements, furniture, machinery and equipment, computer equipment, utility
infrastructure, infrastructure assets, and vehicles. Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year
included the following:

Decreases in governmental construction in progress totaling $2,162,816.
Purchases of land for governmental activities totaling $534,273.

Additions to governmental buildings totaling $1,281,987.

Additions to governmental land improvements of $215,000.

Additions to governmental vehicles of $662,563.

Additions to governmental equipment of $4,271,362.

Increases in Electric Department construction in progress totaling $3,015,505.
Additions to the Electrical system plant and equipment totaling $9,344,493.

VVVVYVVY

CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Land and land rights $ 7,986,257 $ 7,946,469 $ 2,032,960 $ 2,032,960 $ 10,019,217 $ 9,979,429
Construction in progress 6,962,078 4,799,262 10,266,881 13,282,386 17,228,959 18,081,648
Utility system plant

and equipment - - 227,167,343 233,529,641 227,167,343 233,529,641
Infrastructure 19,054,363 22,481,613 - - 19,054,363 22,481,613
Buildings 39,452,485 39,737,610 - - 39,452,485 39,737,610
Land Improvements 7,088,397 7,303,397 - - 7,088,397 7,303,397
Vehicles 17,117,995 17,330,371 - - 17,117,995 17,330,371
Equipment 16,370,558 20,638,656 - - 16,370,558 20,638,656
Ships and watercraft 3,794,355 3,794,355 3,794,355 3,794,355

Accumulated depreciation ((51.783.036) (_55.785.967) (117.615.734) (122.663.621) (169.398.770) (178.449.588)

Total $ _66,043,452 $ _68,245,766 $ 121,851,450 $ 126,181,366 $ 187,894,902 $ 194,427,132

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 3 in the notes to the basic financial
statements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $77,940,301 in outstanding debt consisting of revenue bonds
and notes payable. Of this debt, $68,845,000 was secured by specific revenue sources.

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS’ OUTSTANDING DEBT

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Revenue bonds $ - $ - $ 71,780,000 $ 68,845,000 $ 71,780,000 $ 68,845,000
Notes payable 6.959.976 9.095.301 - 6,959,976 9,095,301
Total $_6,959976 $__9,095301 $_71,780,000 $ _68,845,000 $ _78,739,976 $ _77,940,301

The City’s total debt (including compensated absences and other long-term operating liabilities) decreased by
$809,585 during the current fiscal year. Activity consisted of proceeds from notes payable of $5,101,640,
payments on the above debt totaling $5,901,315, an increase in long term customer deposits payable
$391,587, and a decrease in accrued compensated absences of $401,497. Additional information on the City’s
long-term debt can be found in note 4 in the notes to the basic financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The current economic environment presents municipalities with unprecedented circumstances and challenges,
which in some cases could result in declines in population, volume of business, constraints on liquidity and
difficulty obtaining financing. The City plans to continue improvements to local infrastructure, invest in its
utility systems, support planning and development in the City, and focus on delivery of services to its citizens
and customers.

The original 2014 budget for the General Fund includes budgeted revenues of $46,954,141, transfers from the
Electric Department of $12,000,000, and expenditures of $60,112,750 for a projected deficit of $1,158,609 to
be funded by reserves.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all with an interest in
the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, City of North Little Rock, 120 Main
Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,390,543 $ 17,089,064 $ 28,479,607 $ 2,847,426
Certificates of deposits 12,088,940 964,023 13,052,963 4,931,752
Receivables - net 16,110,373 4,240,699 20,351,072 4,990,415
Due from other governments 66,025 - 66,025 811,051
Internal balances 16,365 (16,365) - -
Prepaid expenses - 1,783,732 1,783,732 14,468
Inventories - 2,475,990 2,475,990 37,008
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 18,328,754 18,328,754 436,672
Restricted certificates of deposit - 1,519,736 1,519,736 -
Restricted interest receivable and other assets - 7,858 7,858 -
Unbilled revenues - 4,379,000 4,379,000 -
Pension fund excess - - - 130,723
Capital assets being depreciated - net 55,500,035 110,866,020 166,366,055 64,731,553
Capital assets not being depreciated 12,745,731 15,315,346 28,061,077 13,003,621
Total assets 107,918,012 176,953,857 284,871,869 91,934,689
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred amount from refunding of bonds - 1,970,203 1,970,203 -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 107,918,012 $ 178,924,060 $ 286,842,072 $ 91,934,689
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 554,343 3,621,721 4,176,064 538,691
Accrued interest 66,312 897,461 963,773 -
OPEB liability 1,116,871 285,362 1,402,233 -
Other accrued liabilities 1,985,464 673,026 2,658,490 1,316,903
Deferred grant revenue 44,775 - 44,775 -
Due to other governments 17,330 - 17,330 -
Notes payable due in less than one year 2,958,304 - 2,958,304 -
Revenue bonds payable in less than one year - 3,055,000 3,055,000 1,766,908
Customer deposits payable in less than one year - 930,264 930,264 -
Notes payable due in more than one year 6,136,997 - 6,136,997 -
Revenue bonds payable in more than one year - 65,790,000 65,790,000 21,320,504
Customer deposits payable in more than one year - 3,114,062 3,114,062 -
Accrued compensated absences 6,021,416 1,250,786 7,272,202 691,156
Total liabilities 18,901,812 79,617,682 98,519,494 25,634,162
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 59,166,958 85,491,569 144,658,527 54,647,762
Restricted :
Expendable
Electric Department - 15,744,918 15,744,918 -
Other 2,328,557 - 2,328,557 404,012
Nonexpendable - - - 34,867
Unrestricted 27,520,685 (1,930,109) 25,590,576 11,213,886
Total net position 89,016,200 99,306,378 188,322,578 66,300,527
Total liabilities and net position $ 107,918,012 $ 178,924,060 $ 286,842,072 $ 91,934,689

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Capital

Charges for Grants and

General revenues:
Taxes - sales
Taxes - other
Franchise fees
Investment income (loss)

Expenses services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs:
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 28,169,440 $ 2,490,774 $ - 8 28,855
Public safety 34,598,547 3,639,677 511,939 -
Public works 813,200 - - -
Street and traffic 2,110,807 70,657 29,236 527,657
Health and sanitation 5,839,420 794,162 271,849 -
Community development 1,411,141 - - 2,440,070
Culture and recreation 6,992,540 1,415,709 22,626 240,389
Interest and fiscal charges 237,264 - - -
Total governmental activities 80,172,359 8,410,979 835,650 3,236,971
Business-type Activities
Electric Department 83,243,071 95,782,990 - -
Total business-type activities 83,243,071 95,782,990 - -
Total primary government $ 163415430 $ 104,193,969 $ 835,650 $ 3,236,971
Component Units
Waste Water Utility 12,436,371 13,383,548 - -
William F. Laman Public Library 3,446,701 214,916 3,040 -
Airport Commission 1,214,977 226,091 - 710,129
Advertising and Promotion Commission 959,694 248,519 - -
$ 18,057,743 $ 14,073,074 $ 3,040 $ 710,129

Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs
Other
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See notes to basic financial statements.





Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (25,649,811) $ - (25,649,811) $ -
(30,446,931) - (30,446,931) -
(813,200) - (813,200) -
(1,483,257) - (1,483,257) -
(4,773,409) - (4,773,409) -
1,028,929 - 1,028,929 -
(5,313,816) - (5,313,816) -
(237,264) - (237,264) -
(67,688,759) - (67,688,759) -
- 12,539,919 12,539,919 -
- 12,539,919 12,539,919 -
(67,688,759) 12,539,919 (55,148,840) -
- - - 947,177
- - - (3,228,745)
- - - (278,757)
- - - (711,175)
- - - (3,271,500)
38,308,972 - 38,308,972 1,034,265
12,981,695 - 12,981,695 2,898,584
3,051,992 - 3,051,992 -
51,789 95,118 146,907 25,042
- - - 715,091
1,733,171 2,351,198 4,084,369 142,703
12,000,000 (12,000,000) - -
68,127,619 (9,553,684) 58,573,935 4,815,685
438,860 2,986,235 3,425,095 1,544,185
88,577,340 96,320,143 184,897,483 64,756,342
$ 89,016,200 $ 99,306,378 188,322,578 $ 66,300,527

12





ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments-certiciates of deposits
Property taxes receivable - net
Sales tax receivable
Franchise tax receivable
Accounts receivable - other

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other governments

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:

Uniformed employees
Metroplan 911
Other
Street and traffic
Parks and recreation
Police Equitable Sharing
Drainage improvement
Acquisition and construction of
Capital assets and improvements

Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Other
Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
6,615,308 $ 4,775,235 $ 11,390,543
10,573,420 1,515,520 12,088,940
6,933,369 1,431,198 8,364,567
5,229,978 1,564,168 6,794,146
910,366 - 910,366
45,250 - 45,250
61,483 4,542 66,025
148,357 979,533 1,127,890
30,517,531 $ 10,270,196 $ 40,787,727
554,343 $ - $ 554,343
1,837,910 147,554 1,985,464
- 17,330 17,330
742,968 372,513 1,115,481
6,933,369 1,475,973 8,409,342
10,068,590 2,013,370 12,081,960
1,310,442 - 1,310,442
534,945 - 534,945
130,993 - 130,993
- 1,930,298 1,930,298
- 905,604 905,604
- 289 289
- 466,064 466,064
- 3,097,711 3,097,711
6,477,762 2,789,243 9,267,005
11,994,799 (932,383) 11,062,416
20,448,941 8,256,826 28,705,767
30,517,531 $ 10,270,196 $ 40,787,727

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013

therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the period in which levied in the
government-wide financial statements, but are reported as deferred revenue

in the governmental funds

Interest accrued on notes payable in governmental activities are not due and payable

and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the governmental funds:

Compensated absences

OPERB liability
Notes payable

Net position of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.

28,705,767

68,245,766

8,364,567

(66,312)

(6,021,416)

(1,116,871)
(9,095,301)

89,016,200
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Other
Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes - sales $ 24,862,107 $ 13,244,938 $ 38,107,045
Taxes - other 11,202,263 1,359,423 12,561,686
Franchise fees 3,051,992 - 3,051,992
Fines and forfeitures 3,185,906 - 3,185,906
Licenses and permits 2,412,887 - 2,412,887
Charges for services 1,552,431 1,259,755 2,812,186
Intergovernmental 2,046,457 2,026,164 4,072,621
Investment earnings 37,250 14,539 51,789
Miscellaneous 1,321,845 411,326 1,733,171
Total revenues 49,673,138 18,316,145 67,989,283
Expenditures
General government:
Administration 2,168,537 - 2,168,537
City clerk 261,127 - 261,127
Code enforcement 946,343 - 946,343
Commerce 179,347 - 179,347
Communications 75,917 - 75,917
Finance 863,309 - 863,309
Fiscal control 2,748 - 2,748
District court - first division 546,744 - 546,744
District court - second division 464,696 - 464,696
Legal 569,835 - 569,835
Human resources 587,999 - 587,999
Planning 731,408 - 731,408
Public defender 6,445 - 6,445
Vehicle maintenance 841,952 - 841,952
Total general government 8,246,407 - 8,246,407
Animal shelter 683,836 - 683,836
Community development - 1,235,837 1,235,837
Emergency services 1,573,784 - 1,573,784
Health 411,868 - 411,868
Neighborhood services 174,845 - 174,845
Parks and recreation - 5,863,535 5,863,535
Public safety - fire 14,205,145 - 14,205,145
Public safety - police 20,811,755 264,479 21,076,234
Public works 831,751 - 831,751
Sanitation 5,441,511 - 5,441,511
Senior citizens 902,499 - 902,499
Special appropriations 7,470,713 - 7,470,713
Street and traffic - 5,093,242 5,093,242
Capital outlay - 8,697,363 8,697,363
Debt service:
Principal retirement - 2,966,550 2,966,550
Interest and agents fees - 170,952 170,952
Total expenditures 60,754,114 24,291,958 85,046,072
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (11,080,976) (5,975,813) (17,056,789)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond proceeds - 5,101,640 5,101,640
Transfers in 12,000,000 4,926,534 16,926,534
Transfers out (500,000) (4,627,861) (5,127,861)
Total other financing sources (uses) 11,500,000 5,400,313 16,900,313
Net change in fund balances 419,024 (575,500) (156,476)
Fund balances - beginning of year 20,029,917 8,832,326 28,862,243
Fund balances - end of year $ 20,448,941 $ 8,256,826 $ 28,705,767

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (156,476)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount of capital asset additions recorded in the current period. 15,191,697

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities, but they do not
require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported
as an expenditure in the governmental funds. (4,534,373)

Other prior year accruals are reported in the statement of activities, but do not provide
current financial resources. (8,858,499)

Property tax revenues are reported in the statement of activities, but do not provide

current financial resources. Therefore, deferred property tax revenues are not reported

as revenues in governmental funds. This is the change in the amount of property taxes

deferred in the governmental funds, but not in the statement of activities 420,009

Other tax revenues are reported in the statement of activities, but do not provide
current financial resources. 403,254

Long-term compensated absences are reported in the statement of activities, but they do not

require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, long-term compensated absences

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the change in the amount

accrued on the governmental wide financial statements. 378,743

Long-term OPEB benefits payable are reported in the statement of activities, but they do not

require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, OPEB benefits payable are not

reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the change in the amount accrued

on the governmental wide financial statements. (204,093)

Interest accrued on notes payable in governmental activities are not due and payable
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds (66,312)

Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. (5,101,640)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 2,966,550

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 438,860

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Revenues
Taxes - sales
Taxes - other
Franchise fees
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovernmental

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

General government
Administration
City clerk
Code enforcement
Commerce
Communications
Finance
Fiscal control
District court - first division
District court - second division
Legal
Human resources
Planning

Public defender
Vehicle maintenance

Total general government

Animal shelter
Emergency services
Health

Neighborhood services
Public safety - fire
Public safety - police
Public works
Sanitation

Senior citizens
Special appropriations

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(over) expenditures

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance

Original Final Favorable
Budget Changes Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 25,090,000 $ - $ 25,090,000 $ 24,862,107 $ (227,893)
10,872,600 184,312 11,056,912 11,202,263 145,351
2,705,000 163,000 2,868,000 3,051,992 183,992
3,015,500 (50,000) 2,965,500 3,185,906 220,406
2,332,400 25,000 2,357,400 2,412,887 55,487
1,330,000 235,000 1,565,000 1,552,431 (12,569)
- 483,995 483,995 2,046,457 1,562,462

30,500 - 30,500 37,250 6,750
914,000 40,000 954,000 1,321,845 367,845
46,290,000 1,081,307 47,371,307 49,673,138 2,301,831
2,008,375 116,181 2,124,556 2,168,537 (43,981)
239,405 29,277 268,682 261,127 7,555
863,667 124,800 988,467 946,343 42,124
275,325 - 275,325 179,347 95,978

- 76,966 76,966 75,917 1,049
766,851 79,760 846,611 863,309 (16,698)
79,760 (79,760) - 2,748 (2,748)
602,140 - 602,140 546,744 55,396
478,405 - 478,405 464,696 13,709
634,365 5,400 639,765 569,835 69,930
567,675 34,500 602,175 587,999 14,176
534,650 179,170 713,820 731,408 (17,588)
6,120 - 6,120 6,445 (325)
850,609 - 850,609 841,952 8,657
7,907,347 566,294 8,473,641 8,246,407 227,234
696,040 - 696,040 683,836 12,204
1,550,914 25,000 1,575,914 1,573,784 2,130
448,975 - 448,975 411,868 37,107
154,525 25,000 179,525 174,845 4,680
13,745,880 437,469 14,183,349 14,205,145 (21,796)
20,466,300 394,700 20,861,000 20,811,755 49,245
1,039,980 (179,170) 860,810 831,751 29,059
4,804,020 170,000 4,974,020 5,441,511 (467,491)
959,111 - 959,111 902,499 56,612
7,254,908 78,417 7,333,325 7,470,713 (137,388)
59,028,000 1,517,710 60,545,710 60,754,114 (208,404)
(12,738,000) (436,403)  (13,174,403)  (11,080,976) 2,093,427

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Changes Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(over) expenditures (12,738,000) (436,403)  (13,174,403) (11,080,976) 2,093,427
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 12,000,000 - 12,000,000 12,000,000 -
Transfers out - (500,000) (500,000) (500,000) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 12,000,000 (500,000) 11,500,000 11,500,000 -
Net change in fund balance (738,000) (936,403) (1,674,403) 419,024 2,093,427
Fund balance - beginning of year 20,029,917 - 20,029,917 20,029,917 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 19,291917 $  (936,403) $ 18,355,514 $ 20,448,941 $ 2,093,427

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - net of allowance
Other receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Unbilled revenues
Materials and supplies

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit
Accrued interest receivable

Total restricted assets

Capital assets

Land and land rights
Plant and equipment

Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment - net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred amount from refunding of bonds

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund

Electric
Department

Internal
Service Fund

$ 15959455 $ 1,129,609
- 964,023

15,744,917 930,264
3,977,392 204,457
55,612 3,238
75,073 -
1,702,328 81,404
4,379,000 -
2,475,990 -
44,369,767 3,312,995

- 1,653,573

- 1,519,736

- 7,858

- 3,181,167

2,032,960 -
232,525,363 1,004,278
13,282,386 -
(121,847,168) (816,453)
125,993,541 187,825
125,993,541 3,368,992
170,363,308 6,681,987
1,970,203 -

$ 172333511 $ 6,681,987






LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer deposits

Revenue bonds payable - current portion
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Customer deposits
Interest earned on restricted investments

Accrued compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable, net of current

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted - expendable
Unrestricted net position

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund

Electric
Department

Internal
Service Fund

$ 3,621,721  $ -
594,391 354,419

- 91,438

- 930,264

3,055,000 -
897,461 -
8,168,573 1,376,121

- 3,114,062

- 9,578

1,041,328 209,458
65,790,000 -
66,831,328 3,333,098
74,999,901 4,709,219
85,303,744 187,825
15,744,918 -
(3,715,052) 1,784,943
97,333,610 1,972,768

$ 172333511 $ 6,681,987
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSTION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services
Other income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased electricity
Generation, transmission and distribution expenses
Customer records and collection expenses

Depreciation
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings(loss)
Other income
Interest expense

Trustee fees
Loss on disposal of equipment

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)

Income before transfers out

Transfers Out

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type

Activities
Enterprise Fund
Electric Internal
Department Service Fund

$ 93,373,975 $ 2,359,970
- 49,045
93,373,975 2,409,015
53,138,237 -
9,011,590 -
2,620,253 2,543,071
6,338,189 71,268
4,639,750 -
75,748,019 2,614,339
17,625,956 (205,324)
89,108 6,010
2,351,198 -
(3,628,433) -
(10,280) -
(1,242,000) -
(2,440,407) 6,010
15,185,549 (199,314)
12,000,000 -
3,185,549 (199,314)
94,148,061 2,172,082
$ 97,333,610 $ 1,972,768
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers

Receipts from other governments

Payments for purchased electricity
Payments to vendors for goods and services

Payments to employees
Payments for taxes

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out

Net change in customer deposits
Penalty income

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Repayments of long-term debt and bonds payable

Interest paid on long-term debt
Other receipts

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net change in certificates of deposits
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Presented on the balance sheet as follows:
Current assets - cash and cash equivalents

Current assets - restricted cash and cash equivalents
Noncurrent assets - retricted cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts and other receivables
Unbilled revenues
Prepaid expenses and accrued interest

Materials and supplies
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and interest earned on restricted assets

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Supplemental disclosures of noncash transactions investing and financing activities:
Amortization deferred on bond refunding, included in interest expense

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
Electric Department

Internal
Service Fund

$ 93,334,587 $ -
- 2,419,852
(53,138,237) -
(9,544,493) (877,476)
(5,942,755) (1,729,550)
(905,948) -
23,803,154 (187,174)
(12,000,000) -
- 391,587
938,412 -
(11,061,588) 391,587
(12,265,680) (94,318)
(2,935,000) -
(2,434,721) -
1,402,506 -
(16,232,895) (94,318)
- (1,772)
89,108 6,010
89,108 4,238
(3,402,221) 114,333
35,106,593 2,668,849
31,704,372 $ 2,783,182
15,959,455 $ 1,129,609
15,744,917 -
- 1,653,573
31,704,372 $ 2,783,182
17,625,956 $ (205,324)
6,716,814 71,268
215,612 10,837
(255,000) -
727,521 18,999
1,067,082 -
(2,294,831) (82,954)
23,803,154 $ (187,174)
1,343,364
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Pension Trust

Non-Uniformed

Employees
Retirement
Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,992,171
Investments - at fair value 41,640,144
Total assets $ 43,632,316
Net Position
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 43,632,316

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer and employee contributions
Miscellaneous contributions

Total contributions

Investment earnings

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS

Pension expense
Trust and administration fees

Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements.

Pension Trust

Non-Uniformed
Employees
Retirement

Fund

$ 1,942,863
385

1,943,248

4,617,822

6,561,069

2,512,797
221,748

2,734,545

3,826,524

39,805,792

$ 43,632,316
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Receivables - net

Note receivables - current

Due from other governments

Prepaid expenses

Inventories

Restricted assets - cash and investments
Note receivables - noncurrent

Pension fund excess

Capital assets being depreciated - net
Capital assets not being depreciated

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Bonds payable due in less than one year
Reserve for bio-solids disposal

Bonds payable due in more than one year
Accrued compensated absences

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted - expendable

Restricted - nonexpendable
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Nonmajor
Major Component Units Component
William F. Unit
Laman Advertising & Totals
Waste Water Public Airport Promotion Component
Utility Library Commission ~_Commission Units

$ 638,804 $ 1,781,797 $ 97,685 $ 329,140 $ 2,847,426
4,621,089 - - 310,663 4,931,752
1,782,221 3,007,473 - 900 4,790,594
8,504 - - - 8,504
- 419,530 374,191 17,330 811,051
14,468 - - - 14,468
33,508 3,500 - - 37,008
401,805 34,867 - - 436,672
191,317 - - - 191,317
130,723 - - - 130,723
60,675,798 654,092 3,320,674 80,989 64,731,553
10,206,753 - 2,796,868 - 13,003,621
$ 78,704990 $ 5,901,259 $ 6,589,418 $ 739,022 $ 91,934,689
184,463 - 354,228 - 538,691
387,618 - 2,285 - 389,903
1,766,908 - - - 1,766,908
927,000 - - - 927,000
21,320,504 - - - 21,320,504
623,503 47,671 - 19,982 691,156
25,209,996 47,671 356,513 19,982 25,634,162
47,795,139 654,092 6,117,542 80,989 54,647,762
401,805 - 2,207 - 404,012
- 34,867 - - 34,867
5,298,050 5,164,629 113,156 638,051 11,213,886
53,494,994 5,853,588 6,232,905 719,040 66,300,527
$ 78,704,990 $ 5901259 $ 6,589,418 $ 739,022 $ 91,934,689

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (“the City”) is a municipal corporation operating under the authority of
Arkansas state statute. The City is governed by an elected nine-member council comprised of the Mayor
(elected at large) and eight district City Council members. The City provides a full range of municipal services.
These include police and fire protection, emergency medical services, public works (streets and waste
collections), public improvements, electric and sewer services, parks and recreation, planning and zoning,
social, cultural and general administrative services. The accounting and reporting policies of the City conform
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for state and local governments as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Proprietary funds and similar component
units have adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements or opinions conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which
case, GASB prevails. The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies of the City:

REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying government-wide financial statements present the financial statements of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas and its component units. The component units are legally separate entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the City’s substantive
appointment of the majority of the component unit’s governing board. Furthermore, to be financially
accountable, the City must be able to impose its will upon the component unit or there must be a possibility
that the component unit may provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the
City. These component units are further distinguished between blended component units, presented as part of
the primary government, and discretely presented component units, presented separately.

The City’s defined benefit plan, being fiduciary in nature, was not evaluated as a potential component unit but
instead is reported as a fiduciary fund.

The discrete component units discussed below are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the
significance of their operations or financial relationships with the City. The City has no blended component
units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Major Component Units:

North Little Rock Waste Water Utility - The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility maintains the City’s
wastewater facility. The City appoints a majority of the Utility’s governing body. The City has the ability to
remove appointed members of the Utility’s governing body at will.

William F. Laman Public Library Commission - The William F. Laman Public Library Commission operates the
public library. The City owns the land and building, and also appoints a majority of the Commission’s board.

Other Component Units:

North Little Rock Advertising and Promotion Commission - The North Little Rock Advertising and Promotion
Commission was created to promote tourism in the City. The City collects a special tax from hotels and
restaurants to subsidize the Commission’s operations.

North Little Rock Airport Commission - The North Little Rock Airport Commission operates the municipal
airport located within the City. The City appoints a majority of the Commission’s board and on an annual basis
appropriates funds for personnel, operations, capital expenditures and construction.

The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility and the William F. Laman Public Library issue separately audited
financial statements, copies of which may be obtained from the management of those entities.
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Related Organizations

North Little Rock Housing Authority - The North Little Rock Housing Authority was created by state statute and
is legally separate from the City. The City appoints the commissioners, however, the City cannot impose its will
on the Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the
decisions of the commissioners. The Authority is fiscally independent and no financial benefit or burden
relationship exists with the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City’s financial statements.

North Little Rock Public Building Authority - The North Little Rock Public Building Authority was created by
state statute and is legally separate from the City. The City appoints the board members, however, the City
cannot impose its will on the Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or
overrule or modify the decisions of the board of directors. The Authority is fiscally independent and no financial
benefit or burden relationship exists with the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City’s financial
statements.

Central Arkansas Water - Effective July 1, 2001, the North Little Rock Water Department and the Little Rock
Water Department were merged into Central Arkansas Water. The City appoints a minority of the
commissioners and the City cannot impose its will on the entity.

Arkansas Inland Maritime Museum - The Arkansas Maritime Museum is organized as a membership charitable
organization under the Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) to operate a maritime museum. The majority
of the initial board of directors were employees of the City. The organization’s members will elect subsequent
board members. The organization leases the U.S.S. Razorback submarine and the Hoga tugboat from the City
for $1 per year. The organization will be responsible for operations of the museum and maintenance of the
vessels.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund financial
statements as follows:

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. Fiduciary activities are excluded from the government-wide
statements because they cannot be used to support the City’s own programs. As a general rule, the effect of
interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which
the direct expenses of a given function or identifiable activity is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly associated with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revenues include
(a) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or identifiable activity and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program or identifiable activity.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its fiduciary fund. Separate
statements for each fund (governmental, proprietary and fiduciary) are presented. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and major enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All other governmental are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The City has no nonmajor
enterprise funds.
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The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

North Little Rock Electric Department - This fund accounts for operations of the City’s electric utility.

Other funds of the City include the following:

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources, other than expendable trusts or major capital projects, which are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes

Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by enterprise funds.

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund is used to account for centralized services provided to
enterprise funds. The City’s internal service fund consists of the Utility Accounting Department and provides
billing and collection services, principally for the Electric Department. The Utility Accounting Department
issues separately audited financial statements, copies of which may be obtained from management of the City.

Pension Trust Fund - The pension trust fund accounts for assets held in trust for the Non-Uniformed
Employees’ Retirement Fund. Plan trustees must act in accordance with the specific purposes and terms of the
retirement plan.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the principal ongoing operations of the
fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating items.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives (or gives) value without directly giving (or receiving)
equal value in exchange, include taxes; fines and forfeitures; grants, entitlements, and similar items; and
donations. Recognition standards are based on the characteristics and classes of nonexchange transactions.
Franchise taxes, other taxes, and fines and forfeitures are recognized as revenues; net of estimated refunds
and uncollectible amounts, in the accounting period in which an enforceable legal claim to the assets arises
and the uses of resources is required or is first permitted. Grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized
as revenues, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. Amounts received before all eligibility requirements have been met are reported as
deferred revenues. Grants and similar aid to other organizations are recognized as expenses as soon as
recipients have met all eligibility requirements. Amounts paid before all eligibility requirements have been met
are reported as prepaid items.
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and liabilities are generally
included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in spendable resources. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures and proceeds of
general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. The City considers revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are collectible within sixty days after year-end.
Principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include taxes, federal funds, local funds and
investment earnings. Other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the City. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal
and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences. Pension expenditures are
recognized when amounts are due to a plan.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

A General Fund annual operating budget is prepared by the Finance Department on an annual basis. The
budget reflects revenues expected to be received during the year and expenditures expected to be incurred.
The Mayor is required by City and State law to submit the budget to the City Council for approval. The City
Council subsequently adopts the budget by City ordinance no later then December 31 of each year. Department
expenditures relating to budgeted items may not exceed their appropriated amount without approval.
Transfers over budgeted amounts must receive City Council approval. The original budget of the General Fund
was amended in 2013. Appropriations for specials projects are made each year by the City Council to finance
specific events and capital outlays. These projects are carried forward until they are fully expended or repealed
by the City Council’s ordinance. Appropriations lapse at the end of each year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposit and short-term
instruments with original maturities at purchase of three months or less. For purposes of the statement of
cash flows of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds, the City considers all liquid investments, including
restricted assets, with original maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Generally, investments are stated at fair market, cost or amortized cost and are held by the City in various
forms as allowed by the laws of the State of Arkansas. The Electric Department carries debt securities with an
original maturity of less than one year at amortized cost. All other investments of the Electric Department are
carried at fair value using quoted market prices. Pension fund investments are carried at fair value using
quoted market prices. The Waste Water Utility investments in securities are carried at fair value using quoted
market prices. The City records all investment income earned in the respective funds. Investment income
includes interest income, dividend income, other investment income, realized and unrealized gains and losses
on investments carried at fair value (the net change for the year in the fair value of investments carried at fair
value), investments carried at other than fair value, and other investment income. Investment income is
included in unrestricted net position and is reflected as nonoperating revenue in the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position in Proprietary Funds.
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RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain funds are held by the Enterprise and Internal Service fund types in accounts restricted for debt service,
capital construction, utility operations and maintenance and customer deposits. These funds are invested in
certificates of deposits and securities as allowed by state law and the related debt agreements. The Waste
Water Utility restricts certain assets for the payment of debt service, capital improvements, and repairs and
maintenance. The William F. Laman Public Library restricted assets consist of cash held in a certificate of
deposit. The principal endowment is permanently restricted, while investment income must be spent on
reference materials.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of operations of
both the governmental and proprietary funds.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, and Proprietary fund types. In
Governmental funds, receivables are stated at their net realizable value. The Proprietary funds and Waste
Water Utility (the “Utility”) accounts receivable are stated at the amounts billed to customers, all funds and
the Utility utilize the allowance method of accounting for uncollectible accounts receivables where
appropriate. Management uses significant judgment in estimating uncollectible amounts, considering factors
such as current overall economic conditions, industry-specific economic conditions, historical customer
performance, and anticipated customer performance. While management believes the processes effectively
address its exposure to doubtful accounts, changes in economic, industry, or specific customer conditions may
require adjustment to the recorded allowance.

Allowances have been established as follows at December 31, 2013:

Primary Government:

Electric Department $ 512,595
Component Units:

Waste Water Utility 10,000

William F. Laman Public Library 14,727
INVENTORIES

All Governmental-type fund inventories are accounted for using the purchase method, whereby inventories are
charged to expenditures when purchased. Governmental inventories are immaterial to the government-wide
financial statements. Electric Department inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the
average cost method. Waste Water Utility inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-
in, first-out method. William F. Laman Public Library are valued at cost are market using the first-in, first out
method.

PREPAID ITEMS

Prepaid balances are for payments made by the City in the current year for services occurring in the
subsequent fiscal year, and a reserve for prepaid items has been recorded to signify that portion of the fund
balance is not available for subsequent expenditures.

DEBT ISSUANCE EXPENSES AND REVOLVING LOAN ISSUANCE EXPENSES

The Electric Department and Waste Water Utility record all debt issuance expenses in the year they are
incurred.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include infrastructure assets constructed since 1980, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements, fund financial statements for proprietary funds and all Discretely Presented
Component Units. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

In connection with the adoption of GASB Statement No. 34, the City adopted a capitalization policy for
infrastructure assets of $250,000. The City defined machinery and equipment to be capitalized as those assets
with value or cost greater than $2,500 and an estimated useful life greater than one year. The cost of City
additions include contractual work, direct labor, materials and allocable overhead. For the Waste Water Utility,
assets are constructed by utility work crews, independent contractors financed by utility funds, contributions
to the Utility by independently financed waste water improvement districts, and contributions to the Utility by
real estate developers in conjunction with a property development. Assets acquired from improvement
districts and real estate developers result in donated capital and have been so classified. The William F. Laman
Public Library defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $10,000 and a minimum
estimated useful life of three years or more.

Cost of repairs and maintenance that do not improve or extend the asset lives are charged to operations
expense as incurred.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from 15
to 50 years for infrastructure, 10 to 40 years for buildings, 5 to 50 years for electric plant, 3 to 25 years for
land improvements, vehicles, and equipment. Depreciation for the Waste Water Utility is provided using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from three to fifty years. Depreciation for the William
F. Public Library is provided using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from three to
twenty years.

Depreciation expense is charged directly to the department/function based on the department that utilizes the
related asset.

CAPITALIZED INTEREST

Interest costs are capitalized when incurred by proprietary funds on debt where proceeds were used to finance
the construction of assets during the construction period of the related project. Total interest costs incurred by
the Electric Department for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $3,628,433. Total interest costs charged
to expense by the Electric Department for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $3,628,433. There were no
interest costs capitalized by the Electric Department for the year ended December 31, 2013. Total interest
costs incurred by the Waste Water Utility for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $601,369. Total interest
costs charged to expense by the Waste Water Utility for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $601,369.
There were no interest costs capitalized by the Waste Water Utility for the year ended December 31, 2013.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt ands other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the columns for governmental activities, business-type activities, and component units. These
amounts are also reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. Debt premiums,
discounts and deferred losses on refundings are generally deferred and amortized using the effective interest
rate method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable debt premium or discount. Debt issuance costs
are deferred and amortized over the life of the related debt using the straight-line method.

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental fund types are not recorded in the
governmental fund financial statements. Payments of principal and interest are recorded as expenditures on
the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance in the governmental fund financial
statements.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums, as well as debt issuance
costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued and premiums received are reported as
other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All full-time employees accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits in varying amounts based upon length of
service. Upon termination or retirement, employees are paid for unused, accumulated amounts up to specified
maximums. All compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements
and proprietary fund financial statements. In governmental funds, a liability for these amounts is reported only
as payments come due each period upon the occurrence of relevant events such as employee terminations,
resignations and retirement. The William F. Public Library does not accrue sick leave.

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of governmental funds include unavailable property taxes and grant receipts
received in advance that are to be expenses as costs are incurred. The property tax revenue is recognized as
billed in the government-wide financial statements.

EUND EQUITY

Beginning with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 “Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. This Statement provides more clearly defined
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s fund
balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used.

Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as prepaid expenses or
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using the highest
level of decision-making authority; to be committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed
by the governing body or by an official or body to which the government delegates the authority.

Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only in
the general fund.

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance
or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance
commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund. Assigned
fund balance is established by the City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for
specific purpose (such as purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes).

Flow assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as
they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund balance in the
following order: Committed, then Assigned, and lastly, Unassigned.
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NET POSITION

The net position of the City is classified in four components and represents the difference between assets and
liabilities. Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for acquisition, construction, or improvements of those
assets, and adding back unspent proceeds.

Restricted expendable position represents noncapital assets that must be used for a particular purpose as
specified by creditors, grantors or donors external to the City, including amounts deposited with trustees as
required by bond indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related borrowings.

Restricted nonexpendable net position represents noncapital assets that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity as specified by parties external to the City, such as permanent endowments. The City has no
restricted nonexpendable net position at December 31, 2013. The William F. Laman Library has restricted
nonexpendable net position of $34,867.

Unrestricted net position represents remaining assets less remaining liabilities that do not meet the definition
of net investments in capital assets or restricted expendable/nonexpendable net position

RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED RESOURCES

City policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws and regulations of other governments.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 financial statements conform to the current presentation.
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
DEPOSITS

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned or the
City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. It is the City’s policy
to require collateralization of all deposits in excess of federal depository insurance. State statute requires that
deposits in financial institutions be collateralized with federal depository insurance and bonds or other
interest-bearing securities of the United States, the State of Arkansas, Arkansas political subdivisions or
agencies or instrumentalities of these entities.

Deposits of the City’s reporting entity are insured or collateralized with securities held by the City, its agent, or
by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or its agent in the name of the City or applicable public
trust. At December 31, 2013, none of the City’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

At December 31, 2013, none of the City’s component unit bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

SUMMARY OF CARRYING VALUES

Carrying Value:

Deposits $ 61,381,060
Investments -
Totals - primary government $_ 61,381,060
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Included in the following statement of net position captions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,479,607
Certificates of deposit 13,052,963
Restricted cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents 18,328,754
Certificates of deposit 1,519,736
Totals - primary government $ _61,381,060
INVESTMENTS

Arkansas statutes authorize the City to invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Government; obligations on
which the principal and interest are fully guaranteed, or are fully secured, insured, or covered by commitments
or agreements to purchase by the U.S. Government; obligations of agencies and instrumentalities created by
acts of the United States Congress and authorized thereby to issue securities or evidence of indebtedness,
regardless of guarantee of repayment by the U.S. Government; obligations of political subdivisions of the
United States; certain obligations issued by the State Board of Education; short-term warrants of political
subdivisions of the State of Arkansas and municipalities; the sale of federal funds with a maturity of not more
than one business day; demand, savings or time deposits fully insured by a federal deposit insurance agency;
repurchase agreements that are fully insured by obligations of the U.S. Government, any U.S. state or any
political subdivision thereof; securities of, or other interest in, any open-end type investment company or
investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and which is considered a money
market fund, provided that the portfolio is limited principally to U.S. Government obligations and the
investment company or trust takes delivery of collateral either directly or through an authorized custodian;
and bank certificates of deposits.

Arkansas statutes also authorize the City to invest no more than 20 percent of its capital base in corporate
debt obligations; revenue bond issues of any U.S. state, municipality, or political subdivision; industrial
development bonds for corporate obligors issued through any U.S. state or political subdivision; securities or
interest in an open-end or closed-end management type investment company or trust registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 with certain limitations; securities or interests issued, assumed, or
guaranteed by certain international banks; and uninsured demand, savings, or time deposits or accounts of any
depository institution chartered by the United States, any U.S. state, or the District of Columbia. The pension
trust funds are authorized to also invest in common stocks, investment grade corporate bonds, and other
appropriate securities.

Interest Rate Risk - The City has no formal policy to limit its exposure to fair value losses due to rising interest
rates.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Provisions of debt agreements require that investments by the City in government obligations not
directly guaranteed by the U.S. Government be rated no less than Aa by Moody’s Investor Service and AA by
Standard and Poor’s Investor Service. At December 31, 2013, the City had no such investments.

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2013, the City had no such investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any one issuer.
The Electric Department had amounts deposited in common trust and money market funds totaling $6,429,122
which are included in cash and restricted cash at December 31, 2013.

Foreign Currency Risk - The City has no foreign currency risk as all investments are in U.S. dollar-denominated
assets.

As of December 31, 2013, the primary government of the City had no investments.
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Investment

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Maturity

Fair Value

Total investment return for the City’s primary government for the year ended December 31, 2013 is comprised

of the following:

Investment income

Net unrealized gains (losses) reported at fair value

Totals - primary government

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Following is a summary of changes in the capital assets of governmental activities:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

Capital Assets, non-depreciable:
Land and land rights
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital Assets, depreciable:
Infrastructure
Buildings and building improvements
Land Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Ships and watercrafts

Total capital assets, depreciable
Less: accumulated depreciation:

Net capital assets, depreciable

Total governmental activities - net

146,907
$___ 146,907
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2012 Increases Decreases 2013
$ 7,986,257 $ 534,273 $( 574,061) $ 7,946,469
6.962.078 2.329.008 (04.491.824) 4,799,262
14,948,335 2,863,281 (_5.065,885) 12,745,731
19,054,363 3,427,250 - 22,481,613
39,452,485 1,281,987 ( 996,862) 39,737,610
7,088,397 215,000 - 7,303,397
17,117,995 662,563 ( 450,187) 17,330,371
16,370,558 4,271,362 ( 3,264) 20,638,656
3.794.355 - - 3.794.355
102,878,153 9,858,162 ( 1,450,313) 111,286,002
(_51.783.036) (_4.534.373) 531,442 (_55.785.967)
51,095,117 5.323.789 ( 918.871) 55,500,035

$_66,043,452 $_8,187,070 $(_5.984,756) $ __68,245,766
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DECEMBER 31, 2013

Following is a summary of changes in the capital assets of business-type activities:

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital Assets, non-depreciable:
Land and land rights
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital Assets, depreciable:
Plant and equipment

Total capital assets, depreciable
Less: accumulated depreciation:

Net capital assets, depreciable

Total business-type activities, net

Balance Balance

December 31, December 31,
2012 Increases Decreases 2013

$ 2,032,960 $ - $ - 2,032,960
10,266,881 11,732,351 (__8.716.846) 13.282.386
12,299,841 11,732,351 (__8.716.846) 15,315,346
227,167,343 9,344,493 (_2.982,195) 233,529,641
227,167,343 9,344,493 ( 2,982,195) 233,529,641
(117.615,734) (_6.788.082) 1,740,195 (122.663.621)
109,551,609 2,556,411 (_1.242.000) 110,866,020

$ 121,851,450 $ 14,288,762 $(__9,958,846) $_126,181,366

Following is a summary of changes in the capital assets of component units:

COMPONENT UNITS:

Capital Assets, non-depreciable:
Land and land rights
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital Assets, depreciable:
Buildings and building improvements
Infrastructure - Airport
Plant and equipment - Waste Water
Equipment
Vehicle

Total capital assets, depreciable
Less: accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets, depreciable

Total component units, net

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2012 Increases Decreases 2013

$ 4,997,212 $ 222,433 $ - $ 5,219,645
1.461.841 6.664.365 ( 342.230) 7,783,976
6.459.053 6.886.798 (. 342.230) 13.003.621
3,704,270 - - 3,704,270
18,074,014 308,892 - 18,382,906
109,665,096 391,065 ( 123,412) 109,932,749
1,772,778 - - 1,772,778
65,152 22574 ( 44.058) 43,668
133,281,310 722,531 ( 167,470) 133,836,371
(_65.861,938) (.3.748.713) 505,833 (__69.104.818)
67.419.372 ((3.026.,182) 338.363 64,731,553

$ _73,878,425 $ _3,860,616 $( 3,867) $__ 77,735,174
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government

Administrative $ 17,592
Code enforcement 24,813
Commerce and government relations 3,814
Community planning 12,543
District courts 9,827
Finance 1,921
General government 677,110
Health 19,133
Human resources - personnel 2,597
Legal - city attorney 2,892
Vehicle maintenance 14,205
Total general government 786,447
Culture and recreation - parks and recreation 850,415
Culture and recreation - senior citizens center 247,039
Community development - housing and neighborhood programs 459
Health and sanitation - animal shelter 12,803
Health and sanitation - sanitation department 168,123
Public safety - emergency services 213,455
Public safety - equitable sharing 10,419
Public safety - Fire 555,885
Public safety - Police 895,918
Public works 26,648
Streets and traffic 766,762
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 4,534,373
Business-type activities:
Electric Department 6,716,814
Utilities Accounting Department 71,268
Total depreciation expense - business type activities 6,788,082
Total depreciation expense - primary government $_ 11,322,455
Component units:
Waste Water Utility $ 2,541,350
William F. Laman Public Library 193,996
Airport Commission 1,009,236
Advertising & Promotion 4,131
Total depreciation expense - component units $__ 3,748,713
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Type of Debt

Governmental activities:
Notes payable
Compensated absences

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds
Customer deposits
Compensated absences

Total business activities
Component units:

Waste Water Utility:
Revolving loan

Compensated absences

William F. Laman Public Library:

Compensated absences

Advertising & Promotion:

Compensated absences

Total component units

Bonds and notes payable at December 31, 2013 were as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Short-term Financing Obligations:

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

2011 Revenue Bonds,

Interest rates of 2.3%b to 5.1%, maturity 2031

2012 Revenue Bonds,

Balance Balance Amounts
December 31, December 31, Due within
2012 Additions Deductions 2013 One Year
$ 6,959,976 $ 5,101,640 $(2,966,315) $9,095,301 $ 2,958,304
6.400,159 - (_378.743) 6.021.416 -
$.13,360,135 $_5,101,640 $(3,345.,058) $15,116,717 $_2,958,304
$ 71,780,000 $ - $( 2,935,000) $68,845,000 $ 3,055,000
3,652,739 391,587 - 4,044,326 -
1,273,540 - ( 22.754) 1.250.786 -
$.76,706,279 $ 391,587 $(2,957,754) $_74,140,112 $_3,055,000
$ 20,504,874 $ 4,341,416 $(1,758,878) $23,087,412 $ 1,766,908
600,860 22,643 - 623,503 -
53,818 - ( 6,147) 47,671 -
6,971 13.011 - 19,982 -
$21,166,523 $_4,377,070 $(1,765,025) $23,778,568 $_1,766,908
2009 Series, original issue $1,268,500, interest rate of 2.96%, maturity 2014 268,713
2010-1 Series, original issue $5,000,000, interest rate of 2.49%0, maturity 2015 2,074,065
2010-2 Series, original issue $2,000,000, interest rate of 2.49%0, maturity 2015 1,349,661
2011 Series, original issue $1,300,000, interest rate of 2.09%, maturity 2016 1,300,000
2012 Series, original issue $4,981,640, interest rate of 0.00%6, maturity 2016 3,982,862
2013 Series, original issue $120,000, interest rate of 1.92%, maturity 2018 120,000
16,000,000
52,845,000

Interest rates of 3.0%6 to 5.0%6, maturity 2032
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COMPONENT UNITS

Revolving loans, interest rates of 1.75% - 4.0%, maturity variable $ 23,087,412

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

Notes Payable:

In 2001, the State of Arkansas passed Amendment No. 78 and Act No. 1808, allowing cities and counties to
obtain short-term financing agreements for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing or renting real
property or tangible personal property having an expected useful life of more than one year. These financing
agreements may not mature over a period to exceed five years and may have fixed or variable interest rates to
be repaid with general revenues.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2009 - The $1,268,500 note was issued to finance acquisition of
Sanitation Trucks for the City. The note is not secured by any lien or security interest in any physical
properties. The note is a general obligation secured by the full faith, credit, and resources of the City.
Payments of principal and interest of $276,667 are due March 31, 2010 and on the same day each year
thereafter until March 31, 2014, at which date all principal and accrued interest will be due and payable. The
interest rate is 2.96%b.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2010-1- The $5,000,000 note was issued to finance the acquisition of
City vehicles and equipment and finance capital improvements to City property. The note is not secured by any
lien or security interest in any physical properties. The note is a general obligation secured by the full faith,
credit, and resources of the City. Payments of principal and interest in the amount of $1,074,901.22 are due
May 15, 2011 with principal and interest payments of $1,075,924.51 due on the same day each year until May
15, 2015, at which time all unpaid principal and interest will be due and payable. The interest rate is 2.49%o.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2010-2 - The $2,000,000 note was issued to finance capital
improvements to City Parks and Recreation areas and acquire equipment and vehicles for City Parks and
Recreation. The note is not secured by any lien or security interest in any physical properties. The note is a
general obligation secured by the full faith, credit, and resources of the City. Interest only payments are due
on May 15, 2011 and May 15, 2012 in the amount of $49,391 and $49,800. Payments of principal and interest
of $700,138.82 are due beginning May 15,2013 and on May 15 of each year thereafter until May 15, 2015, at
which time all unpaid principal and interest will be due and payable. The interest rate is 2.49%b.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2011 - The $1,300,000 note was issued to finance capital
improvements to City streets, drainage improvements and sidewalks in the Lower Baring Cross Redevelopment
District, specifically the 3" Street Extension. The note is not secured by any lien or security interest in any
physical properties. The note is a general obligation secured by the full faith, credit, and resources of the City.
Interest only payments of $27,170 are due beginning October 27, 2012 and each year thereafter until October
27, 2016, at which time all unpaid principal and interest will be due and payable. The interest rate is 2.09%b.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2012 - The $4,932,625 and $49,015.40 notes were issued to finance
and acquire equipment for the City 911 system. The equipment serves as collateral for the note. Payments of
principal for the $4,932,625 are due beginning January 1, 2013 in the amount of $986,525.00. The amount will
be the same each year thereafter until January 1, 2016 when final payment in the amount of $1,973,050 is
due. Payments of principal for the $49,015.40 are due beginning January 1, 2013 in the amount of $12,253.85
until January 1, 2016.

Short Term Financing Obligations, Series 2013- The 120,000 note was issued to finance capital improvements
to the Downtown Riverside RV Park. An interest only payment of $2,336 is due March 27, 2014. Payments of
principal and interest of $31,453 are due beginning March 27, 2015 and on March 27 of each year thereafter
until March 27, 2018 at which time all unpaid principal and interest will be due. The interest rate is 1.92%b.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Series 1992A Electric System Refunding Bonds - $158,400,000 bonds issued June 1, 1992 for capital
improvements, with an interest rate on the revenue bonds which ranged from 6.1% to 6.5%6. Annual sinking
fund payments sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates ranging from 3.70% to 6.50%6 required.
These bonds were part of an advance bond refunding during the year ended December 31, 2012, as noted
below.

Series 1997 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds - $15,350,000 bonds issued December 30, 1997 for
capital improvements. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal and interest at rates from
4.45% to 5.20% required. These bonds were part of an advance bond refunding during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Series 2009A Working Capital Bonds - $5,000,000 bonds issued July 15, 2009 for working capital purposes,
with an interest rate of 5.5%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal and interest at
rates of 5.5%6 required. These bonds were part of an advance bond refunding during the year ended December
31, 2012.

Series 2009B Working Capital Bonds - $10,000,000 bonds issued December 15, 2009 for working capital
purposes, with an interest rate of 5.5%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal and
interest at rates of 5.5%b6 required. These bonds were part of an advance bond refunding during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds -$16,000,000 bonds issued May 1, 2011, with an interest rate of 5.1%6. Annual
sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates of 2.3% to 5.1% required. The
bonds are redeemable at the City’s option, as a whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued
interest at any date on forty-five days’ notice.

Series 2012A Revenue Bonds - Issued June 1, 2012, for purposes of refunding the 1992, 1997 and 2009 Series
bonds, and to fund $7,000,000 in capital improvements. The bonds require annual sinking fund payments
sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates of 2.6% to 5.0%%6. The bonds are redeemable at the City’s
option, as a whole or in part, at 100%6 of the principal amount plus accrued interest at any date on 30 days’
notice.

Series 2012B Revenue Bonds - Issued June 1, 2012, for purposes of refunding the 1992, 1997 and 2009 Series
bonds, and to fund $7,000,000 in capital improvements. The bonds require annual sinking fund payments
sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates of 2.6%6 to 5.0%. The bonds are redeemable at the City’s
option, as a whole or in part, at 100%6 of the principal amount plus accrued interest at any date on 30 days’
notice.

Series 2012C Revenue Bonds - Issued June 1, 2012, for purposes of financing working capital in the amount of
$10,185,000. The bonds require annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at
rates of 2.6% to 5.0%. The bonds are redeemable at the City’s option, as a whole or in part, at 100% of the
principal amount plus accrued interest at any date on 30 days’ notice.

The bonds are collateralized by a pledge of electric system revenues, the funds created under the indenture
and all monies and investments held therein. The major provisions of the bond indentures are as follows:

Rates: The City will maintain electric rates sufficient to produce net revenues equal to at least 125% of the
annual debt service. Net revenues are defined as all revenues derived from operations of the electric system,
including profits from all funds maintained under bond indenture except the project fund, less extraordinary
income items and after reduction of normal operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation, noncash items and
interest expense). The City was in compliance with this covenant for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Funds: The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations as well as provisions of certain contracts
requiring the use of separate funds. The required funds include the following:

Revenue Fund: All revenues derived from the operation of the electric system shall be deposited in this fund.
Revenues deposited shall be expended into the following funds in the following order of priorities:

Operation and Maintenance Fund: Used to pay the reasonable and necessary monthly expenses of operations,
and repair and maintenance of the electric system. This fund is maintained by required monthly transfers from
the Revenue Fund.

Revenue Bond Fund: On the next to the last business day of each month, there shall be paid to this fund a sum
equal to one-sixth of the next installment of interest, one-twelfth of the next installment of principal, and the
estimated fees for the trustee for the current month until such time as there is accumulated in the fund an
amount equal to the maximum annual debt service on all bonds outstanding.

Surplus Fund: Any surplus in the Revenue Fund after making all disbursements and making all required
deposits described above including the correction of any deficiencies may be used for any lawful municipal
purpose including early redemption of outstanding bonds or for the construction of extensions, betterments
and improvements to the City’s electric system.

Debt refunding:

On June 1, 2012, the City issued $55,780,000 in revenue refunding bonds with interest rates ranging between
3.0% and 5.0%6. The bonds were issued to refund $38,595,000 of the outstanding Series 1992, 1997 and 2009
bonds and to provide $10,185,000 in working capital and $7,000,000 for capital improvements.

The City issued the 2012A bonds to advance refund $39,500,000 of the outstanding Series 1992 bonds with a
6.5% interest rate. The City used the net proceeds along with other resources to purchase U.S. government
securities. The securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service on the
refunded portion of the Series 1992 bonds. As a result, that portion of the Series 1992 bonds is considered
defeased, and the City has removed the liability from its accounts.

As a result of this refunding, $3,985,249 of deferred bond issuance costs will be amortized over the remaining
life of the old bonds. As of December 31, 2013, $1,970,203 in remaining deferred bond costs is reported as a
reduction from the new bond liability.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

Waste Water Utility Revolving Loans

The Waste Water Utility long-term debt consists of draws against revolving loan funds from the Arkansas
Department of Pollution Control and Ecology administered by the Arkansas Development Finance Authority.
The funds are to be used for improvements to publicly owned sewage treatment facilities. The loans are
secured by the projects for which the funds are used and a pledge of the Utility’s sewer revenues.

The Utility received a $2,700,000 award in 1991 available for approved construction. The program award was
revised from $2,700,000 to $1,344,749 at completion of approved construction in 1994. Repayment of the
1991 loan began in October of 1994 with payments to be made semi-annually over 20 years, including interest
at 4%o.

The Utility received two program awards totaling $11,000,000 in 1995 available for approved construction
with interest and financing fee only payments due semi-annually until October 15, 2000. The interest rate on
the 1995 revolving loan fund loans is at 2.5% and the financing fee is 1% of outstanding principal.
Repayments of the 1995 loan began in October of 1998 with payments to be made semi-annually over twenty
years, including interest.
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In 2001, the Utility received a $10,000,000 program award available for approved construction. The interest
rate on the 2001 revolving loan fund is at 2.25% and a financing fee at 1%6 of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the construction period. Repayment of principal,
interest and financing fee of the 2001 loan began in October 2005 with payments to be made semi-annually
over twenty years.

In 2008, the Utility received a $14,000,000 program award available for approved construction. The interest
rate on the 2008 revolving loan fund is at 1.75% and a financing fee at 1%6 of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the project construction period. Repayment of
principal, interest and financing fee of the 2008 loan began in April 2012 with payments to be made semi-
annually over twenty years.

In 2012, the Utility received a $21,000,000 program award available for approved construction. The interest
rate on the 2012 revolving loan fund is at 1.5% and a financing fee at 1% of the outstanding principal with
semi-annual payments of interest and financing fee during the project construction period. Repayment of
principal, interest and financing fee of the 2012 loan will begin in April 2016 with payments to be made semi-
annually over twenty years. As of December 31, 2013, $20,099,821 was left to be drawn on the loan.

Waste Water Utility Restricted Funds

The Utility had certain debt service funds with AFDA, which are restricted to various uses. The Utility is
required to deposit monthly with the AFDA, to be held in trust, an amount equal to 1/6 of the interest to
coming due on the next ensuing interest payment plus 1/6 of the next installment of principal due on the
bonds. The required deposits shall be reduced by any amount in the Debt Service Fund available for meeting
the purpose for which the deposit is required to be made. The total deposits held in trust as of December 31,
2013 totaled $401,805.

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS:

The following schedule shows the annual debt service requirements to pay principal and interest on the
revenue bonds and notes payable outstanding at December 31, 2013. Principal and interest are also disclosed
for component units as follows:

REVENUE BONDS

Business-type Activities

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 3,055,000 $ 2,245,524 $ 5,300,524
2015 5,675,000 2,201,023 7,876,023
2016 5,800,000 2,083,844 7,883,844
2017 5,930,000 2,008,514 7,938,514
2018 6,085,000 1,793,506 7,878,506
Thereafter 42,300,000 8.081,750 50,381,750
Total $.68,845,000 $ 18,414,161 $_87,259,161
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NOTES PAYABLE

Governmental Activities

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 2,958,304 $ 122,679 $ 3,080,983
2015 2,760,842 72,623 2,833,465
2016 3,315,013 28,989 3,344,002
2017 30,280 1,174 31,454
2018 30,862 592 31.454
Total $_.9,095301 $__ 226,057 $_9,321,358
REVOLVING LOANS
Component Units
Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 1,766,908 $ 522,704 $ 2,289,612
2015 1,773,858 471,160 2,245,018
2016 2,651,582 941,959 3,593,541
2017 2,731,006 866,842 3,597,848
2018 2,428,161 791,733 3,219,894
2019-2023 11,144,941 3,129,518 14,274,459
2024-2028 9,513,183 1,865,348 11,378,531
Thereafter 11,177,594 905,211 12,082,805
Total $.43,187,233 $_9,494475 $_52,681,708
NOTE 5 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following as of December 31, 2013:
Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 152,312 $ 742,968
Special Revenue Funds 6,210 259,474
Capital Projects Funds 973,324 113,040
Proprietary Fund 88.289 104,653
Total $ _1,220,135 $ _1,220,135

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates (1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and (3) payments between the funds are made.
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Interfund transfers in and transfers out consisted of the following as of December 31, 2013:

Transfers Transfers
In Out

General Fund:

Enterprise Fund $12,000,000 $ -

Street Fund - 500,000
Total General Fund 12,000,000 500.000
Special Revenue Funds:

General Fund 500,000 -

Capital Projects Funds 200,000 1,035,399
Total Special Revenue Funds 700,000 1.035,399
Debt Service Funds:

Capital Projects Funds 3.078.679 -
Total Debt Service Funds 3.078.679 -
Capital Projects Funds:

Special Revenue Funds 1,035,399 200,000

Debt Service Funds - 3,078,679
Total Capital Projects Funds 1,035,399 3,278,679
Enterprise Fund:

General Fund - 12,000,000
Total Enterprise Fund - 12.000.000

Totals $ 16,814,078 $ _16,814,078

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) pay debt service in accordance with contractual
or budgetary authorizations. The Electric Department transfers funds to the General Fund based on amounts
directed and authorized by the City Council in the annual budget.

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all of the City’s employees receive retirement benefits. The City sponsors a single-employer
defined benefit plan; The Non-uniformed Employees Retirement Plan (“Non-uniformed Plan”) The City also
contributes to the Arkansas Local Police and Fire Combined Retirement Plans (“LOPFI”), a statewide agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plans are maintained in legally separate trusts and each
Plan’s assets may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of that Plan or their beneficiaries in
accordance with the terms of the Plan. Separate financial reports are issued only for the Non-Uniformed Plan.

All full-time non-uniformed employees are eligible to participant in the City of North Little Rock Non-uniformed
Employee’s Retirement Plan.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The City of North Little Rock’s financial statements for its defined benefit plan are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are
due. City contributions to the Plan are recognized when due and the City has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the Plan.

Method Used to Determine Fair Value of Investments
The fair

The fair value of investments other than mutual funds is determined using quoted market prices.
value of investments in mutual funds is determined using the fund’s current per share price.

Plan Descriptions and Funding Information

The Non-uniformed Employees Retirement Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit plan established under
Arkansas state law. Plan assets are administered by an independent fiduciary agent, but governed by a Board
of Trustees. The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to all regular, full
time, non-uniformed employees of the City, including persons who are elected to office by the people. The
amount of benefits to be paid to any participant depends solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus
investment earnings.

The plan requires that employees contribute four percent (496) of covered wages. The City is required to
contribute six percent (6%6) of covered payroll each pay period. Participants become fully vested after ten
years. Non-vested City contributions and investment earnings are forfeited when participants leave covered
employment and are transferred to a separate account that may be used to reduce City contributions.

The actuarial assumptions effective for the January 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the last one provided by the
actuary, included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.0 percent per year,
(b) projected salary increases of 4.0 percent per year, and (c) pre- and post-retirement mortality based on the
83 GAM.

Schedule of Funding Progress for Non-uniformed Retirement Plan

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets — Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
01701709 $31,285,983 $42,591,315 $(11,305,332) 73.46% 17,951,501 63%0
01/01/10 $34,731,961 $46,151,778 $(11,419,817) 75.26%  $18,318,954 62%
01/01/11 $37,772,958 $47,964,598 $ (10,191,640) 78.75%  $18,361,969 55%0
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Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Arkansas Local Police and Fire Combined Retirement Plans (“LOPFI”) is a state-wide agent multiple-
employer retirement program that provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to police and fire
employees of political subdivisions of the state of Arkansas. LOPFI was created by ACT 364 of the 1981
General Assembly. Employees hired after January 1, 1983, whose political subdivision had a retirement system
in effect at July 1, 1981 are eligible to participate in the plan. This is referred to as the Arkansas Local Police
and Retirement System LOPFI Plan Coverage (For Employees Hired After December 31, 1982) - (“LOPFI”).
Effective June 30, 1995, administration of the City of North Little Rock’s pension funds related to police and
fire personnel was transferred to the State of Arkansas and are referred to as the “Closed Plan Coverage (The
Relief and Pension Funds for Employees Hired Before January 1, 1983) - (“Closed Plan™). Accordingly, financial
statements of those funds are no longer part of the City’s financial statements. Upon transfer of these pension
funds, essentially all uniformed employees of the City’s police and fire departments became participants in
LOPFI. All information is derived from the Actuarial Valuation dated December 31, 2013. LOPFI issues a
publicly available financial report, which may be obtained by contacting the following:

Arkansas Local Police and Fire Retirement System
P.O. Drawer 34164
Little Rock, Arkansas 72203
(501) 682-1745

NORTH LITTLE ROCK PAID POLICE

Contributions requirements are set forth in Arkansas statute. LOPFI members are required to contribute six
percent (6%0) of their annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate which is a combined rate for the LOPFI and Closed Plan. For the year ending December 31, 2013 for the
police plan, this was 9.41% for employer normal cost for LOPFI benefits and 16.48%b for the Closed Plan’s
unfunded accrued liabilities (25 years remaining) for a computed employer rate for combined benefits of
25.89%0. Based on the combined annual payroll of LOPFI and Closed Plan active members of $10,107,979
submitted for this valuation, the annual employer contribution for the Closed Plan dollars would total
$1,665,795.

The required contributions were determined as part of the December 31, 2011 annual actuarial valuation for
the 2013 plan year using an /ndividual entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions effective for
the 2013 valuation included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.0 percent
per year, (b) projected salary increases of 4.0 percent per year, compounded annually, attributable to wage
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.5 percent to 15.0 percent per year,
depending on service, attributable to seniority/merit, (d) the assumption that benefits will increase 3 percent
per year after retirement (LOPFI members only), and (e) pre- and post-retirement mortality based on the RP-
2000 Combined Projected to 2017 Table set forward two years for men. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of valuation payroll. At December 31, 2013, the amortization period for Closed Plan unfunded
liabilities was 23 years. For 2013, the City’s Police Closed Plan’s annual pension cost was $1,529,817, which
was equal to the required and actual contributions.

Schedule of Funding Progress for Closed Plan Benefits-Police

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets — Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/711 $4,603,140 $25,758,405 $ (21,155,265) 18%  $10,107,979 209%
12/31/12 $3,647,073  $26,051,604 $ (22,404,531) 14%  $10,435,076 215%
12/31/713 $3,350,327  $25,773,699 $ (22,423,372) 13%  $10,711,912 209%
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NORTH LITTLE ROCK PAID FIRE

Contributions requirements are set forth in Arkansas statute. LOPFI members are required to contribute six
percent (6%) of their annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate which is a combined rate for the LOPFI and Closed Plan. For the Fire plans, this was 12.89% for employer
normal cost for LOPFI benefits and 21.97% for the Closed Plan unfunded accrued liabilities (25 years
remaining) for a computed employer rate for combined benefits of 34.86%. Based on the combined annual
payroll of LOPFI and Closed Plan active members of $7,897,117 submitted for this valuation, the annual
employer contribution for the Closed Plan dollars would total $1,734,997.

The required contributions were determined as part of the December 31, 2011 annual actuarial valuation using
the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions effective for the 2013 valuation included (a) a
rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.0 percent per year, (b) projected salary
increases of 4.0 percent per year, compounded annually, attributable to wage inflation, (c) additional
projected salary increases ranging from 0.5 percent to 15.0 percent per year, depending upon service,
attributable to seniority/merit, (d) the assumption that benefits will increase 3 percent per year after
retirement (LOPFI members only), and (e) pre- and post-retirement mortality based on the RP-2000 Combined
Projected to 2017 Table set forward two years for men. The actuarial value of assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year
period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of valuation payroll.
At December 31, 2013, the amortization period for Closed Plan unfunded liabilities was 23 years. For 2013, the
City’s annual pension cost was $1,500,827, which was equal to the required and actual contributions.

Schedule of Funding Progress for Closed Plan Benefits- Fire

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets — Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
12/731/11 $12,337,640 $29,903,498 $ (17,565,858) 41% $7,897,117 222%
12/731/12 $10,710,959 $30,538,772 $(19,827,813) 35% $8,054,622 246%
12/731/13 $10,465,168 $30,080,279 $(19,615,111) 35% $8,349,807 235%

Municipal Judges’ Retirement Fund

In accordance with Act 1374 of 2003, the Arkansas District Judges Retirement System (ADJRS) was
established in 2004, and the City’s local plan was subsequently abolished. The Plan is being administered by
the Arkansas Public Employee’s Retirement System (APERS). The City’s unfunded liability as of the June 30,
2013 APERS calculation based on the December 31, 2004 unfunded liability totaled $1,518,152. This amount is
being amortized over a 30 year period. The remaining amortization period as of December 31, 2013 is 21 years.
The amount paid for the year ended December 31, 2013 for the ninth installment of the amortization period
totaled $143,174, leaving an unfunded liability of approximately $1,374,978 as of December 31, 2013. No
current actuarial valuation was available as of the date of these financial statements.

Component Pension Plans - Waste Water Utility

The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility Defined Pension Plan is a single-employer sponsored plan
administered by the Waste Water Utility. The Plan provides retirement, death, and disability benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The Utility’s Board of Commissioners establishes benefit provisions and all other
requirements. The Plan does not issue stand alone financial statements, nor is it included in another public
employee retirement system plan’s financial statements. Participants are not required to contribute to the
Plan. The Waste Water Utility is required to contribute to the Plan at an actuarially determined rate. The rate
was 13.94% for the year ended December 31, 2013. The annual pension cost for 2013 totaled $476,316. The
annual required contribution for 2013 totaled $470,495. Further information is included in the audited
financial statements of the Waste Water Utility, audited by other auditors, and is not presented in this report.
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFIT PLAN

City employees participate in another post-employment benefit plan sponsored by the City (the “Plan”).
Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45) was effective for the City for the year
ended December 31, 2007. GASB 45 requires that employers providing post-employment benefits other than
pensions record and disclose annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost and a net OPEB obligation in
their financial statements and disclose other information about their OPEB plans, including the unfunded
actuarial liability (UAAL).

The Plan allows employees to continue health insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although retirees are
required to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher cost of covering retirees
results in a subsidy to those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.

Employees eligible include those who retire directly from active employment at age 55 or over with at least 20
years service.

The City recorded OPEB cost of $344,646 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and a net OPEB obligation of
$1,402,233 based upon an update of the actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2014 using activity for
the year ending December 31, 2013. The City’s UAAL totaled $2,877,026 as of that actuarial valuation dated
January 1, 2014 and will be included in annual cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB
obligation and UAAL were computed using the projected unit credit method with a discount rate of 5.5% and
a healthcare cost inflation rate, beginning at 10% and decreasing 0.5% each year over a period of nine years
to a final rate of 5%o.

Annual OPEB Cost

Percentage

Fiscal Annual of Annual Net

Year OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB

Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/07 $403,603 35.59% $277,137
12/31/09 398,202 47.02% 739,409
12/31/10 285,673 42.17% 910,374
12/31/11 353,775 90.31% 944,654
12/31/12 353,910 33.64% 1,179,498
12/31/13 344,646 35.37% 1,402,233

Schedule of Funding Progress:

| Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Value of Accrued Liability Funded
Valuation Plan Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b)
01/01/07 $ 0 $4,004,423 $(4,004,423) 0%
01/01/11 0] 2,299,199 (2,299,199) 0%
01/01/12 0 3,094,796 (3,094,796) 0%
01/01/13 0 2,877,026 (2,877,026) 0%
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Participant Data:

Number of Active Employees: 791

Number of Retirees Covered:
Under 65 21
65 and over 8

Information is included in the audited financial statements of the Waste Water Utility, audited by other
auditors, and is not presented in this report.

NOTE 8 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The City funds all amounts of compensation deferred under the Plan, at the
direction of the covered employee (through payroll deductions), through investments in the United States
Conference of Mayors Deferred Compensation Program maintained by Nationwide and Arkansas Diamond. All
assets of the Plans, (including all deferred amounts, property and rights purchased with deferred amounts, and
all income attributable to such deferred amounts, property or rights), have been placed in trust and therefore,
are no longer included in the government-wide or governmental funds financial statements of the City.

NOTE 9 - PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE, DEFERRED REVENUE, AND PROPERTY TAX CALENDER

Property taxes are assessed, collected and remitted to City by Pulaski County. Taxes are levied on October 1 on
the assessed value listed as of January 1 of that year for all real and personal property located in the City. Taxes
are due and payable on the first Monday in January after the levy and become delinquent after October 10. The
majority of collections occur between March and December; as a result, the property tax is not collected within
the time frame necessary to finance the liabilities of the current period.

In the governmental funds, property taxes are measurable when levied even though they are not available, and
as a result, property taxes receivable and corresponding deferred revenue are recorded on the levy date. In the
government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenues are recorded on the levy
date.

Accordingly, a receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and a related revenue in the amount of
$8,364,597 has been recognized in the government-wide financial statements, while a receivable of $8,364,597
and a related deferred revenue of $8,364,597 have been recognized in the governmental fund statements.

The William F. Laman Public Library has recorded a receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and related
revenue in the amount of $2,930,691 which is recognized in the Discretely Presented Component Units
Statement of Net Position.

Millage rates for 2012 taxes collectible in 2013 were 5.00 for the General Fund, 3.00 for the Library, 1.00 for the
Police pension, 1.00 for the Fire pension and 1.45 for the Street Fund.

NOTE 10 - INSURANCE COVERAGE

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains insurance coverage
through the Arkansas Municipal League (the “Pool”), which is an association of local governments, covering
each of the above risks of loss. The City pays an annual premium to the Pool. The Pool’s governing agreement
specifies that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial
carriers for claims in excess of specified stop loss amounts. Management believes the coverage is adequate to
preclude any significant uninsured risk exposure to the City. The William F. Laman Public Library, Airport
Commission and Advertising & Promotion Commission are also participating with the City. Settled claims have
not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years, nor has there been a significant
reduction in coverage during the year ending December 31, 2013.
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The Waste Water Utility was insured at December 31, 2013 for general liability, automobile liability and all risk
replacement cost except workers compensation with the Arkansas Public Entities Risk Management
Association with claims administered by Gallagher Bassett Insurance Services of Little Rock. The Utility was
insured with the Municipal League Workers Compensation Trust for worker’'s compensation. The policy
effective dates are for a calendar year for all aforementioned policies of the Utility. The Utility was insured at
December 31, 2013 with RSUI Indemnity Co. for blanket property coverage. Further information is available in
the audited financial statements of the Utility.

NOTE 11 - DEFICIT IN FUND BALANCES

The Community Development Agency Fund and 2011 Baring Cross Redevelopment Fund had a deficit fund
balances at December 31, 2013 totaling $19,763 and $248, respectively.

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Utilities Accounting Department (“UAD”) of the City performs customer billing, collection services and
accounts receivable recordkeeping for the various funds of the City. The UAD charges the Electric Department
for this service based on the number of bills rendered. Charges for services to the Electric Department totaled
approximately $2,100,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Service deposits for Electric Department
Customers are collected and maintained by UAD. Interest earnings on deposits invested are recorded by the
Electric Department and reflected in the Electric Department’s financial statements.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

In 2013 and previous years, the City has made special appropriations to the Central Arkansas Transit Authority
(“CATA”) to finance its operating deficits. The City could continue to be required to fund CATA’s operating
deficits if the current level of services is to be maintained in the future.

In 2010, the Electric Department entered into a fixed rate wholesale power contract with NRG Power
Marketing, LLC for $53.96 per megawatt hour for the period April 1, 2010 through December 31, 2013.
Effective October 17, 2013 the Electric Department entered into a new fixed rate wholesale purchase power
contract with NRG Power Marketing, LLC for the period of January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2016 for $41.86
per megawatt hour.

In 2007, the City entered into a power purchase agreement with the Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility
Commission (MJMEUC). Under the agreement, the Electric Department is committed to acquire approximately
60 megawatts of generating capacity from the Plum Point Energy Station, which is located near Osceola,
Arkansas; and began power generation in 2010. The agreement runs through December 31, 2050, but may end
prior to that date if the plant is retired, if certain termination provisions apply, or if otherwise agreed to by the
parties. Under the agreement, the Electric Department will pay its proportionate share of the fixed and variable
costs of operating the plant and its share of MIJIMEUC’s administrative and other costs associated with the
contract.

The City has an agreement with Entergy whereby Entergy has interconnected its transmission facilities with
the City’s facilities to transmit the hydroelectric power and energy generated at the Murray Hydroelectric Plant
(“the Plant”) to the City’s system. The agreement was effective when the Plant became operational in
November 1988. The term of the agreement will continues as long as the City is authorized to operate the
Plant, unless terminated earlier by either party on not less than sixty months advance written notice. Rates
are determined based upon agreed formulas, with billings made on a monthly basis.

During 2012, the City established an adjustable Energy Cost Recovery Rider (“ECR”) as a component of its

electric rate structure. The ECR is designed to generate increases or decreases in billings to customers
depending on increases or decreases in cost purchasing and providing power to its customers.
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In 2013, The City entered into an energy-only contract to capitalize on the cost effective delivery of power
from Midcontinent Independent System Operator (MISO) market. Under the new contract the City will began
managing the output of its generation resources in the market by selling excess energy into the market at the
current market price. When those resources produce insufficient energy, the City will purchase replacement
energy from the market at the current market price.

The City is participating in a River Rail Project in conjunction with the City of Little Rock, Pulaski County and
Central Arkansas Transit Authority (CATA). The City is participating in a federal grant program to construct a
light rail system in the downtown areas of Little Rock and North Little Rock. CATA applied for the grant monies
based upon representation by the Mayors of North Little Rock and Little Rock and the Pulaski County Judge.
The City is responsible for approximately one third of the costs in excess of the grant monies available to
complete the project. In addition, future additions or improvements to the rail will be funded by the parties
involved based on the location of the addition. The City where the addition or improvement is located will be
responsible for 41.667 percent of the costs incurred. The County will be responsible for 33.33 percent and the
City, where the addition is not located, the remaining 25 percent.

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

In the normal course of operations, the City is, from time to time, subject to allegations that may or do result
in litigation. Some of these allegations are in areas not covered by the City’s self-insurance program or by
commercial insurance; for example, allegations regarding employment practices or performances of contracts.
The City evaluates such allegations by conducting investigations to determine the validity of each potential
claim. Based upon the advice of legal counsel, management records an estimate of the amount of ultimate
expected loss, if any, for each. In this regard, various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the
opinion of the City Attorney’s Office, the potential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not be significant in
relation to the City’s financial statements. Based on management’s evaluation, no amounts were accrued for
such liabilities as of December 31, 2013. Events could occur that would cause the estimate or ultimate loss to
differ materially in the near term.

In 2008, the City adopted three redevelopment ordinances invoking authority under Act No. 1197 of 2001, as
amended, to structure a redevelopment district for the primary purpose of building a parking deck. After the
ordinances were adopted, North Little Rock School District (“NLRSD”) initiated litigation against the City and
Pulaski County Officers in their official capacity in the Pulaski County Circuit Court, 2" Division (Case No.CV-
2009-0725). Adverse parties were permitted to intervene in the case. On January 14, 2013, the City adopted
Ordinance No. #8495 to return the combined redevelopment districts to their original status and revoking the
project plan for the combined redevelopment districts. On May 29, 2013 the City and Plaintiff North Little Rock
School District filed a joint motion seeking dismissal of the case and authorization for disbursal of taxes
collected according to applicable millages by the Pulaski County Tax Collector. On February 20, 2014 an Order
of Dismissal with Prejudice was entered by the Court. All escrowed taxes have been disbursed to the parties
by the Pulaski County Tax Collector, and this case is now closed.

On January 25, 2013, the City and Mayor Joe A. Smith accepted service in a lawsuit (Lynch v. Stodola, et al.)
filed against the Cities of Little Rock and North Little Rock and their respective Mayors, in Pulaski County
Circuit Court, Case No. 60CV-13-360. The lawsuit against the City and Mayor Smith, in his official capacity only,
alleges illegal exactions from the City to the North Little Rock Economic Development Fund and the North Little
Rock Chamber of Commerce. Alleged damages amount to over $750,000. The Arkansas Municipal League is
providing legal representation on behalf of the City and Mayor Smith in this action.

The North Little Rock Waste Water Utility is involved in a case that alleges the use by the North Little Rock
Waste Water customers of certain sewer lines located in the city limits of Sherwood. This use is considered to
constitute a trespass and public nuisance. North Little Rock Waste Water Utility plans to vigorously defend
their case. A favorable outcome is expected and no estimation of a loss or range of loss can be made at this
time in the event of an unfavorable outcome.
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Federal and State Grants

In the normal course of operations, the City participates in several federal and state financial assistance
programs. The financial assistance programs are subject to audit by granting agencies, the purpose of which is
to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. The City’s grant programs have been
audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended by the Single Audit Act
of 1996. Any liabilities for reimbursement that may arise, as the results of audits by the granting agencies, are
not believed to be material by management.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The management of the City has evaluated subsequent events through October 31, 2014.

NOTE 16 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

In 2001, the City of North Little Rock and the City of Little Rock entered into an agreement to create an entity
to own and operate a consolidated water system. The entity serves customers located within the corporate
limits of the City parties. Under GASB 14, the entity is accounted for as a jointly governed organization.

NOTE 17 - SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND CONCENTRATIONS

Current Economic Environment

The current economic environment presents municipalities with unprecedented circumstances and challenges,
which in some cases could result in declines in the volume of tax collections, other general revenues, municipal
utility billings; constraints on liquidity and difficulty obtaining financing. These financial statements have been

prepared using fair values and information currently available to the City, which are susceptible to change in
the future based on economic conditions.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
December 31, Contribution Contributed

Non-Uniformed Employees' Deferred Benefit Pension Plan 2001 1,173,000 127%
2002 1,740,000 89%
2003 1,987,000 81%
2004 1,990,000 81%
2005 2,080,000 81%
2006 N/A N/A
2007 N/A N/A
2008 2,292,407 78%
2009 2,340,128 78%
2010 2,280,105 80%
2011 N/A N/A
2012 N/A N/A
2013 N/A N/A

Local Police and Fire Retirement System - Policemen 2001 1,256,835 100%
2002 714,535 100%
2003 1,076,858 100%
2004 1,094,908 100%
2005 1,282,382 100%
2006 1,740,964 100%
2007 1,815,346 100%
2008 1,936,911 100%
2009 1,907,636 100%
2010 2,435,746 100%
2011 2,616,956 100%
2012 1,449,705 100%
2013 1,529,817 100%

Local Police and Fire Retirement System - Firemen 2001 1,176,222 100%
2002 640,573 100%
2003 714,534 100%
2004 1,396,358 100%
2005 1,449,651 100%
2006 1,759,319 100%
2007 1,790,859 100%
2008 2,011,236 100%
2009 1,956,919 100%
2010 2,376,145 100%
2011 2,752,935 100%
2012 1,380,910 100%
2013 1,500,827 100%

N/A - INFORMATION IS NOT AVAILABLE FOR THESE YEARS
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The information presented in the supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Non-Uniformed
Employee

Local Police and
Fire Retirement

Local Police and
Fire Retirement

Defined Benefit System - System -

Pension Plan Policemen Firemen
Actuarial valuation date 01/01/11 12/31/13 12/31/13
Actuarial cost method Aggregate cost method Individual Individual
normal Entry age Entry age

Amortization method
Remaining amortization
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Includes inflation at

Cost-of-living adjustments

Not applicable
Not applicable

Market

7.0%
4.0%
3.5%

None

-55-

Level percent open
23 years
5-year

smoothed market
8.0%
4.0 - 19.0%
4.0%

3.0%

Level percent open
23 years
5-year

smoothed market

8.0%
4.0 - 19.00%
4.0%

3.0%





OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION





ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments - certificates of deposits
Property taxes receivable - net

Sales tax receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses
Due to other governments

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Streeet and traffic
Parks and recreation
Police - equitable sharing
Drainage improvement

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Acquisition and construction of

Capital assets and Improvements

Unreserved - designated

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $

Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
$ 1,554,345 $ - 3,220,890 $ 4,775,235
1,515,520 - - 1,515,520
1,431,198 - - 1,431,198
1,564,168 - - 1,564,168
4,542 - - 4,542
6,209 - 973,324 979,533
$ 6,075,982 $ - 4,194,214 $ 10,270,196
$ 147,554 $ - - % 147,554
17,330 - - 17,330
259,473 - 113,040 372,513
1,431,198 - 44,775 1,475,973
1,855,555 - 157,815 2,013,370
2,377,012 - - 2,377,012
1,311,937 - - 1,311,937
289 - - 289
550,952 - - 550,952
- - 4,036,399 4,036,399
(19,763) - - (19,763)
4,220,427 - 4,036,399 8,256,826
6,075,982 $ - 4,194,214 $ 10,270,196
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes - sales $ 9,199,099 $ - $ 4,045839 $ 13,244,938
Taxes - property 1,359,423 - - 1,359,423
Intergovernmental 1,520,536 - 505,628 2,026,164
Charges for services 1,259,755 - - 1,259,755
Investment earnings 7,906 - 6,633 14,539
Miscellaneous 20,036 - 391,290 411,326
Total revenues 13,366,755 - 4,949,390 18,316,145
Expenditures
Current operating:
Community development 1,235,837 - - 1,235,837
Parks and recreation 5,863,535 - - 5,863,535
Public safety - police 264,479 - - 264,479
Street and traffic 5,093,242 - - 5,093,242
Capital outlay - - 8,697,363 8,697,363
Debt Service:
Principal retirement - 2,966,550 - 2,966,550
Interest and agent fees - 170,952 - 170,952
Total expenditures 12,457,093 3,137,502 8,697,363 24,291,958
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 909,662 (3,137,502) (3,747,973) (5,975,813)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond proceeds - - 5,101,640 5,101,640
Transfers in 500,000 3,137,502 1,289,032 4,926,534
Transfers out (1,295,548) - (3,332,313) (4,627,861)
Total other financing sources (uses) (795,548) 3,137,502 3,058,359 5,400,313
Change in fund balances 114,114 - (689,614) (575,500)
Fund balances at beginning of year 4,106,313 - 4,726,013 8,832,326
Fund balances at end of year $ 4,220,427 $ - $ 4036399 $ 8,256,826
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Investments - certificates of deposits

Property taxes receivable - net
Sales tax receivable

Due from other funds
Due from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accrued expenses
Due to other governments

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted:
Street and traffic
Parks and recreation
Police - equitable sharing

Drainage improvement
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Parks and Community
Street Recreation Development

$ 790,388 $ 461,357 $ 272
1,012,681 250,424 -
1,431,198 - -
655,660 908,508 -

5,733 476 -

- 4,542 -

$ 3,895,660 $ 1,625,307 $ 272
$ 65,248 $ 82,084 $ 222
- 17,330 -

22,202 213,956 19,813
1,431,198 - -
1,518,648 313,370 20,035
2,377,012 - -

- 1,311,937 -
- - (19,763)
2,377,012 1,311,937 (19,763)

$ 3,895,660 $ 1,625,307 $ 272






Total

Nonmajor
Special

Equitable Drainage Revenue
Sharing Improvement Funds

3,791 % 298,537 $ 1,554,345
- 252,415 1,515,520
- - 1,431,198
- - 1,564,168

- - 6,209
- - 4,542

3,791 $ 550,952 $ 6,075,982

- 3 - 3 147,554
- - 17,330

3,502 - 259,473
- - 1,431,198

3,502 - 1,855,555

- - 2,377,012
- - 1,311,937
289 - 289

- 550,952 550,952
] - (19,763)

289 550,952 4,220,427

3,791 $ 550,952 $ 6,075,982






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues
Taxes - sales
Taxes - property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current operating:
Community development
Parks and recreation

Public safety - police
Street and traffic

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds
Transfers to component units

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Parks and Community

Street Recreation Development
$ 3,394,062 $ 5,805,037 $ -
1,359,423 - -
178,165 113,108 1,229,263
22,530 1,093,191 -
4,107 1,938 23
8,393 4,481 4,978
4,966,680 7,017,755 1,234,264
- - 1,235,837

- 5,863,535 -

5,093,242 - -
5,093,242 5,863,535 1,235,837
(126,562) 1,154,220 (1,573)
500,000 - -

- (1,035,399) -

- (260,149) -

500,000 (1,295,548) -
373,438 (141,328) (1,573)
2,003,574 1,453,265 (18,190)
$ 2,377,012 $ 1,311,937 $ (19,763)






Equitable

Drainage

Sharing Improvement

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds

- $

95,907
313

48,127

1,525
2,184

$

9,199,099
1,359,423
1,520,536
1,259,755

7,906
20,036

96,220

51,836

13,366,755

264,479

1,235,837
5,863,535

264,479
5,093,242

264,479

12,457,093

(168,259)

51,836

909,662

500,000

(1,035,399)
(260,149)

(795,548)

(168,259)

168,548

51,836

499,116

114,114

4,106,313

289 $

550,952

$

4,220,427
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

2009 Series

Short-Term
Obligations

2010-1 Series

Short-Term
Obligations

2008 Series
Short-Term
Obligations
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $
Total assets $

Fund Balances
Unassigned $

Total fund balances $






2010-2 Series

Short-Term
Obligations

2011 Series

Short-Term
Obligations

2012 Series

Short-Term
Obligations

Total

Nonmajor
2013 Series Debt
Short-Term Service
Obligations Funds
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues

Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and agents fees

Total expenditures

Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers from other governments

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

2008 Series 2009 Series 2010-1 Series

Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term
Obligations Obligations Obligations

- -3 -

57,050 260,987 999,395

1,772 15,680 76,530

58,822 276,667 1,075,925

(58,822) (276,667) (1,075,925)

- 276,667 1,075,925

58,822 - -

58,822 276,667 1,075,925

- -3 -






Total

Nonmajor
2010-2 Series 2011 Series 2012 Series 2013 Series Debt

Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Short-Term Service

Obligations Obligations Obligations Obligations Funds
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
650,339 - 998,779 - 2,966,550
49,800 27,170 - - 170,952
700,139 27,170 998,779 - 3,137,502
(700,139) (27,170) (998,779) - (3,137,502)
700,139 27,170 998,779 - 3,078,680
- - - - 58,822
700,139 27,170 998,779 - 3,137,502
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

Baseball
Stadium/
Parks Sales Special Hays Center
Capital Tax Capital Projects Capital
Improvements Improvements Infrastructure Improvements
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 489,928 $ 1,516,491 $ 504,404 $ 88
Due from other funds 179,270 736,166 - -
Total assets $ 669,198 $ 2,252,657 $ 504,404 $ 88
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ - $ 18,358 $ - $ -
Deferred grant revenue 44,775 - - -
Total liabilities 44,775 18,358 - -
Fund Balances
Restricted:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
and improvements 624,423 2,234,299 504,404 88
Total fund balances 624,423 2,234,299 504,404 88
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 669,198 $ 2,252,657 $ 504,404 $ 88






Total

Nonmajor
2005-3 Sales 2007 Sales 2010 Parks 2010 Sales 2011 2012 2013 Capital
Tax Capital Tax Capital Capital Tax Capital Baring Cross Radio Downtown Projects
Improvements Improvements Improvements Improvements Redevelopment Equipment Riverside RV Funds
$ - $ 132,572 % 304,428 $ 256,486 $ -3 16,493 $ 3,220,890
- - - 57,888 - - 973,324
$ - $ 132,572 % 304,428 $ 314,374 $ - $ 16,493 $ 4,194,214
$ -3 11,925 $ 78,162 $ - 3 248 % 4347 % 113,040
- - - - - - 44,775
- 11,925 78,162 - 248 4,347 157,815
- 120,647 226,266 314,374 (248) 12,146 4,036,399
- 120,647 226,266 314,374 (248) 12,146 4,036,399
$ - $ 132,572 % 304,428 $ 314,374 $ - $ 16,493 $ 4,194,214
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenues
Taxes - sales
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess(deficiency) of revenues over(under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Proceeds from bond issue

Transfer from other funds
Transfer to other funds

Total other financing sources(uses)
Change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Baseball
Stadium/
Parks Sales Special Hays Center
Capital Tax Capital Projects Capital

Improvements Improvements Infrastructure  Improvements
$ - $ 4,045,839 $ - $ -
7,281 6,255 349,492 -
618 3,209 480 1
22,466 368,824 - R
30,365 4,424,127 349,972 1
49,899 2,081,954 605,614 -
49,899 2,081,954 605,614 -
(19,534) 2,342,173 (255,642) 1
1,035,399 - 200,000 -
(753,773) (2,378,540) - -
281,626 (2,378,540) 200,000 -
262,092 (36,367) (55,642) 1
362,331 2,270,666 560,046 87
$ 624,423 $ 2,234,299 $ 504,404 $ 88






Total

Nomajor
2005-3 Sales 2007 Sales 2010 Parks 2010 Sales 2011 2012 2013 Capital
Tax Capital Tax Capital Capital Tax Capital Baring Cross Radio Downtown Projects
Improvements Improvements Improvements Improvements Redevelopment Equipment Riverside RV Funds
$ - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - - - $ 4,045,839
- 22,600 120,000 - - - - 505,628
- 310 912 1,071 - - 32 6,633
- - - - - - - 391,290
- 22,910 120,912 1,071 - - 32 4,949,390
- 107,788 462,270 219,343 80,969 4,981,640 107,886 8,697,363
- 107,788 462,270 219,343 80,969 4,981,640 107,886 8,697,363
- (84,878) (341,358) (218,272) (80,969) (4,981,640) (107,854) (3,747,973)
- - - - - 4,981,640 120,000 5,101,640
- - 53,633 - - - - 1,289,032
(200,000) - - - - - - (3,332,313)
(200,000) - 53,633 - - 4,981,640 120,000 3,058,359
(200,000) (84,878) (287,725) (218,272) (80,969) - 12,146 (689,614)
200,000 205,525 513,991 532,646 80,721 - - 4,726,013
$ - $ 120,647 $ 226,266 $ 314,374 $ (248) - 12,146 $ 4,036,399
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REPORT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ARKANSAS





WILCOX & BIVINGS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
4485 Tench Road, Suite 1320

Suwanee, GA 30024
Phone: 770-904-0419
Fax: 770-904-5299

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN STATE ACTS

Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have examined management’s assertions that the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas complied with the requirements of
Arkansas Act 15 of 1985 and the following Arkansas statues during the year ended December 31, 2013.

(a) Municipal Accounting Law, Act 159 of 1973, Act 616 of 1979 and Act 308 of 1977 (Arkansas Statutes 19-5301 —
19-5317);
(b) Municipal Courts, Police Courts, City Courts and Justice of the Peace courts Accounting Law of 1977, Act 332 of

1977, Acts 677 and 776 of 1985, Act 904 of 1991 and Act 1256 of 1996 (Arkansas Statues 22-1101 — 22-1108);
(©) Municipal Court and Police Department Uniform Filing Fees and Court Cost, Act 1341 of 1997;

(d) Bonding of Municipal Officers and Employees, Act 338 of 1955, Act 677 of 1975, Act 940 of 1977 and Act 1014
of 1987 (Arkansas Statutes 13-412 — 13-412.3) (Replaced by Act 5 of 1985);

(e) Improvement Contracts over $20,000, Act 159 of 1949, Act 183 of 1957, Act 477 of 1961, Act 370 of 1977, Act
266 of 1981, Act 871 of 1983, Acts 758 and 759 of 1987, Act 936 of 1989, Act 728 of 1991, Act 645 of 1993 and
Act 1319 of 1995 (Arkansas Statutes 14-611 — 14-614);

O] Budgets, Purchases over $2,000; Payments of Claims, Etc., Act 28 of 1959, Act 154 of 1979, Acts 344 and 926
of 1981, Act 745 of 1985 and Act 812 of 1995 (Arkansas Statutes 19-4421 — 19-4430);

() Investment of Public Funds, Act 273 of 1943; Act 106 of 1973, Act 402 of 1995 and Act 1341 of 2000 (Arkansas
Statutes 13-901 — 13-904); and

(h) Deposit of Public Funds, Act 21 of 1935, Acts 57 and 62 of 1945, Act 122 of 1947, Act 18 of 1964, Acts 89 and
107 of 1973, Act 250 of 1987, Act 459 of 1991 and Acts 232 and 700 of 1995 (Arkansas Statutes 13-801 — 13-
805).

Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the City’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the
City’s compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned
requirements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing body, management and the State of Arkansas, and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Witeos & 5/0//(%&’, PC

Suwanee, Georgia
October 31, 2014
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REPORTS AND SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND
THE SINGLE AUDIT ACT





WILCOX & BIVINGS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
4485 Tench Road, Suite 1320
Suwanee, GA 30024
Phone: 770-904-0419
Fax: 770-904-5299

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining funds information of the City of North Little Rock. Arkansas (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2014. Our report includes a reference
to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department, the
Utilities Accounting Department, and North Little Rock Waste Water Utility, as described in our report on the City
of North Little Rock’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing
of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported separately by those
auditors. The financial statements of The City of North Little Rock Electric Department were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of North Little Rock's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Witeor & 5/0//(}@, T4

Suwanee, Georgia
October 31, 2014
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WILCOX & BIVINGS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
4485 Tench Road, Suite 1320
Suwanee, GA 30024
Phone: 770-904-0419
Fax: 770-904-5299

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable opinion for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas complied, in all materials respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material affect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Honorable Joe Smith, Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance; such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that
is less severe than a material weakness over internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Witeor & 5/01/(;/@, PC

Suwanee, Georgia
October 31, 2014
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Pass-through

Federal Entity
CFDA Identifying Federal
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title/Pass-through Grantor Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of Food and Nutrition Service:
Summer Food Service Program for Children/Arkansas Department of Human Services 10.559 GA025 $ 103,566
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Community Planning and Development:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 537,918
Community Development Block Grant/Arkansas Economic Development Commission 14.228 794-00132-08 593,465
Community Development Block Grant/Arkansas Economic Development Commission 14.228 794-00212-08 570,564
Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 403,661
ARRA/Neighborhood Stabilization Program 1/Arkansas Development Finance Authority 14.256 46,778
ARRA/Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 14.256 287,684
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 2,440,070
U.S. Department of The Interior
National Park Service:
Sport Fish Restoration Program 15.605 120,000
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid/Arkansas Historic Preservation 15.904 13-CLG 7,500
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid/Arkansas Historic Preservation 15.904 13-CLG 5,200
Preserve America 15.929 05-10-AP-2012 7,927
Total U.S. Department of The Interior 140,627
U. S. Department of Justice
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention:
Juvenile Accountability Block Grant/Arkansas Department of Human Services 16.523 SI 6013 15,590
Bureau of Justice Assistance:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 12,473
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2011PSN-002 5,159
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services:
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants/Arkansas State Police/S.T.E.P. Grant 16.710 65,139
Bureau of Justice Assistance:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG)/City of Little Rock Police FY12 16.738 67,232
Total U.S. Department of Justice 165,593
U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration:
Airport Improvement Program-Rehabilitate Runway Lighting Phase 1 Design 20.106 3-05-0047-20-2010 88,394
Airport Improvement Program-Rehabilitate Runway Lighting Phase 1 Construction 20.106 3-05-0047-21-2011 86,057
Airport Improvement Program-Regulator and Vault 20.106 3-05-0047-22-2011 275,527
Federal Highway Administration:
Highway Planning and Construction-McCain Grade Separation 20.205 061294 178,165
Highway Planning and Construction-Safe Route to School/Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department 20.205 22,408
Recreational Trails Program/Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department 20.219 061324 135,760
Recreational Trails Program/Arkansas Highway and Transportation Department 20.219 061337 28,854
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 815,165
U. S. Department of Energy
ARRA/Renewable Energy Research and Development 81.087 128,068
Total U.S. Department of Energy 128,068
U.S. Department of Homeland Security.
Disaster Grants-Public Assistance(Presidentially Declared Disasters)/Arkansas Department of Emergency Management 97.036 715,351
Emergency Management Performance Grants/Arkansas Department of Emergency Management 97.042 33,535
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 115,261
Emergency Operations Center Grant Program /Arkansas Department of Emergency Management FY10 97.052 213,731
Homeland Security Grant Program/Arkansas Department of Emergency Management LETPA FY11 97.067 11,636
Homeland Security Grant Program/Arkansas Department of Emergency Management SHSGP FY11 97.067 25,771
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 1,115,285
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 4,908,374

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal awards
activity of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas under programs of the federal government for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in, the preparation of, the basic
financial statements. In addition, because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, it is not intended to and does not represent the financial position,
changes in net position, or cash flows of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles of State, Local, and
Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to

reimbursement.

Pass-through entity numbers are presented where available.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

EINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of Auditors’ Report Issued:

< Unmodified.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

<> No material weaknesses identified.

<> No significant deficiencies identified.

< No noncompliance material to financial statements noted.
FEDERAL AWARDS

Types of Auditors’ Report Issued on Compliance for Major Programs

< Unmodified

Internal Control Over Major Programs:

< No material weaknesses identified.
“ No significant deficiencies identified.

< No audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133.

Identification of Major Programs

CFDA #14.218 - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development/Office of Community
Planning and Development/Community Block Grants/Entitlement Grants.

CFDA #14.228 - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development/Office of Community
Planning and Development/Community Block Grants/Arkansas Economic Development Commission.

CFDA #14.239 - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development/Office of Community
Planning and Development/Home Investment Partnership Program.

CFDA #14.256 - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development/Office of Community
Planning and Development/ARRA/Neighborhood Stabilization Program #1/Arkansas Development
Finance Authority.

CFDA #14.256 - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development/Office of Community
Planning and Development/ARRA/Neighborhood Stabilization Program #2.

CFDA #20.106 - United States Department of Transportation//Federal Aviation Administration/Airport
Improvement Program/Rehabilitate Runway Lighting Phase | Design

CFDA #20.106 - United States Department of Transportation//Federal Aviation Administration/Airport
Improvement Program/Rehabilitate Runway Lighting Phase I Construction

CFDA #20.106-United States Department of Transportation//Federal Aviation Administration/Airport
Improvement Program/Regulator and Vault

CFDA #97.036-United States Department of Homeland Security/Disaster Grants/Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters)/Arkansas Department of Emergency Management
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS - CONTINUED

Other

0,

% The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

0,

0,

% The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

SECTION 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

o,

< None

SECTION 111 1 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

< None
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Findings - Financial Statement Audit @ December 31, 2012:

0,

< None

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Awards Programs Audit @ December 31, 2012:

< None
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
120 MAIN STREET
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114
501-975-8800

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

< As there were no findings for the year ended December 31, 2013, there are no corrective actions.
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CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council of the
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas (the UAD) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

dﬁM% '

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
July 22,2014

P.O. Box 13986 - Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massie Road - North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 |Fax (501) 753-6706





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
ASSETS 2013 2012
Current assets:
Cash $ 1,129,609 $ 1,421,240
Certificates of deposit 964,023 962,251
Restricted cash and investments — current 930,264 1,054,519
Accounts receivable:
Collection fees 204,457 215,240
Other 3,238 3,292
Prepaid expenses 81,404 98,957
Total current assets 3,312,995 3,755,499

Noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent cash and investments:

Cash - restricted 1,653,573 1,247,609

Certificates of deposit — restricted 2,450,000 2,450,000

Accrued interest 7,858 9,304

4,111,431 3,706,913

Less amount required to meet current obligations (930,264) (1,054,519)

Total noncurrent cash and investments 3,181,167 2,652,394
Capital assets:

Equipment 1,004,278 965,669

Less accumulated depreciation (816,453) (800,894)

Total capital assets, net 187,825 164,775

Total noncurrent assets 3,368,992 2,817,169

Total assets 6,681,987 6,572,668

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable:

Other city departments and governmental agencies 283,318 387,203
Current portion of customer deposits 930,264 1,054,519
Accrued expenses 371,997 346,980
Total current liabilities 1,585,579 1,788,702
Noncurrent liabilities:
Interest earned on restricted investments 9,578 13,664
Customer deposits, less current portion 3,114,062 2,598,220
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,123,640 2,611,884
Total liabilities 4,709,219 4,400,586
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 187,825 164,775
Unrestricted 1,784,943 2,007,307
Total net position 1,972,768 2,172,082
Total liabilities and net position $ 6,681,987 $ 6,572,668

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
Operating revenues:
Collection $ 2,359,970 $ 2,371,525
Other 49,045 80,015
Total operating revenues 2,409,015 2,451,540
Operating expenses:
Salaries 1,298,096 1,199,853
Payroll taxes 97,335 88,801
Employee benefits 336,921 311,434
Insurance 15,805 13,314
Postage 143,532 148,225
Professional services 7,000 8,250
Supplies 75,267 67,663
Telephone 17,047 22,161
Maintenance — equipment 368,111 268,422
Depreciation 71,268 80,439
Miscellaneous 57,338 50,244
Utilities 126,619 124,107
Total operating expenses 2,614,339 2,382,913
Operating income (loss) (205,324) 68,627
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 6,010 2,926
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 6,010 2,926
Change in net position (199,314) 71,553
Net position, beginning of year 2,172,082 2,100,529
Net position, end of year $ 1,972,768 $ 2,172,082

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from other governments
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income
Net change in certificates of deposit
Purchases of equipment
Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Net change in customer deposits
Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Item not requiring cash:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and accrued interest
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
interest earned on restricted investments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2013 2012
$ 2419852 $ 2,442,081
(1,729,550) (1,564,809)
(877,476) (602,926)
(187,174) 274,346
6,010 2,926
1,772) (3,777)
(94,318) (72,964)
(90,080) (73,815)
391,587 322,749
391,587 322,749
114,333 523,280
2,668,849 2,145,569
$ 2783182 $ 2,668,849
$  (205324) $ 68,627
71,268 80,439
10,837 (9,459)
18,999 10,987
(82,954) 123,752
$ (187,174) $ 274,346






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity

The Utilities Accounting Department (the UAD) of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, provides billing and
collection services for the North Little Rock Electric, Sanitation and Recycling departments and certain other
governmental agencies and utilities in Pulaski County, Arkansas. Collections are remitted regularly to these
departments and districts. The UAD generates revenue by charging a collection fee based on the number of bills
rendered. These financial statements present only the UAD, an internal service fund, and are not intended to present
the financial position or changes in financial position of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the City).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the UAD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the economic
resources measurement focus. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities are recognized when exchange
transactions take place. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the principal ongoing operations of the UAD. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues (expenses) in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

Statement of Cash Flows
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the UAD considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are comprised of certificates of deposit and are valued at the lower of cost or fair value. Investment
income includes interest income and is reflected as other income in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to entities for which the UAD provides billing and collection
services. Accounts receivable are ordinarily due 14 days after the issuance of the invoice. Accounts past due for more
than 30 days are considered delinquent. Delinquent receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation
and specific circumstances of the customer.

Risk Management

The UAD is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; business
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illness; natural disasters; and employee health and accident
benefits.

The UAD has joined together with other governmental services to form the Arkansas Municipal League (the Pool), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members.
The UAD pays an annual premium to the Pool for its insurance coverage.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
The Pool’s governing agreement specifies that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial carriers for claims in excess of specified stop loss amounts. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years, nor has there been a significant reduction in
coverage during the fiscal year.

Compensated Absences

The UAD policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be realized as paid
time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. The expense and related liability are recognized as vacation
benefits as earned whether the employee is expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. The expense and
related liability for sick leave benefits are recognized when earned to the extent the employee is expected to realize
the benefit in cash determined using the termination payment method. Sick leave benefits expected to be realized as
paid time off are recognized as expense when the time off occurs and no liability is accrued for the benefits
employees have earned but not yet realized. Compensated absence liabilities are computed using the regular pay and
termination pay rates in effect at the date of the Statement of Net Position. Accrued expenses on the Statements of
Net Position include liabilities for compensated absences in the amount of $209,458 and $224,746 at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used to finance the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when they are to be used for a particular purpose as specified by
creditors, grantors, or donors external to the UAD, including amounts to be deposited with trustees as required by
bond indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related liabilities. The UAD’s policy is to first apply
restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position is available.

Income Taxes

As a governmental function of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, the UAD is exempt from income taxes under
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law. However, the UAD is subject to federal
income tax on any unrelated business taxable income.

Date of Management’s Review
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 22, 2014, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The UAD’s deposit policy is to require collateralization of all deposits in excess of federal depository insurance. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, $6,361,440 and $6,198,422, respectively, of the UAD’s bank balances of $6,861,440
and $6,698,422, respectively, were uninsured but were collateralized by the pledging financial institution. There were
no bank balances uninsured and uncollateralized at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Investment Income
Investment income consisted of interest income of $6,010 and $2,926 for 2013 and 2012, respectively.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT INCOME (continued)

Summary of Carrying Values

The carrying values of bank deposits are included in the Statements of Net Position as follows:

Carrying value:
Deposits

Included in the following Statement of Net Position captions:

Current assets - cash

Current assets - certificates of deposit

Restricted cash and investments:
Cash
Certificates of deposit

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

2013 2012
$ 6,197,205 $ 6,081,100
1,129,609 1,421,240
964,023 962,251
1,653,573 1,247,609
2,450,000 2,450,000
$ 6,197,205 $ 6,081,100

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The UAD uses the straight-line method of
depreciation in allocating the cost of the capital assets and equipment to operations over estimated useful lives of 5

to 10 years.

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Capital assets at historical cost:
Equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Capital assets at historical cost:
Equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

2013
Beginning
Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
$ 965,669 $ 94,318 $ (55,709) $ 1,004,278
(800,894) (71,268) 55,709 (816,453)
$ 164,775 $ 23,050 $ - $ 187,825
2012
Beginning
Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
$ 910,201 $ 72,964 $ (17,496) $ 965,669
(737,951) (80,439) 17,496 (800,894)
$ 172,250 $ (7,475) $ - $ 164,775






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — OTHER CITY DEPARTMENTS AND GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Accounts payable to other City departments and governmental entities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2013 Electric Recycle Sanitation Total

Collected and uncollected
billings to customers $ 4,711,240 $ 74,247 $ 7,824 $ 4,793,311

Uncollected billings to customers (4,431,877) (70,761) (7,355) (4,509,993)

Accounts payable — other City departments
and sewer districts $ 279,363 $ 3,486 $ 469 $ 283,318

December 31, 2012 Electric Recycle Sanitation Total

Collected and uncollected
billings to customers $ 5,160,928 $ 74,096 $ 7,396 $ 5,242,420

Uncollected billings to customers (4,778,353) (69,917) (6,947) (4,855,217)

Accounts payable — other City departments
and sewer districts $ 382,575 $ 4,179 $ 449 $ 387,203

NOTE 5: OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

City employees assigned to the UAD participate in the annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan sponsored
by the City (the Plan). Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45), requires that employers
providing post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose annual OPEB cost and net OPEB
obligation in their financial statements and disclose other information about their OPEB plans, including the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL).

The Plan allows employees to continue health insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although retirees are required
to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher cost of covering retirees results in a subsidy to
those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.

The UAD recorded an OPEB cost of $11,264 for 2013 and $14,648 for 2012, and a net OPEB obligation of $92,791 and
$81,527 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The UAD’s share of the UAAL at January 1, 2013 (the most
recent actuarial valuation date) was $82,527 and is not recorded in the financial statements. The UAAL will be
included in the annual OPEB cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB obligation and UAAL were
computed using a discount rate of 5.5% and a healthcare cost inflation rate, which begins at 10.0% and decreases
over a period of nine years to an ultimate rate of 5.0%. Additional plan disclosures required by GASB 45 may be found
in the 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6: PENSION PLANS

Certain employees of the UAD are covered by the “Retirement System of the City of North Little Rock (Non-Uniform
Employees)”. The provisions of the plan call for employee contributions of 4% of gross earnings to be paid through
payroll withholdings. Each month, the UAD contributes 6% of each employee’s respective monthly compensation.
Pension expense reflected in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was $72,989
and $66,464, respectively. Additional disclosures regarding funding status and composition of the pension benefit
obligations are contained in the 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas.

NOTE 7: NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following standards that are required to be adopted by the UAD:

GASB Statement No. 67 — Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, issued
June 2012, will be effective for the UAD for the year ending December 31, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement replaces the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria.

GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No.
27, issued June 2012, will be effective for the UAD for the year ending December 31, 2015. The objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This
Statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
covered by the scope of the Statement.

GASB Statement No. 71 — Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, issued November 2013, will be effective for the UAD for the year ending
December 31, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts
associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing
entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension
liability.
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723 Maple Street
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114-4623

November 17, 2014

Mayor Joe Smith
300 Main Street
North Little Rock, AR 72114

Mayor Smith:

| am requesting that you sponsor legislation for the following:
e 100kw Cummins or Kohler 3-Phase Generator
e 60kw Kohler, Single-phase Generator
e 60kw Mixed Brand 3-phase Generator

A&A Service Electric, Inc., 11420 Jack Duncan Road, Cabot, AR 72023 501-529-1089
3 — Generators for Central Station @723 Maple Street, Station 2 @3700 E. Broadway, Station 7@
2401 McCain Blvd

Central Station Generator $ 58,400.00
Station 2 Generator 44,800.00
Station 7 Generator 46,600.00
Total price includes tax and shipping, price is turnkey install $149,800.00

The amount of $149,800.00 should be appropriated from Act 833 Funds.

Sincerely, CILED Q35 Ao, P
i T2 S f i s
w ; BY_ (Ae { [ Z/M?E(it‘“jj;r
DATE_ %* /‘8/“7’ I S
James Murphy Diane Whithey, City Cierk i Collector

Fire Chief Nortr Little J20dk, frkopsis—
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A&A Service Electric, Inc. Daie: 11-17-14
11420 Jack Duncan Rd.

Cabot, AR 72023

501-529-1089- phone 501-988-0144- fax

Lic. No: 0075980415 M 7118 alexguaj@aol.com

Project: NLR Fire Stations- Generators
A&A Service Electric is pleased to provide you the following proposal:

We will furnish and instal] Genset Units as follows:

Qty: 3- Generators for Fire Station #1, Fire Station #2, and Fire Station #7

Fire Station #1 Generator $58,400.00
Fire Station #2 Generator $44.800.00
Fire Station #7 Generator $46.600.00
Total price includes tax and shipping, price is turnkey install: $149,800.00

Includes: turn key operating system- all electrical equipment; Low hour Genset Units, Auto
Transfer Switches, concrete pad, trenching, conduit/wire, j-boxes, fuel, electricians labor, taxes,

Insurance, start-up & training

Al products sold and installed by our company will carry our standard One Year Parts and Labor
Warranty. All work will be completed in a workiman-like manner according to national practices. Qur

warkers are fully covered with Worker’s Compensation and Commercial Liability Tnsurances.

VAN S o

AR LRV 7 e e

:"c';uajww, M-7118
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)SE( Whitbey, Diane

From: Scott, Karen

Sent: Monday, November 17, 2014 3:50 PM
To: Whitbey, Diane

Subject: Council Agenda

Please place the following on the council agenda for November 24, 2014 under “Communications”:
1. FY13 Audited Financial Statements — City of North Little Rock
2. FY13 Audited Financial Statements — NLR Utilities Accounting Department

I will distribute the copies to them at the meeting that night, but we have a PDF version of each, if you think we should
send them out ahead of time. Thank you very much.

Karen Scott
Finance Director

City of North Little Rock
501-975-8800

FILED ' .
m- fw‘.______ﬁ__ PM.

o Y%“—E _
———

DATE 1‘!3_/15//5%

Diane Wi bey, ( H; Clerk a and C Collecy

No nhL » 1)
RECEIVED b, {5/







Mayor Joe A. Smith

City Clerk Diane Whitbey

City Attorney C. Jason Carter

NORTH LITTLE ROCK

City Council Members
Ward 1 Debi Ross
Beth White
Ward 2 Linda Robinson

Maurice Taylor

Ward 3 Steve Baxter
Bruce Foutch
Ward 4 Murry Witcher
Charlie Hight

“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.
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Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations.
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in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

By A. de Tocqueville
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City Council Agenda | 2
November 24, 2014 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Mayor Mark Stodola, City of North Little Rock letter to Mayors, Board and City
Council members re: recent letter from Pulaski County Judge Buddy Villines

pertaining to Jail Funding.

2. James Murphy, North Little Rock Fire Chief letter to Mayor Smith re: sponsoring
legislation request to purchase generators for Central Station, Station 2 and Station 7.

3. Karen Scott, Finance Director email re: FY 13 Audited Financial Statements - City of

North Little Rock and FY 13 Audited Financial Statements - NLR Utilities
Accounting Department.

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS

R-14-171 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2225 Fendley
Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures (owner:

Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

Held Convene a public hearing

R-14-172 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2800 John
Ashley Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures
(owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

Held Convene a public hearing

0-14-95  Alderman Witcher
Amending Section 7.1.3 of Chapter 2 (Animal Control) of the North Little Rock
Municipal Code regarding keeping of Fowl in the city

Read 3 times and held public hearing held 11-10-14

CONSENT AGENDA
R-14-207 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Donald B. Blakey to the North Little Rock Airport Commission

R-14-208 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jim Julian to the North Little Rock Airport Commission
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R-14-209 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Mark K. Halter to the North Little Rock Airport Commission

R-14-210 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Joyce Brewer to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-211 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Betsy Davies to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-212  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Bubba Earnhart to the North Little Rock City Beautiful
Commission

R-14-213  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Gayle Fisher to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-214 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Pat Green to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-215 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Becky Hight to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission






City Council Agenda | 5
November 24, 2014 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

R-14-216 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Susan Langley to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-217 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Julie Richards to the North Little Rock City Beautiful Commission

R-14-218 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Debra Roberts to the North Little Rock Historic District
Commission

R-14-219 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Charles R. Hart to the North Little Rock Historic District
Commission

R-14-220 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Kristal Clark to the North Little Rock History Commission

R-14-221 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jon W. Beavers to the North Little Rock History Commission

R-14-222  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Basil Shoptaw to the North Little Rock Housing and Building
Board of Adjustment and Appeals
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R-14-223  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Jackie M. Alexander to the North Little Rock Planning Commission

R-14-224  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Charley Foster to the North Little Rock Planning Commission

R-14-225 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Tom Brown to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-226 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Andy Hight to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-227 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Carl Jackson to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-228 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Steve Sparr to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals

R-14-229 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Mike Abele to the North Little Rock Planning Commission Board
of Adjustment and Appeals
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R-14-230 Mayor Smith
Reappointing D. L. Lindsey to the North Little Rock Residential Housing
Facilities Board

R-14-231 Mayor Smith
Reappointing Cathy McGlothin to the North Little Rock Residential Housing
Facilities Board

R-14-232  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Virginia Raum to the North Little Rock Senior Citizens
Commission

R-14-233  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Dorothy Romes to the North Little Rock Senior Citizens
Commission

R-14-234  Mayor Smith
Reappointing Clark McGlothin to the North Little Rock Waste Water Treatment
Committee

R-14-235 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned vehicles and parts as surplus; providing for auction

thereof

R-14-236 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned computer workstations as surplus; providing for
auction thereof
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R-14-237 Mayor Smith
Amending the 2014 Budget for the North Little Rock Electric Department;
appropriating additional funds for tree trimming expenses ($250,000.00 - NLRED
Cash Reserves)

R-14-238 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a right-of-way easement from
the City of North Little Rock to Central Arkansas Water

R-14-239  Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an easement from the City of
North Little Rock to Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P. to allow construction of a
Gas Pipeline

NEW BUSINESS

RESOLUTIONS

R-14-240 Mayor Smith
Approving and adopting a five (5) year Capital and Reserve Plan for the North
Little Rock Electric Department

R-14-241 Mayor Smith
Approving amounts of liens to be certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector
against certain properties as a result of grass cutting expenses and abatement of
other nuisances

Convene a public hearing
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R-14-242 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 1718 West
19th Street to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures
(owner: Terry Melton)

Convene a public hearing

ORDINANCES

0-14-103 Mayor Smith
Amending Section 2.2 of Ordinance No. 7697 (the Zoning Ordinance) to add a
definition for "Columbarium" and amend the definition for "Church or Place of

Worship" to include columbarium as an appurtenance on church property

0-14-104  Alderman Baxter
Amending Article 21 (Table of Permitted Uses) of Ordinance No. 7697 (the
Zoning Ordinance) to allow "Office, General" in certain zones

0-14-105  Alderman Baxter
Reclassifying property located along Bayou Road from C-2 to R-1 to recognize
and allow residential homes by amending Ordinance No. 7697 (applicant: Eric
Holloway)

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it

to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened; speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic
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Respectfully submitted,

Diane Whitbey, CAMC / MMC
City Clerk and Collector

Words to live by
We have so much, yet many Americans feel dissatisfied.

Somehow the full table, symbol of abundance to the pilgrims, is not enough.

We yearn for something far beyond the material satisfaction.
Find your place in history this Thanksgiving by stretching beyond your table.

Celebrate your survival by offering peace and sharing with your neighbors.
Make the shift from an illogical feeling of lack to the recognition of abundance.
Invite the Spirit to your feast, and prepare to feed the world.
Jennifer James

City Offices will be closed, Thursday, November 27, 2014, and
Friday, November 28, 2014in observance of Thanksgiving.
Garbage routes will run one-day delayed the remainder of the week
(Thursday's pickup will be Friday and Friday's pickup will be Saturday).

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.

To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda and look for the Adobe PDF Agenda file.






November 10, 2014

Six o-clock P.M.

North Little Rock City Hall Council Chambers
300 Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas

The regular meeting of the North Little Rock City Council scheduled for Monday, November 10, 2014,
was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the honorable Mayor JOE A. SMITH.

The roll having been called and the following Aldermen answered to their names: DEBI ROSS, BETH
WHITE, LINDA ROBINSON, STEVE BAXTER, CHARLIE HIGHT and MURRY WITCHER (6/0).
Aldermen MAURICE TAYLOR and BRUCE FOUTCH were absent. City Clerk Diane Whitbey and
Assistant City Attorney Matt Fleming were also present.

The invocation and pledge of allegiance were led by Alderman Witcher.

On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Hight, and by consent of all members
present, the minutes from the North Little Rock City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, October
27, 2014, were approved, accepted and filed as prepared by the City Clerk (6/0).

On the blanket motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderwoman Robinson, and by consent

of all members present communications #1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 were accepted and filed (6/0).

1. Karen Scott, Finance Director memorandum to City Clerk Diane Whitbey re: Energy Risk
Management Committee Energy Cost Recovery Rider adjustment factor (ECR) November, 2014 -
$.0006/kwh.

3. Charlotte Thomas, Mayor's Office memorandum re: Retail Liquor & Retail Beer off Premises -
Change of Manager from George Haggard for LSL Liquor, 9127 Old Jacksonville Hwy, by
Lakhwant Singh.

4. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor's Office memorandum re: Small Farm Wine - Manufacture & Small
Farm Wine - Wholesale - NEW for Raimondo Winery, LLC, 3021 East Broadway, by Margaret J.
Raimondo.

5. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor's Office memorandum re: Restaurant Mixed Drink - Replacement from
Eric Bledenbender, for TGI Friday's, 2820 Lakewood Village, by Johnnie L. Bryant.

6. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor's Office memorandum re: Retail Beer on Premises - NEW for Restaurant
Mexican El Chiapaneco, 3700 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, by Natividad Lopez-Ramos.

On the motion of Alderwoman White and seconded by Alderwoman Ross, and by consent of all
members present, communication #2 was read by title only, accepted and filed (6/0).
2. Bernadette Gunn Rhodes email re: Employee Wellness Fair, Thursday, November 13, 2014.

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 11/10/2014
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Mayor Smith advised the railroad crossing at Doyle Venable Drive will be closed for 8 to 9 hours for
emergency repairs to the crossing. There is also work underway at 13th Street. Mr. Chris Wilbourn,
Traffic Service Direct said Union Pacific is replacing railroad crossings in several areas.

Mayor Smith asked Mr. Robert Voyles, Planning Director to come forward. Mr. Voyles advised the
city has a 211 acre Off-Road Vehicle Park (Ott Park). Nine acres have been added adjoining the
freeway. Ms. Tammie Hynum, Chief of Hazardous Waste Division, Arkansas Department of
Environmental Quality (ADEQ) came forward and presented a Certificate of Completion on the
addition. This places the additional acreage in the State Brownfield Program.

Mayor Smith convened a scheduled public hearing regarding O-14-95, amending Section 7.1.3 of
Chapter 2 (Animal Control) regarding the keeping of Fowl in the city. Alderman Witcher said the
proposed amendment was a result of conversations with residents who have or want chickens in the
city. The distance of 75 feet is exclusive to many. Mr. Billy Grace, Director of Animal Control said
they measure the distance when an application is submitted. Keeping chickens in the city has gained
popularity. Animal Control has reviewed 29 applications this year. Alderman Witcher asked about
issues with fowl in the city. Mr. Grace said if the pen was kept clean there were few issues and did not
recall receiving any complaints regarding smell. He had received complaints of people allowing
chickens to run loose. Animal Control inspects each location before a permit is issued. The permit
holder is required to get a license from the City Clerk. Alderman Hight asked about requirements in
surrounding cities and towns. Alderwoman Ross said Little Rock required distance is 25 feet and each
fowl has to be in a 3 foot by 3 foot coop. Sherwood has no restrictions. Jacksonville is 100 feet. Hot
Springs is 100 feet. Maumelle restricts the resident to one chicken every 90 days. Alderwoman White
asked how many chickens. Mr. Grace said there was no limit. Ms. Whitbey thought there was a limit
of five hens and no roosters. Alderman Witcher said younger families want to know where their food
came from. Alderwoman White asked if people could butcher their chickens for consumption.
Alderwoman Robinson asked if there was anything to prevent the person from killing their fowl. Mr.
Grace was not aware of anything. Mr. Fred Trusty spoke for the legislation and agreed with reducing
the distance. He has researched laws in other city's regarding the same and found most were not as
restrictive as North Little Rock's. He would rather live next door to four chickens than four dogs.
Sam's Club and other stores sell coops that allow them to be moved so the chickens can eat bugs, etc.
The average space is 2 square feet per chicken. Runoff should not be a concern. Mr. Boyce Burns has
seven chickens. His property is located on the corner. Meeting the 75 foot requirement would restrict
a lot of residents. Mr. Burns complimented Animal Control on their work regulating fowl. Ms.
Ashley Floyd lives on a large lot and has had chickens for two years. She has nine hens. Her
neighbors wouldn't know that she had chickens if she didn't give them eggs. She has done extensive
research regarding requirements, etc. She is the mother of four children and wants to know where her
food comes from. She knows what her chickens eat and how fresh the eggs are. Smell and sound is a
non-issue. Most people who have chickens also garden and use the compost created by them for
fertilizer. Twenty-five feet would allow more people to have chickens. Ms. Floyd said she is a
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research buff and put together a document regarding keeping chickens. Mr. Michael Dennis said a lot
of people want organic food. The quality and nutritional value of a "back-yard" egg is great. He has
neighbors who were unaware that he had chickens until he gave them eggs. He uses the chicken
manure for fertilizer. Alderwoman Ross asked him what distance he would suggest. He said 25 feet.
Alderwoman Ross asked about Little Rock's requirement of one chicken per coop. Mr. Dennis said
chickens require little room and stay in groups. There being no one else wishing to be heard, Mayor
Smith adjourned the public hearing. Alderwoman White asked that the council consider a limit on the
number of chickens if the distance is reduced. Ms. Whitbey asked that the permit period be changed to
January 1 through December 31.

Mayor Smith announced citizen public comment on agenda items. Mr. Joe Reynolds represents his
neighborhood association. He spoke against O-14-100 and said there are enough auto sales lots in the
area. The residents are opposed to any more and would like to see different types of businesses in the
area. They are also opposed to changing the zoning from C-3 to C-4.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

R-14-171

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 2225 FENDLEY DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:; PROVIDING
A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was called and held by the sponsor, Mayor Smith. (owner: Rafael Guarionex
DeCastro)

R-14-172

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 2800 JOHN ASHLEY DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES: PROVIDING
A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE: AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was called and held by the sponsor, Mayor Smith. (owner: Rafael Guarionex
DeCastro)

0O-14-95

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7.1.3 OF CHAPTER 2 (ANIMAL CONTROL) OF THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE KEEPING OF FOWL IN THE
CITY; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AN FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read one time October
27,2014, was read a second time this date. A scheduled public hearing was held this date (see above).
On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderwoman Ross, and by consent of all
members present, the rules were suspended and the ordinance was placed on its third and final reading
(6/0). The ordinance was read a third and final time. Alderman Witcher said setting square footage
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per fowl would determine the number. Mr. Grace said 10 feet by 10 feet equals 100 square feet. If
divided by four that would allow 25 chickens. Mayor Smith suggested holding the legislation to allow
the public time to comment on the proposed change. Alderwoman Ross has had calls from people who
are concerned that not everyone will clean up after their chickens. There are people who have

chickens now and do not clean up after them. Alderman Hight manages the Overbrook Property
Owners Association which was formed in 1972. Their Bill of Assurance excludes livestock, insects, or
poultry of any kind shall be raised or kept on any building site, except for dogs, cats and other
household pets. His interpretation is that Overbrook residents are prohibited from having poultry. He
has received calls asking him to oppose this. Mr. C. Jason Carter, City Attorney advised laws in the
city are passed of a general nature that apply to the city as a whole. Bill's of Assurance are a contract
and if it includes "no poultry allowed" then no poultry is allowed. However, enforcement of private
contracts is not something the city can do. The resident violating the Bill of Assurance could be
subject to a law suit by the Homeowner's Association or another resident. Alderman Hight said he is
opposed to the reduction in footage. Alderman Baxter has had several calls regarding this legislation.
At 75 feet most of his constituents do not qualify. If the distance is reduced, there will be residents
who could qualify. He has also had calls regarding odor. Alderwoman Robinson would like Animal
Control to provide a number of chickens. The legislation was then held by the sponsor, Alderman
Witcher.

CONSENT AGENDA
None filed.

NEW BUSINESS

R-14-200 (RESOLUTION NO. 8665 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND
CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH WITT O'BRIEN'S. LLC FOR
DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On
the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderwoman Ross, and by consent of all members
present, the resolution was adopted (6/0).

R-14-201 (RESOLUTION NO. 8666 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1111 NORTH "I" STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Alderwoman Ross and seconded by Alderwoman Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - $2,993.19)
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R-14-202 (RESOLUTION NO. 8667 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFIYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 4813 ROGERS STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Baxter and
seconded by Alderwoman Ross. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no one present
wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by consent of all
members present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - 33,100.63)

R-14-203 (RESOLUTION NO. 8668 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1709 WEST 16TH STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Alderwoman Ross and seconded by Alderwoman Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.

There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - $3,702.54)

R-14-204 (RESOLUTION NO. 8669 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT
1723 EAST 2ND STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS: AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Baxter and seconded by
Alderwoman Ross. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no one present wishing o be
heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members
present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - $3,130.00)

R-14-205 (RESOLUTION NO. 8670 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1721 EAST 2ND STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Alderwoman Ross and seconded by Alderwoman Robinson. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - $1.970.11)

R-14-206 (RESOLUTION NO. 8671 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 623 WEST 18TH STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK.,
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ARKANSAS: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Alderwoman Robinson and seconded by Alderman Baxter. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing.
There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous
motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was adopted (6/0). (amount - $3,053.70)

0-14-99

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE TO ALLOW AN AUTOMOBILE SALES
LOT IN A C-4 ZONE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1700 EAST
BROADWAY IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PUPROSES, was read. There was no motion to suspend the
rules. Without objection, O-14-99 was considered. Alderwoman Robinson said the applicant wants
two (2) years to pave his driveway/parking area. On the motion of Alderman Hight and seconded by
Alderman Baxter, and by consent of all members present, with the exception of Alderwoman
Robinson, who voted no, and the mayor having voted yes, the rules were suspended and the ordinance
was placed on its second reading (6/1). On the motion of Alderman Hight and seconded by Alderman
Baxter, and by consent of all members present, with the exception of Alderwoman Robinson, who
voted no, and the mayor having voted yes, the rules were again suspended and the ordinance was
placed on its third and final reading (6/1). The ordinance was read a third and final time. Mr. Voyles
said this is the first time this applicant has been before the council. The applicant has requested more
time to pave the parking lot. Alderwoman Ross asked if this was for auto sales and repair. The
applicant, Mr. Guzman, said it would be for sales only. Alderwoman Ross asked what would be on the
back of the lot enclosed by a fence. On the motion of Alderwoman Ross and seconded by
Alderwoman Robinson, and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was amended as
follows:: Section 2: (a) strike through Therearforty-five-(45)feet-(enclosed-by-fence)to-be-used-for
auto-repair (6/0). A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Witcher. Alderman Hight asked if the
parking (surface) requirement had been waived on other lots on Broadway. On the previous motion,
and seconded by Alderman Baxter, and the roll having been called, and all members present having
voted no, the ordinance failed (0/6). (applicant: Amilcar Guzman)

0O-14-100

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5806 MacARTHUR
DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS FROM C-3 TO C-4; GRANTING
A CONDITIONAL USE TO ALLOW AN AUTOMOBILE SALES LOT IN A C-4 ZONE:
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. Alderman Hight
asked if this location had been previously considered. It was on the agenda a year ago and failed. On
the motion of Alderman Hight and seconded by Alderman Witcher, and by consent of all members
present, the rules were suspended and the ordinance was placed on its second reading (6/0). On the
motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Hight, and by consent of all members
present, with the exception of Alderwoman Robinson, who voted no, and the Mayor having voted yes,
the rules were again suspended and the ordinance was placed on its third and final reading (6/1). The

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 11/10/2014
DRAFT COPY - not approved by council
Page 6 of 8





ordinance was read a third and final time. A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Witcher and
seconded by Alderman Hight. Alderman Baxter received a lot of calls regarding this legislation. He
referenced the history of zoning changes and what could be allowed in a C-4. The Neighborhood
Association is opposed to this. On the previous motion, and the roll having been called, and all
members present having voted no, the motion to adopt failed (0/6). (applicant: Todd Armstrong)

Mayor Smith asked the council to consider a motion on the previous legislation, O-14-99 (see above).

0-14-101 (ORDINANCE NO. 8689 - MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF EAST 19TH STREET AND HAZEL STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE
ROCK. ARKANSAS FROM CONSERVATION (CONS) TO 1-2 CLASSIFICATION BY
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 7697 OF THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROC, ARKANSAS;
ADOPTING AN AMENDED LAND USE PLAN FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Alderwoman Ross
and seconded by Alderman Hight, and by consent of all members present, the rules were suspended
and the ordinance was placed on its second reading (6/0). On the motion of Alderman Hight and
seconded by Alderman Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the remaining readings were
suspended (6/0). Alderwoman Ross complimented the applicant, Mike Marlar for meeting with the
neighborhood group and answering questions regarding their project before bringing it before the
council. Mr. Marlar recognized Ms. Belinda Sykes-Burney, President of the Neighborhood
Association for her efforts. Alderwoman Ross said the retention pond was an issue. On the motion of
Alderman Witcher, and seconded by Alderman Hight, and the roll having been called, and all members
present having voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was adopted (6/0). Emergency clause adopted
(6/0). (applicant: Mike Marlar)

0-14-102 (ORDINANCE NO. 8690 - ALDERMAN BAXTER)

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE OT ALLOW AN EVENT CENTER IN A C-3
ZONE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10910 MAUMELLE BOULEVARD IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Alderman Baxter and seconded by Alderman
Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (6/0). On the motion of
Alderman Baxter and seconded by Alderman Witcher, and by consent of all members present, with the
exception of Alderwoman Ross, who voted no, the ordinance was amended as follows:: Section 2. e)
strike Eridey and insert THURSDAY, and strike weekends and insert FRIDAY, SATURDAY, AND
SUNDAY (5/1). A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Baxter and seconded by Alderman
Witcher. Alderman Hight asked what kind of events would be held. The applicant, Michael Johnson
said there would be banquets, birthday parties, and receptions. Alderwoman Ross asked if Mr.
Johnson would be at each event. He said a staff member would. Alderwoman Ross asked if there
would be events where a cover charge would be paid and alcohol would be provided. Mr. Johnson
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said they did not have plans for events like that. Alderwoman Robinson advised the applicant to be
mindful of whom he rents to. North Little Rock Police Chief Mike Davis said problems in the past
included people showing up at an event and bringing alcohol. If management is on site, they shouldn't
have any issues. Alderwoman Ross asked if there were any recommendations on how many licensed
security should be provided. Chief Davis said there could be issues under certain conditions, but if
managed properly there should be none. On the previous motion, and the roll having been called, and
all members present having voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was adopted (6/0). (applicant:
Michael Johnson)

PUBLIC COMMENT

Alderwoman Ross advised a Veteran's Day Ceremony will be held Tuesday, November 11, 2014
(tomorrow) and invited the public to attend. Mayor Smith said the North Little Rock Christmas Parade
will be December 7, 2014, at 2:00 p.m. followed by a Lighting Ceremony. Santa Claus, face painting
and other activities will be on hand. The North Little Rock History Commission will also be open for
tours.

There being no further business to come before the Council, and on the motion of Alderwoman Ross
and seconded by Alderwoman Robinson, and by consent of all members present, the meeting was
adjourned at 7:18 p.m. (6/0), until the next regularly scheduled meeting which will be held on Monday,
November 24, 2014, at six o’clock p.m. in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, located at 300
Main Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas.

APPROVED:

MAYOR JOE A. SMITH

ATTEST:

DIANE WHITBEY, CITY CLERK
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.2 OF ORDINANCE
NO. 7697 (THE ZONING ORDINANCE) TO ADD A DEFINITION
FOR “COLUMBARIUM” AND AMEND THE DEFINITION FOR
“CHURCH OR PLACE OF WORSHIP” TO INCLUDE
COLUMBARIUM AS AN APPURTENANCE ON CHURCH
PROPERTY; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock duly adopted Ordinance No. 7697 to
regulate zoning in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-416 and has amended the
same from time to time (hereafter “the Zoning Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, as an alternative to burial at death, a number of individuals are now
contemplating cremation, and local churches are considering the addition of columbaria
(structures for the entombment of cremated ashes) to accommodate their wishes and
further allow families a quiet, reflective place for remembering and honoring a deceased
loved one placed there; and

WHEREAS, with the likelihood of a columbarium being added on church
property to accommodate its members and other individuals, the City Council desires to
amend Section 2.2 of the North Little Rock Zoning Ordinance to add a definition for
“columbarium” and expand the definition for “church or place of worship” to include
columbarium on church property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Section 2.2 of the North Little Rock Zoning Ordinance is
hereby amended to add the following in alphabetical order within the section:

Section 2.2 — Definitions

ok

Church or Place of Worship: A building(s) that people regularly attend to
participate in or hold religious services, meetings, and other activities.
Columbarium is an appurtenance on Church property.

*okk

Columbarium: A repository substantially exposed above ground composed of
niches designed for the purpose of the interment of cremated remains.

Editor’s Note: Added text denoted by underline.





SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: It is hereby found and determined that the above amendment to
the North Little Rock Zoning Ordinance regarding columbaria is necessary in order to
properly state its use as an addition to church property within the City and to insure the
proper and orderly growth of this land and of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas,
and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and
welfare; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance
shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Magjor Joe A. Smittrgr— Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Z v Q/‘(f- M
C. Jasqn/Carter, City Attémey‘?gv

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED ZZ/ZQAM
Byaﬁ\bp EOE m 7(-/1’.%4,\»—(2;

DATE )/*15{)’4

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North l;:ttle ock, Arkansas
RECEIVED
)
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 21 (TABLE OF
PERMITTED USES) OF ORDINANCE NO. 7697 (THE NORTH
LITTLE ROCK ZONING ORDINANCE) TO ALLOW “OFFICE,
GENERAL” IN CERTAIN ZONES; DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock duly adopted Ordinance No. 7697 to
regulate zoning in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-416 and has amended the
same from time to time (hereafter the “Zoning Ordinance™); and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance, adopted in 2005, restricts “general office”
to Conditional Use Permits when requested in all of the industrial zones, probably
because of a potential location being close to heavy industrial activity; and

WHEREAS, certain situations exist that necessitate general offices in some
industrial zones (in particular zones I-1 and I-2); however, considering that property
zoned I-3 has the most industrial activity where bulk storage of hazardous materials
occurs, the Conditional Use Permit requirement for that zoning designation should
continue at the present time; and

WHEREAS, after proper legal notice, Planning Department staff have requested
that an amendment be made to Article 21 (Table of Permitted Uses) of the Zoning
Ordinance to update and allow “Office, General” in I-1 and I-2 zoning categories.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Article Twenty-One — Table of Permitted Uses of the Zoning
Ordinance is hereby amended to change the designation of “Office, General” and its
permitted zones as follows:

Office, General — Add the permitted use symbol (X)
under -1 and I-2.

SECTION 2: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.





SECTION 4: It is hereby found and determined that general offices are
necessary in certain industrial zones and should be allowed in the I-1 and I-2 zoning
categories of the Permitted Use Table of the Zoning Ordinance in order to maintain
consistency in permitted uses; therefore, the passage of this Ordinance is necessary to
insure the proper, consistent, and orderly growth of this land and of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety and welfare; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
£
Alderman Steve Baxter Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROTED AS TO FORM:

C. Jasoéj:arter, City Attome

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED | |/ 24] aMm. P.M.

By . |l
DATE | =101

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED B(y\:} W bl
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO RECLASSIFY CERTAIN PROPERTY
LOCATED ALONG BAYOU ROAD IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS, FROM (C-2 TO R-i, TO
RECOGNIZE AND ALLOW RESIDENTIAL HOMES BY
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 7697; DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, application was duly made by Mr. Eric Holloway, 200 Casey
Drive, Maumelle, AR 72113, secking a rezone of the herein described land to recognize
and allow residential homes, which application was duly considered and approved (7
affirmative votes, 2 absent) by the North Little Rock Planning Commission at a
regularly scheduled meeting thereof held on November 12, 2014.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Ordinance No. 7697 of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas, is hereby amended by changing the classification of certain land from C-2 to
R-1 to recognize and allow residential homes, said property being located on Bayou
Road in North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas, and more particularly described
as:

Lands lying in the SW % of the NW Y%, Section 12, Township 2 North,
Range 13 West, Pulaski County, Arkansas, more particularly described
as follows:

Commencing at the NW corner of the SW Y of the NW % of said
Section 12 which is also the Point of Beginning; thence S 88°12°35” E
1318.30 feet; thence S 01°21°27” W 712.78 feet; thence N 88°51°32” W
209.93 feet; thence N 01°08°28” E 239.18 feet; thence N 88°40°14” W
60.03 feet; thence N 01°44°42” E 20.11 feet; thence N 88°47°55” W
90.20 feet; thence S 01°16°48” W 20.08 feet; thence N 88°44°55” W
957.46 feet; thence N 01°22°07” E 486.37 feet to the Point of Beginning,
containing 15.64 acres, more or less. (See maps attached hereto as
Exhibits “A” and “B”.)

SECTION 2: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.





SECTION 4: It is hereby found and determined that the rezoning of the above-
described land as provided for herein to recognize and allow residential will not be
detrimental to or interfere with other occupants in the area and is immediately necessary
in order to insure the proper and orderly growth of this land and of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety and welfare; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist and
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Alderman Steve Baxier’b—, Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C. J;sa(; Carter, City Attorney'?—?—;

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED | [.'Z9 AM.
By LM

pate___ [~ 1§

P.M.

&
X

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

RECEIVED BY > 7). W/

North Litklﬁ(ock, Arkansas

and Collector

e
\\_ )
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7.1.3 OF CHAPTER 2
(ANIMAL CONTROL) OF THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE KEEPING OF FOWL
IN THE CITY; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, an Animal Control Chapter was adopted as part of the North Little
Rock Municipal Code (“the Code”) pursuant to Ordinance No. 8180 (subsequently
amended by Ordinance Nos. 8236, 8421, 8442, 8580 and 8607); and

WHEREAS, Article 7, Section 7.1.3 of the Animal Control Chapter of the Code
regulates the distance from residences any fowl may be kept or maintained; and

WHEREAS, with smaller residential lots in many of the City’s neighborhoods, the
current restriction of 75 feet from any residence or dwelling for keeping fowl creates
limited areas in which fowl may be kept; and

WHEREAS, several residents of the City desire to keep and maintain fowl (i.e.
chickens) as a source of fresh eggs to enhance wholesome living and healthy lifestyles; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City and its residents that the Code be
amended regarding regulations on the keeping and maintaining of fowl in the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Section 7.1.3 of Chapter 2, Animal Control, of the North Little
Rock Municipal Code, is hereby amended as follows:

Section 1
FOWL

ok ok

7.1.3 Distance from residences. It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or
maintain or permit to be kept or maintained any fowl within 75 feet by air-
line measurement of any residence or dwelling or place used for human habitation
in the City, other than the dwelling of the owner of the person keeping and/or
maintaining such fowl.

Editor’s note: Additions are denoted by underline; deletions by strikethreugh.

SECTION 2: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.





SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: It is hereby found and determined that the keeping and
maintenance of fowl as provided for herein can provide a wholesome food source for
healthy living and will not detract from the aesthetic appearance of neighborhoods;
therefore, the passage of this Ordinance is necessary to insure the proper and orderly
growth of this land and of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary
for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and welfare; THEREFORE,
an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED:

APPROVED:

24
AldermaifMurry Witcher 45(7

A?g@s TO FORM:
i o :ﬁ#

C. Jason arter, City Attorney

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

q DATE 1O-2C\- [ Y
Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

X

North Little Rock, m
] i '\&
RECEIVED BY\/ o W S
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The City of North Little Rock

’ 701 WEST 20TH STREET
TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114

DIREGTOR NORTH LITTLE NOCK 501-791-8581 » Fax 601-701-8584
"‘ “' NLRCodsEnlorcement@norhlittlerock ar.gov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

September 3, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2225 Fendley Lot 10 Block 3 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro
Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

January 2™, 2014 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property
the property is an apartment complex which consist of six apartments, four of which
sustained fire damage and was determined to be unfit for human habitation, the roofing
system was severely damaged. The structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed .
to owners of record according to the Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro acknowledged the notice from our office and forwarded |
information showing that he had filed a claim with his insurance company. Mr. |
DeCastro was also advised to keep the property secured and the grass cut. During the |
next few months follow-up inspections showed the apartments to still be unsecured and

grass uncut. Mr. DeCastro was again contacted and advised that he still had to maintain

the property. Mr. DeCastro stated that he was having trouble obtaining his funds from

the bank that were released from the insurance company.

July 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection of
the properties, the structure has continued to deteriorate from water damage due the
fire damage to the roofing area. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the hazardous
condition of the structure we would need to start the condemnation proceedings. The
owners of record and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing
scheduled for September 22nd, 2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail
to all interested parties and posted on the property notifications were also advertised in
the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since January 2014. This structure is considered to be
extremely hazardous and a public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is
the recommendation of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the
structure be considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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r-14- 171
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2225 FENDLEY
DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 10, Block 3, Pike Plaza Heights in the City of North
Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No.
33N2390003000 located at 2225 Fendley Drive and
owned by Rafael Guarionex DeCastro.)





SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitutc a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

DATE C?f-l(,»/‘f/

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIV Fm%iy nu*gif
S /
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The City of North Little Rock IQ L/} I (

TOM WADLEY r L ‘ NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114

701 WEST 20TH STREET
DIRECTOR

501-791-8581 » Fax 01-791-8584
NLRCodaEnforcement @northlittlerock ar.gov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

September 3, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2225 Fendley Lot 10 Block 3 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro
Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

January 2", 2014 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property
the property is an apartment complex which consist of six apartments, four of which
sustained fire damage and was determined to be unfit for human habitation, the roofing
system was severely damaged. The structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed
to owners of record according to the Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro acknowledged the notice from our office and forwarded
information showing that he had filed a claim with his insurance company. Mr.
DeCastro was also advised to keep the property secured and the grass cut. During the
next few months follow-up inspections showed the apartments to still be unsecured and
grass uncut. Mr. DeCastro was again contacted and advised that he still had to maintain
the property. Mr. DeCastro stated that he was having trouble obtaining his funds from
the bank that were released from the insurance company.

July 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection of
the properties, the structure has continued to deteriorate from water damage due the
fire damage to the roofing area. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the hazardous
condition of the structure we would need to start the condemnation proceedings. The
owners of record and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing
scheduled for September 22nd, 2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail
to all interested parties and posted on the property notifications were also advertised in
the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since January 2014. This structure is considered to be
extremely hazardous and a public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is
the recommendation of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the
structure be considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer






TOM WADLEY
DIRECTOR

The City of North Little Rock

701 WEST 29TH STREET
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114

NORTH LITTLE ROCK 501-791-8501 » Fax £01-791-8584
V‘ b‘ NLRCodeEnlorcemen! @northlilerock. argov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

September 10th, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2800 John Ashley
Lot 21 Block 2 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro Mortgage Holder: OneBanc
Little Rock, AR Little Rock, AR
Dear Mayor Smith;

June 21%, 2013 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property
after receiving complaints regarding the status of the property, the property is an
apartment complex which consist of twelve apartments, all of which have been
vandalized holes have been kicked in every wall and ceilings, all wiring and plumbing
has been stripped from the apartments, all heating and air systems have been stolen as
well. Officer Williams determined the units to be unfit for human habitation, the
structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed to owners of record according to the
Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection
of the property. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the condition of these structures
we would move forward with the condemnation proceedings. Mr. DeCastro requested
additional time to possibly sell the property, he was granted the additional time. He was
advised that he needed to keep the property secured, follow-up inspections showed all
of the apartments still unsecured, Officer Williams tried to make contact with Mr.
DeCastro through phones calls and mail to advise him of the status, however never
returned any phone calls or responded to notices.

April 9" 2014 Officer William located Mr. DeCastro at his place of business and issued
him a citation for Property Maintenance Violations and Public Nuisance court date was
May 15", 2014 for Plea.

July 17", 2014 Mr. DeCastro was issued notice of City Council the owners of record
and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing scheduled for September
22nd, 2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail to all interested parties and
posted on the property notifications were also advertised in the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since March 2012. This structure is considered to be a
public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is the recommendation of the
North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the structure be considered for
condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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r14- 172
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2800 JOHN
ASHLEY DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 21, Block 2, Pike Plaza Heights in the City of North
Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No.
33N2390002200 located at 2800 John Ashley Drive and
owned by Rafael Guarionex DeCastro.)





SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C Ohsor Grtr

C.J asoUrter City Attom(:)?‘
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED JQ ﬁ;é AM. P.M.
By y

DATE Q*-Ng )"‘/

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North-Little Rock, Arkansas

REC[«:WE&QY%YL’ M«%J
5 o

e






The City of North Little Rock /2’ /4//7 a

rIR 701 WEST 29TH STREET
TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114
DIRECTOR 501-791-8501 = Fax §01-781-8584
NLRCodaEntorcement @norihittierock. argov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

September 10th, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2800 John Ashley
Lot 21 Block 2 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro Mortgage Holder: OneBanc
Little Rock, AR Little Rock, AR
Dear Mayor Smith;

June 21%, 2013 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property
after receiving complaints regarding the status of the property, the property is an
apartment complex which consist of twelve apartments, all of which have been
vandalized holes have been kicked in every wall and ceilings, all wiring and plumbing
has been stripped from the apartments, all heating and air systems have been stolen as
well. Officer Williams determined the units to be unfit for human habitation, the
structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed to owners of record according to the
Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection
of the property. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the condition of these structures
we would move forward with the condemnation proceedings. Mr. DeCastro requested
additional time to possibly sell the property, he was granted the additional time. He was
advised that he needed to keep the property secured, follow-up inspections showed all
of the apartments still unsecured, Officer Williams tried to make contact with Mr.
DeCastro through phones calls and mail to advise him of the status, however never
returned any phone calls or responded to notices.

April 9" 2014 Officer William located Mr. DeCastro at his place of business and issued
him a citation for Property Maintenance Violations and Public Nuisance court date was
May 15™, 2014 for Plea.

July 17", 2014 Mr. DeCastro was issued notice of City Council the owners of record
and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing scheduled for September
22nd, 2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail to all interested parties and
posted on the property notifications were also advertised in the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since March 2012. This structure is considered to be a
public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is the recommendation of the
North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the structure be considered for
condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer






R-14-207
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING DONALD B. BLAKEY TO
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK AIRPORT COMMISSION, AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Donald B. Blakey on the North Little
Rock Airport Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Donald Blakey has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Blakey as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Blakey has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Donald B. Blakey is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Airport Commission, said term to expire August 14, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
A
!for Joe A. Smlth% Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

£ NnoeGoter 7125
C. Je@\ Carter, City mtom'ey—?cvy % ;\Hﬁ_

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b | pATE //~ Y, 5 AL

)

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Limkansas
RECEIVED BY ﬁ 25







R-14-208
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JIM JULIAN TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK AIRPORT COMMISSION, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Jim Julian on the North Little Rock
Airport Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Jim Julian has provided a commendable and valuable public service by
serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Julian as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Julian has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Jim Julian is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Airport Commission, said term to expire November 12, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Ove A Pputhe—_
Mzb}or Joe A.‘§mith~76— Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J aso@ner, City Attorney ?r

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY 2 5 P

A






R-14-2904
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MARK K. HALTER TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK AIRPORT COMMISSION, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Mark K. Halter on the North Little
Rock Airport Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Mark Halter has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Halter as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Halter has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Mark K. Halter is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Airport Commission, said term to expire December 8, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPE;SER: ATTEST:
)
A‘ _— ,
Ma)t)j Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY / PD/

7






R-14-2l0
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JOYCE BREWER TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Joyce Brewer on the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Joyce Brewer has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Brewer as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Brewer has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Joyce Brewer is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

é a Aa/b._g"é‘— FILED, [/ ]

C.J asoOZarter, City Attorney g? W M
By pee

Al oA
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ | DATE // /5 3 /

RECEIVED BY

North Liye Rock/ Arkansas

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

of L=

/






R-14-2H
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING BETSY DAVIES TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Betsy Davies on the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Betsy Davies has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Davies as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Davies has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Betsy Davies is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
M@ Joe A. Smﬁ'@ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

5 (lﬁ/— é ‘ﬁ% FILED PM.
C. Jason ver City Attorney ‘73-. fﬁ%

r /A
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DATE / // / X - —j

North 7tt k, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector







R-14-212
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING BUBBA EARNHART TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Bubba Earnhart on the North Little
Rock City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Bubba Earnhart has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Earnhart as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Earnhart has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Bubba Earnhart is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Ma@ Joe A. Smith 75 - Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

FILED

By

DATE__ [N G~

North Little Rocks Arkansas

RECEIVED BY _/ ’ f?

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

/






R-14-Z13
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING GAYLE FISHER TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Gayle Fisher on the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Gayle Fisher has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Fisher as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Fisher has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Gayle Fisher is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock City
Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

”‘%cfi.f A P 9

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEYD | pATE / //{’ Q/ {(//

North Little Rogk, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

/






R-14-214
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING PAT GREEN TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Pat Green on the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Pat Green has provided a commendable and valuable public service by
serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Green as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Green has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Pat Green is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock City
Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2016.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
L
fé A} M\‘
Maé:oj]oe A. Smith #\ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rocky Arkansas
RECEIVED BY _/ "Vj

]

/






R-14-215
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING BECKY HIGHT TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Becky Hight on the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Becky Hight has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Hight as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Hight has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Becky Hight is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock City
Beautiful Commission, said term to expire April 14, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Z.MW AL

C. Jasm@dﬂer, City Attome% ’Aﬁ
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DATE / / / /f -

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Li%nsa /
RECEIVED BY t /;,Z)






R-14-2/b
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING SUSAN LANGLEY TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Susan Langley on the North Little
Rock City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Susan Langley has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Langley as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Langley has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Susan Langley is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission, said term to expire February 14, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C) a LA*——- &%\ FILED I /

C. Jason @ﬂcr, City Attorney #2_ 7&{%4 " MW(L P. MA@

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b | DATE / /- / /{t/

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Litile Rocky/Arkansas
RECEIVED BY %7
LZ







R-14-<17
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JULIE RICHARDS TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK CITY BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Julie Richards on the North Little
Rock City Beautiful Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Julie Richards has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Richards as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Richards has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Julie Richards is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
City Beautiful Commission, said term to expire March 14, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

MUr Toe A. Smlthﬁ‘“ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
e Cofer Al
ol S . FILED AM. P.M.
: ason er, C1 ttorne .
ty Attomey 7 By / (22, m(?
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b ATE /J 4 ;{ /(

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North 173 Rock, rkansas
RECEIVED BY

./






R-14-218
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING DEBRA ROBERTS TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Debra Roberts on the North Little
Rock Historic District Commission will expire December 27, 2014; and

WHEREAS, Debra Roberts has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Roberts as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Roberts has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Debra Roberts is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Historic District Commission, said term to expire December 27, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.{H’O(I'(-C%;'%;Aﬁ% FILED /[/2¢/ AM
By M&%Mﬁ

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DATE ~/ %/ ~ / C_/

North Little Rock, Arkansas

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

RECEIVED Btél 7’) /?// Mﬁ)&()
.






R-14- 219
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CHARLES R. HART TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Charles R. Hart on the North Little
Rock Historic District Commission will expire December 27, 2014; and

WHEREAS, Charles R. Hart has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Hart as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Hart has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Charles R. Hart is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Historic District Commission, said term to expire December 27, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
MaM Joe A. Sniith ]7? Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C . J)ﬁ/hﬁ 6/\7&— FILED

C. Jaso@ﬂer, City Attofney?a, ﬂ, ﬂ“\/{? {',&,, m Lu. ‘:(, /& W”-<$

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b | pATE | |~ 1 A / o

North Littlﬁﬂock Arkansas

RECEIVED B\K 7 , /\W“u%

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector







R-14-280
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING KRISTAL CLARK TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK HISTORY COMMISSION, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Kristal Clark on the North Little Rock
History Commission will expire December 27, 2014; and

WHEREAS, Kristal Clark has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Clark as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Clark has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Kristal Clark is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
History Commission, said term to expire December 27, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: M ATTEST:
M@r Joe A. Sm‘i’th%_, Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C R Wé—‘&{-—s FILED MQM

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEYd | pATE

/L (

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

o By

North Littl mnsas :
RECEIVED BY / %
| /f [ 4






R-14-Z21
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JON W. BEAVERS TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK HISTORY COMMISSION, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Jon W. Beavers on the North Little
Rock History Commission will expire December 27, 2014; and

WHEREAS, Jon Beavers has provided a commendable and valuable public service
by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Beavers as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Beavers has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Jon W. Beavers is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
History Commission, said term to expire December 27, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
St

Mayor Joe A. Smillizzy Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J as.onedrte;-, City Attorne)% FIL% 7 A j{wﬁ .

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DATE // - /! f /Q/ f |

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North LiﬁWms
RECEIVED BY _/ / 75

i <74

—
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R-14- 222
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING BASIL SHOPTAW TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK HOUSING & BUILDING BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Basil Shoptaw on the North Little
Rock Housing & Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (Sign Board) has expired; and

WHEREAS, Basil Shoptaw has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this board and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to keep
Mr. Shoptaw as a member of this board; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Shoptaw has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Basil Shoptaw is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Housing & Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (Sign Board), said term to expire
January 28, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

M&ybr Joc Ar Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C = Ormg—y— é:lé(——\ FILE AM.
C.J asor(ther, City Attome}’?@* %/M

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DZT\];: / /»L / g = / (/f

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY

/






R-14-223
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JACKIE M. ALEXANDER
TO THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Jackie M. Alexander on the North
Little Rock Planning Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Jackie Alexander has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Ms. Alexander as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Alexander has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Jackie M. Alexander is hereby reappointed to the North Little
Rock Planning Commission, said term to expire April 28, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

SPONSOR:
(e |, Spurb
hl@fr Joe A. S‘W Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

I
C - Oﬂm @{0‘.—— FILED 5 AM. PM.
C. Jason yrter, City Attomey% /3(/ m; >4

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEYb | A/T}!E ) / ////?J/(_,/l J
T 7

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Litmsas
RECEIVED BY ; %2/

—






R-14-224
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CHARLEY FOSTER TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Charley Foster on the North Little
Rock Planning Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Charley Foster has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to keep
Mr. Foster as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Foster has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet as
required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Charley Foster is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission, said term to expire April 28, 2016.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

%%Q Yt

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY | pATE / M /F//

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Llulwqas
RECEIVED BY







R-14-225
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING TOM BROWN TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Tom Brown on the North Little Rock Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals will expire on December 31, 2014; and

WHEREAS, Tom Brown has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Brown as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Brown has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Tom Brown is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals, said term to expire December
31, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSORA ATTEST:
M{ygdr Joe A. Smith%—\ ' Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM: iz i

C Do Cakr e 7_

C. Jaso@fler, City Attome)% b ; TE ; £ AL;, (F ’/L /

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY,
OFFIC cIry 0 N Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY ,//// ; /Zf

&






R-14-Z220
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING ANDY HIGHT TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Andy Hight on the North Little Rock Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals has expired; and

WHEREAS, Andy Hight has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Hight as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Hight has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Andy Hight is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals, said term to expire December
31, 2015.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR ATTEST:
\

%a%or Joe A. Smtth Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: A

. |
C. Jaso@l‘ter, City Attcmey@—* E}:\TE / / /-

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b ) . g
SE0E Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Roc%;ca nsas
RECEIVED BY &{ ! .j !}j

7=






R-14-227
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CARL JACKSON TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Carl Jackson on the North Little Rock Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals has expired; and

WHEREAS, Carl Jackson has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Jackson as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Jackson has previously completed a Personal Information
Sheet as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Carl Jackson is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals, said term to expire December
31, 2016.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 7y i

C.J ason{?aner, City Attomey? E

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little R(%‘a;j;/.
RECEIVED BY /

L

i






R-14-229
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING STEVE SPARR TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Steve Sparr on the North Little Rock Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals has expired; and

WHEREAS, Steve Sparr has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Sparr as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Sparr has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Steve Sparr is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals, said term to expire December
31, 2015.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Mgyor Joe A. Smitfz— Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM: b o

C. Jasélﬁarter, City Attomey';?a——w

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

| P

North Little, Rock, Zrkansas
RECEIVED BY 7/ // M/
/4 (//!






R-14-£29
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MIKE ABELE TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK PLANNING COMMISSION BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT & APPEALS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Mike Abele on the North Little Rock Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals has expired; and

WHEREAS, Mike Abele has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Abele as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Abele has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Mike Abele is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Planning Commission Board of Adjustment & Appeals, said term to expire December
31, 2015.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

(be 4. Wit
Myror Joe A. Sfﬁ'fth%" Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J aso&taﬂer, City Attome)"f-?a

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Ro%as
RECEIVED BY // - M
v /.I' £






R-14-230
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING D. L. LINDSEY TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK RESIDENTIAL HOUSING FACILITIES
BOARD; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of D. L. Lindsey on the North Little Rock Residential
Housing Facilities Board has expired; and

WHEREAS, D. L. Lindsey has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this board and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Mr. Lindsey as a member of this board; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Lindsey has previously completed a Personal Information
Sheet as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That D. L. Lindsey is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Residential Housing Facilities Board, said term to expire November 16, 2019.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
‘A &Zﬁ—-
Maygr Joe A. Smiﬁr';zf" Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM: A
(v FILED /[ 2C/ AM. P.M.
~M—‘ (2% : L_' By V4
C. Jaso@rtcr, City Attorney?bﬁ AT 16—

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
0 ¢ L Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY

£






R-14-£31
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CATHY McGLOTHIN TO
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK RESIDENTIAL HOUSING
FACILITIES BOARD; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Cathy McGlothin on the North Little Rock Residential
Housing Facilities Board has expired; and

WHEREAS, Cathy McGlothin has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this board and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Ms. McGlothin as a member of this board; and

WHEREAS, Ms. McGlothin has previously completed a Personal Information
Sheet as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Cathy McGlothin is hereby reappointed to the North Little
Rock Residential Housing Facilities Board, said term to expire November 16, 2018.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SP(()g::)—R: ATTEST:
Ma')t(y' Joe A. Smifﬁ‘@" Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J asc@tarter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas ;
RECEIVED BY /é’;/

%






R-14-Z32
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING VIRGINIA RAUM TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK SENIOR CITIZENS COMMISSION;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Virginia Raum on the North Little Rock Senior
Citizens Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Virginia Raum has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Ms. Raum as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Raum has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Virginia Raum is hereby reappointed to the North Little Rock
Senior Citizens Commission, said term to expire August 12, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

e d. St

I\@Br Joe A. Sm-ithﬁ_) Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY % f"z{

&






R-14-€33
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING DOROTHY ROMES TO THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK SENIOR CITIZENS COMMISSION;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Dorothy Romes on the North Little Rock Senior
Citizens Commission has expired; and

WHEREAS, Dorothy Romes has provided a commendable and valuable public
service by serving on this commission and is desirous of reappointment; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interest to
keep Ms. Romes as a member of this commission; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Romes has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet
as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Dorothy Romes is hereby reappointed to the North Little
Rock Senior Citizens Commission, said term to expire August 12, 2017.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

@n Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

< (N Cnter_
C. Jasor@tcr', City Attorney?af-

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Apkansas
RECEIVED BY

/






R-14-Z34

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CLARK McGLOTHIN TO
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTE WATER TREATMENT
COMMITTEE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of the position held by Clark McGlothin on the North
Little Rock Waste Water Treatment Committee has expired; and

WHEREAS, Clark McGlothin has provided commendable and valuable public
service by serving on said Waste Water Treatment Committee, is desirous of
reappointment, and the City of North Little Rock believes it is in its best interests to
keep Mr. McGlothin as a member of this Committee; and

WHEREAS, Mr. McGlothin has previously completed a Personal Information
Sheet as required by ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Clark McGlothin is hereby reappointed to the North Little
Rock Waste Water Treatment Committee, said term to expire March 26, 2019.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

BKLONSOR:A, MD
N@g&r Joe A. Smﬁfﬁj Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C Dror CGrbor

C. Jaso er, City Attomen:@ﬁ FILED
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b &M_[ls&_mﬁ%
DATE 15 LY
Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little_Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED év_:;y? ) )4 /(Chkﬁbﬁgf

7







R-14-235
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY-OWNED
VEHICLES AND PARTS OF VEHICLES AS SURPLUS;
PROVIDING FOR AUCTION THEREOF; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, from time to time, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”)
replaces city-owned vehicles and parts of vehicles and disposes of the replaced items
through a sale; and

WHEREAS, the City has now accumulated a surplus of vehicles and parts of
vehicles that have been replaced, and there is a need to dispose of these items through
an auction (see Exhibit “A” attached hereto); and

WHEREAS, GovDeals provides a unique, state-of-the art, online auction service
which allows cities to conduct online transactions for the sale of surplus, abandoned and
confiscated equipment and property utilizing the global reach of the internet; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City and its residents that the surplus
city-owned vehicles and parts of vehicles which have been accumulated be disposed of
through the GovDeals online auction website.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the items listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto are hereby
declared to be surplus equipment, and the Director of Commerce is directed to sell the
items at an auction through GovDeals, an online auction website utilized by
municipalities nationwide for the sale of surplus equipment.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk






APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J aser-l}’larter, City Attorney ;75

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

DATE )~ 15~ i

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVEDlri)l JMPJ\’LQ{)\}) >





EXHIBIT “A”

ITEMS FOR AUCTION
Police Department Vehicles
Unit# | Year Make Model Vin/Serial # Mileage | Problems with Vehicle
295 | 2003 | Chevrolet | S 10 P/U 1GCCI9X638244030 120,932 | ABC controller bad
. Will not run, body
169 | 2004 Ford Crown Vic | 2FAFP71W14X151539 | 56,598 damaged
: Will not run, some
128 | 2002 Ford Crown Vic | 2FAFP71H12X155944 | 171,284 body parts removed
Will not run, some
72 2001 | Chevrolet | Impala 2G1WF55K019310147 | 93,184 body parts removed
Golf Department Vehicles
Unit# | Year Make Model Vin/Serial # Mileage | Problems with Vehicle
125 Chevrolet P/U 1GCDC14C6FF387386 | 27,993 | Will not run
Tractor :
1 Ford 3000 Will not run
Street Department Vehicles
Unit # | Year Make Model Vin/Serial # Mileage | Problems with Vehicle
Front end problem,
110 | 1996 | Dodge P/U 1B7HC16Y3TS620525 | 87,626 need 1o tow
Tack oil tubes need
99 | 1985 Ford Oil Truck | 1FDXK84NDFVA37571 | 14,317 | repaired, rear engine
was running
Transmission problem
1 Ton shifting, no bed, front
150 | 1991 Ford 3500 2FDLF47M8MCA79746 | 83,509 bumper, need to be

towed







R-14-236
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY-OWNED
COMPUTER WORKSTATIONS AS SURPLUS; PROVIDING
FOR AUCTION THEREOF; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, from time to time, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”) disposes
of the excess equipment by selling it in the manner provided by law; specifically, Ark. Code
Ann. § 14-58-306(c)(1) authorizes the City to sell property that is obsolete or no longer
used through internet auction; and

WHEREAS, the City has replaced certain computer workstations (CPUs) with new
and up-to-date equipment and has determined that the replaced equipment is outdated and
no longer needed or used by the City; and

WHEREAS, all of the hard drives on the used and outdated CPUs have been
removed for security purposes; and

WHEREAS, GovDeals provides a unique, state-of-the art, online auction service
which allows cities to conduct online transactions for the sale of surplus, abandoned and
confiscated equipment and property utilizing the global reach of the internet; and

WHEREAS, these surplus computer workstations have accumulated to the point
that an auction is deemed necessary, and it is in the best interests of the City and its
residents to dispose of the used computer equipment through the GovDeals online auction
website.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That certain used and outdated computer workstations (listed on
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) are hereby declared to be
surplus equipment, and the Director of Commerce is directed to sell the items at an auction
through GovDeals, an online auction website utilized by municipalities nationwide for the
sale of surplus equipment.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ONSO ATTEST:
\

r Joe A. Smlth’ﬁﬁ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk






APPROVED AS TO FORM:
C. Jas¢n Carter, City Attomey%

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED EEZ& AM. P.M.
By ﬂ‘&{]"t fmvl \:IALM/
DATE -] 551 - 14 2

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVEDBY =7, Hz@_c@a.&—’ N
7/






AUCTION Worksheet As of 11/14/2014
| 1
Name / Dept ‘ Type Serial Description
Fire I‘Computer [|MXL91312KQ HP Compaq dc7900 SFF PC (KPQ}AV)
PW |Computer MXL83309QB HPC dc7800 CMT PC (GC758AV)
Parks iComputer |2UA8421SLD HPC dc7800 CMT PC (GC758AV)
CDA Computer |2uA825194D HPC dc7800 PC (CG760AV)
Planning Computer MXL85014PN HPC dc7800 PC {GC760AV)
cs |Computer MXL8120QDL 'HP dc7800 PC (RT941UA)
Fiscal Control |Computer MXL74209HY HP Compaq dc7700 CMT (ETOB8AV)
Fire \Computer _ '2UA708083) HP dc7700 CMT PC (ETO88AV)
Planning ‘Computer |2UA7080B80 HP dc7700 CMT PC (ETO88AV)
UAD |Computer :2UA64811V6 HP dc7700 SFF PC {(ETO90AV)
| l |
UAD \Computer '2UA706128B5 HP dc7700 SFF PC (ETOS0AV)
Finance :Computer iZUA?O?OWQG HP dc7700 SFF PC (ETO90AV)
Fire !Computer |'2UA7190GH5 iHP dc7700 SFF PC (ETO90AV)
| |
Fire |Computer !2UBS3704HJ iHP Compagq dc7600 SFF PC (PU700AV)
i |
CDA Computer ‘2U853802XS HP Compag dc7600 SFF PC (PU701AV)
UAD \Computer ‘ZUBSSSOZX_R |HP Compaq dc7600 USD PC (PU701AV)
Fire [Computer ‘2UBS41044M ‘HP Compaq dc¢7600 CMT PC (PU699AV)
Fire :Computer |2UB50105J8 ‘HP Compag dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
| | 2=l N
Fire ‘ Computer i2UBSOlOSJ9 !HP Compagq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
| !
|
| i
Fire ‘Computer |2UB50105J8 HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
Fire !Computer |:2U8501051C ‘HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)

EXHIBIT "A"






AUCTION Worksheet

Name / Dept ‘ Type
F
Fire fComputer
Fire !Computer
Fire 'Computer
Fire |Computer
Fire Computer
Fire Computer
HR iComputer
Fire Computer
:Computer
UAD Computer
Fire Computer
Traffic Computer
:Qom_pqter
Housing |Computer
'Computer
iComputer
RV Park iLaptop
Traffic iLaptop
UAD IS !Server
UAD IS !Server
UAD IS |Server

[ _Serial

IZUBSOlOSJD
2UB50506VX

|2UB50506W0

2UB50506W1

1

IZUBSOSOGWZ

2UB50506W3
2UB506011Z

12UB5060446

\USW43105CT
|
|
2UB435014K

|29781185

PC-533967A
|00-31864227
A8022299A
f1099481087
0028270857

[CND83122NC

'SMSCSS63900074

CF-28MBFAZDM
QTFCSA53300178

QCHCSA43500107

Description

|HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
| 2

:HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
iHPCompaqd;7}99§EEPC(DX878AV)
[HP Compag dc7100 SFF PC (DXB78AV)
'HP Compag dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
HP Compag dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)
HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DXB78AV)

HP Compaq dc7100 SFF PC (DX878AV)

;IHP Compaq d530 SFF PC (DC578AV)

HP Compaqg d530 SFF PC (PB603A#ABA)
Gateway ATXAEG LX3 700X PC
IAlienware AREA-51 7500-R5 PC

iGateway MFATXPNT MDW 500S PC
|Sony VAIO Digital Studio PC (PCY-R553DS)
Gateway Profile 5 AiO PC (2900072)

IGateway Profile 4 AiO PC (3501314)

HP Compaq 8710p Laptap PC (KR877UT)

Panasonic Toughbook CF-28 Laptop

lSnap Applicance Snap Disk 10 Snap Server

|
|Snap Applicance Snap Server 4500 Snap Server

Snap Server 520 Shap Server

As of 11/14/2014







R-142 37T
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT;
APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR TREE
TRIMMING EXPENSES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock Electric Department’s (“NLRED”) 2014
budget provides for the expenditure of $1M for tree trimming; and

WHEREAS, the current budget for tree trimming is almost depleted and with
predictions for weather to be more severe this winter season, it is necessary to
appropriate additional funds to cover those costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That North Little Rock Electric Department’s 2014 Budget is
hereby amended to add $250,000 for tree trimming expenses.

SECTION 2: That the sum of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand & 00/100 Dollars
($250,000.00) is hereby appropriated from the NLRED’s Cash Reserves.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
]
r Joe A. Smith ?2—» Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

/) ()ﬂauv—» ér?)%__ FILED %

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b DATE

e s AM. __ PM.
C. Jasoft Larter, City Attorne?7,j By (LY - [ \@ﬂ. 4 |
1= 1% -—/cj%

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North,Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVEDBY \7?;)4/ MQ( i

1 —y

|

———
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK TO EXECUTE A RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT FROM
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO CENTRAL
ARKANSAS WATER; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8144 on September 10, 2012
appropriating funds for the City’s 20% matching share of costs for right-of-way acquisitions
and utility adjustments in the McCain Grade Separation Project (AHTD Job No. 061294);
and

WHEREAS, there is a need to relocate water mains of Central Arkansas Water as
part of the construction project to build the overpass above Union Pacific rail lines on East
McCain Avenue in the City of North Little Rock (“the City”); and

WHEREAS, to facilitate and proceed with the project, it is necessary that a right-of-
way easement be provided to Central Arkansas Water for the relocation of its water mains
and future maintenance thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a
Right Of Way Easement (substantially similar to Exhibit “A” attached hereto) to Central
Arkansas Water for the purpose of relocating its water mains.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Oped. Spel

M@}Jr Joe A. Smi Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: riep 1L74 Am -~

C O Gacfle | oLl ol Bty Vhoni
C. Jasoﬁdner, City Attorney %—u DATE | [-1% ~) .L(

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

Nortéluittle- ock, Arkansas
RECEIVED\BY / =T





EXHIBIT

/e
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Easement #12-16
Document Prepared By: Central Arkansas Water

RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT

THAT the City of North Little Rock ;

GRANTOR,

for the sum of Ten dollars and Zero cents

($10.00), and other valuable consideration paid by Central Arkansas Water, a
consolidated water association created and existed under the Consolidated Waterworks
Authorization Act, Act 982 of the 83rd General Assembly of the State of Arkansas; the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby, subject to prior recorded
mortgages and easements, if any, grant, bargain, sell and convey unto Central Arkansas
Water, and unto it's successors and assigns forever, the following described easements:

1. A PERMANENT RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND EASEMENT for the

purpose of permitting Central Arkansas Water to clear and keep clear the surface of the
right-of-way and to lay, construct, maintain, repair, replace, test and inspect underground
water mains, whether one or more, and surface appurtenances thereto, now and at
different times in the future, without the payment of additional compensation therefor.
The GRANTOR may hereafter use the surface of the easement for any purpose not
inconsistent with the rights hereby conveyed, but may not place a building, footing, wall,
structure or other improvement upon the right-of-way except that, after the initial Central
Arkansas Water construction is completed, the GRANTOR may pave the easement
surface and may use it for driveways, walks or parking areas. The GRANTOR may
permit other utility services to cross this easement at approximately right angles, but only
if such utilities first comply with whatever specifications Central Arkansas Water may
designate at the time for the protection of its own facilities. This permanent easement
shall be upon the following described lands situated in Pulaski County, Arkansas, to-wit:

A 10 foot wide strip of permanent water line easement approximately 525 feet in length
mostly lying Southerly of and adjoining the Southerly right of way line of Fairfax Drive as
established by AHTD Job 061294 with the Easterly end extending to the Easterly property
line and the Westerly portion of said 10 foot wide strip of permanent water line easement
adjoining the Westerly property line being part of Parcel Numbers 23N010006913,
23N010006910, 23N010006912, 23N010006911, and 23N010002701 all lying in the
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 2 North, Range 11
West, Pulaski County, Arkansas, more particularly described as follows:

1





Starting at the Southwest Corner of the North Half of the North Half of the North Half of
the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 20; thence South 87° 68’ 30
East a distance of 406.05 feet to a point; thence North 02° 01’ 30" East a distance of
116.97 feet to a point on the Southerly right of way line of Fairfax Drive as established by
AHTD Job 061294 said point also lying on the Easterly property line for the Point of
Beginning; thence South 39° 14’ 22" West along said right of way line a distance of
120.70 feet to a point on said right of way line; thence North 87° 36’ 08” West along said
right of way line a distance of 202.94 feet to a point on said right of way line; thence North
46° 54’ 29" West along said right of way line a distance of 64.41 feet to a point on said
right of way line; thence North 87° 36’ 08” West a distance of 73.82 feet to a point on said
right of way line said point also lying on a line parallel to and 10.00 feet Easterly of the
Westerly property line; thence North 00° 00’ 00" West along said parallel line a distance
of 63.06 feet to a point of said parallel line; thence North 87° 36’ 08" West a distance of
10.01 feet to a point on the Westerly property line; thence South 00° 00’ 00" East along
said Westerly property line a distance of 73.07 feet to a point on said Westerly property
line said point also on a line parallel to and 10.00 feet Southerly of the Southerly right of
way line of Fairfax Drive as established by AHTD Job 061294; thence South 87° 36’ 08”
East along said parallel line a distance of 79.70 feet to a point on said parallel line; thence
South 46° 54’ 29" East along said right of way line a distance of 64.41 feet to a point on
said parallel line; thence South 87° 36' 08" East along said right of way line a distance of
211.85 feet to a point on said parallel line; thence North 39° 14’ 22" East along said right
of way line a distance of 112.54 feet to a point on said parallel line said point also lying on
the Easterly property line; thence North 02° 01’ 30" West along said Easterly property line
a distance of 16.54 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.12 acre or 5,315
square feet more or less (see Exhibit A).

2. A TEMPORARY RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND EASEMENT for the

purpose of permitting Central Arkansas Water to remove all timber and obstructions
therefrom and to make excavations, store excavated materials, tools, supplies and
equipment and provide working space. This temporary easement shall begin when
Central Arkansas Water commences its initial work on the permanent easement and shall
terminate two years from that date or when that work is completed, whichever is earlier.
This temporary easement shall be upon the following described lands situated in Pulaski
County, Arkansas, to-wit:

A 10 foot wide strip of temporary construction easement lying Southerly of and adjoining
the permanent water line easement and extending to property lines, and a 10 foot wide
strip of temporary construction easement lying Easterly of and adjoining the Westerly
portion of said permanent water line easement containing 0.12 acre or 5,266 square feet
more or less (see Exhibit A).

Upon completion of the initial or any subsequent work by Central Arkansas
Water, Central Arkansas Water shall backfill and thoroughly compact all excavations to
minimize settling and shall level the surface over its excavations and pipelines, remove all
excess excavated materials and debris and leave the premises in a clean sanitary

2





condition. If the initial or any subsequent work by Central Arkansas Water damages any
fence, curb or paved surface upon the rights-of-way, Central Arkansas Water, at its
expense, shall repair or replace the damaged portion with materials of like quality and as
nearly as possible to its prior condition.

The execution of this easement does not give the GRANTOR the right to
connect to or receive service from any Central Arkansas Water facility; the right to make
connections and receive service shall be subject to the rules, regulations, policies or
ordinances in effect at the time of application.

To have and to hold said easements, rights and privileges unto the
GRANTEE, and unto its successors and assigns forever, for the purposes aforesaid.

And GRANTOR covenant with GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, that
subject to prior recorded mortgages and easements, if any, it will forever warrant and
defend the title to said easements and rights against the claims of all persons
whomsoever and that GRANTEE, its suc-cessors and assigns, shall have at all times the
quiet use and enjoyment of said easements and rights.





WITNESS my hand this day of, 2014.

ATTEST:
(Official Title) (Official Title)
STATE OF ARKANSAS )

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF )

On this day personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public
within and for the County and State aforesaid, duly qualified, commissioned and acting,
the within named -

and

to me well known, who stated that they were the -

and

respectively, of the City of North Little Rock and were duly authorized in their respective
capacities to execute the foregoing easements, and further stated and acknowledged that
they had so signed, executed and delivered said instrument for the consideration, uses
and purposes therein mentioned and set forth.

WITNESS my hand this day of, 2014.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

(SEAL)
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R-14-2 29
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT FROM THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM
PARTNERS, L.P. TO ALLOW CONSTRUCTION OF A
GASOLINE PIPELINE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Magellan Midstream Partners, L. P. (hereinafter “Magellan’)
desires to install a 12” pipeline that will transport refined petroleum products under land
in the area of Eads Road in the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas; and

WHEREAS, Magellan’s pipeline will cross under Eads Road, property owned
by the City of North Little Rock (“the City”) as shown in a descriptive drawing and
photograph attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” respectively ; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City to grant Magellan an easement to locate
the gas pipeline through the City’s Property as described in the proposed easement
attached hereto as Exhibit “C”.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute
an easement agreement (see proposed easement attached hereto as Exhibit “C”) from
the City to Magellan to allow Magellan to build its gas pipeline.

SECTION 2: That all documentation to grant the subject easement to Magellan
will be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith
SPONSOR: ATTEST:

e A Sop Ao

Méydr Joc A. Smith ™5 Diane Whitbey, City Clerk






APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C.J as@/Carter, City Attorney Paf_

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/mwf

FILED [ [/ C¢) AM. P.M.

By‘)ﬁﬂ. ('&I &ﬁi | IM;:{I.?
L~ ig-1Y

DATE

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

rceven iy 7). pbeOe
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PULASK! COUNTY, ARKANSAS
SECTION 2%, T2N-R11W
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13—20 mils FBE w/32 mils ARO 1" =10V SHEET 1 OF 2
DRAFTING DEPARTMENT MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, L.P.
CHECKED: ALA ONE_WILLIAMS CENTER, TULSA, OK 74172
”
APPROVED: PROPOSED 12" PIPELINE CROSSING UNDER
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT EANES ROAD
- PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
IBIT SCALE: AS NOTED | DRAWN BY: HMM DRAWING NO. REVISION
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DATE: 11/17/14

PLOT DATE: 11/17/14

6601-PU—-46—MR

PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
SECTION 22, T2N—R11W
PIPE DATA SHEET
FOR PROPOSED INSTALLATIONS

STATE PROJECT NO. PERMIT NO.

HIGHWAY NO. Pulaski County CONTROL SECTION

OWNER OF PROPOSED FACILITY Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P.

DATA CARRIER PIPE il
(if used)
Contents to be handled Refined Petroleum N/A
Products

Ppe Material Carbon Steel N/A

Specification & Grade of Pipe AP|-5L-X60 N/A

Outside Diameter (inches) 12.750" N/A

Wall thickness (inches) 0.344" N/A

Yield Strength (PSI) 60,000 N/A

Maximum Operating Pressure (PSIG) 1440 PSIG N/A

Design Factor (for Liquid Lin 0.72 N/A

Type of Joint (w elded, mechanical joint, etc.) Welded N/A

Method of Installation (Dry Bore & Jack, open cut) HOﬁzontal:l) ?Iirec“onal N/A

(l

Location (crossing or parallel) Crossing N/A

Min. Depth beneath roadw ay surface 10-0" Minimum N/A

Min. Depth beneath ditches or drainage structures 10-0" Minimum N/A

) ) 13-20 mils FBE
Coati
oating Material wi32 mils ARO N/A
Cathodic Protection Yes N/A
This proposed installation is in compliance with Department Standards.
DISTRICT PERMIT SPECIALIST
SHEET 2 OF 2
DRAFTING DEPARTMENT MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, L.P.
CHECKED: ALA ONE WILL_IAMS CENTER, TULSA, OK 74172
0]
APPROVED: PROPOSED 12" PIPELINE CROSSING UNDER
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT EAN ES ROAD
CHECKED: PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS
) SCALE: NONE DRAWN BY: HMM DRAWING NO. REVISION

APPROVED: |
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GRANT OF EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY

THE STATE OF ARKANSAS

COUNTY OF PULASKI

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE SUM OF SEVEN THOUSAND ONE
HUNDRED TEN AND 00/100’s DOLLARS ($7,110.00) TO US IN HAND PAID, RECEIPT
OF WHICH IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR, THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 MAIN STREET, NORTH
LITTLE ROCK., ARKANSAS 72114, DOES HEREBY GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL AND
CONVEY TO MAGELLAN PIPELINE COMPANY., L.P, A DELAWARE LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, ITS SUCCESSORS, OR ASSIGNS ("GRANTEE"), TO HAVE AND TO
HOLD, A PERPETUAL EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY TO LAY, MAINTAIN, ALTER,
REPAIR, OPERATE, REPLACE, CHANGE THE SIZE OF AND REMOVE PIPE, PIPELINES
AND OTHER EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS DEEMED NECESSARY BY GRANTEE
FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF OIL OR GAS, OR PRODUCTS OF OIL OR GAS
WITHIN SAID EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY, ON, OVER AND THROUGH
CERTAIN LANDS SITUATED IN COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION — The permanent easement and right of way shall be a
strip of land ten feet (10’) in width commencing on the southeasterly side of the right of
way of Eanes Roads and extending in a southwesterly direction S 38° 34’ 54” W for a
distance of seventy-nine feet (79”), more or less, to the northwesterly right of way of said
Eanes Road.

EXHIBIT

i C






MORE PARTICULARLY SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED “EXHIBIT A”

NO STRUCTURES MAY BE BUILT ON THE EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY
OR OTHERWISE INTERFERE WITH THE RIGHTS PROVIDED GRANTEE HEREIN

THE EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY SHALL ALSO INCLUDE THE RIGHT OF
INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND FROM THE SAME, AS NECESSARY ACROSS OTHER
LANDS OF GRANTOR. GRANTOR, AND ALL HEIRS, SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS
COVENANT, WARRANT AND REPRESENT THAT GRANTEE SHALL HAVE THE
RIGHT TO FULLY USE AND ENJOY THE EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY GRANTED
HEREIN.

THE EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY SHALL (A) TOUCH, CONCERN,
ENCUMBER AND RUN WITH THE LANDS DESCRIBED ABOVE, (B) BIND GRANTOR
AND ALL HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OF GRANTOR, AND (C) BE
ENFORCEABLE BY GRANTEE, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS
AND SEALS,

THIS DAY OF ,2014.
Magellan Pipeline Company, L. P. The City of North Little Rock
By
Printed Name: Joe A. Smith, Mayor
Its:
By:

Diane Whitby, City Clerk





ACKNOWLEDGMENT

THE STATE OF ARKANSAS

COUNTY OF PULASKI

ON THIS DAY, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC, DULY
COMMISSIONED, QUALIFIED AND ACTING, WITHIN AND FOR SAID COUNTY AND
STATE, APPEARED IN PERSON THE WITHIN NAMED JOE A. SMITH AND DIANE
WHITBEY TO ME PERSONALLY WELL KNOWN, AND THEY WERE DULY
AUTHORIZED IN THEIR RESPECTIVE CAPACITY TO EXECUTE THE FOREGOING
INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THEY HAD SO SIGNED, EXECUTED
AND DELIVERED SAID FOREGOING INSTRUMENT FOR THE CONSIDERATION,
USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN MENTIONED AND SET FORTH.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL AS SUCH NOTARY PUBLIC ON THIS
DAY OF , 2014,

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID PULASKI
COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:







R-14- 240
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING A FIVE YEAR
CAPITAL AND RESERVE PLAN FOR THE NORTH LITTLE
ROCK ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, it is essential that a strategic plan be in place in order for the North
Little Rock Electric Department (“NLRED”) to project necessary capital expenditures
and manage contingency reserves for future actions to be taken in its operations and
future growth plans; and

WHEREAS, NLRED has prepared a Capital and Reserve Plan for 2015-2019 to
project necessary capital expenditures and manage contingency reserves that will guide
such actions as:

Budgeting;

Rate Development;
Prioritization of work;
Workforce development;
Investment of funds; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of NLRED that the plan be reviewed and revised
annually to guarantee continual improvement to the system and its operation; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City, its residents and electric
customers that a Capital and Reserve Plan for 2015-2019 (attached hereto as Exhibit
“A”) be adopted for the North Little Rock Electric Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the North Little Rock Electric Department Capital and
Reserve Plan for 2015-2019, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by
reference, is approved and adopted in its entirety.

SECTION 2: That any and all resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby
waived.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith





SPONSOR: ATTEST:

Doed. Secst

Nayor Joe A. SmitlP 77> Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
C. Jas.on(-(}érler, City Attomey%

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED [1,'2 Ef AM. P.M.

Byw‘ﬁ?_mm%
L)%= 1Y

DATE

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North/Li le Rock, Arkansas
i
]

RECEIVED &
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North Little Rock Electric Department
Capital and Reserve Plan

2015-2019

EXHIBIT

§ UA”






This capital and reserve plan is intended to project necessary capital expenditures
and manage contingency reserves during the next five years (FY2015-FY2019).
It is a strategic document that will guide many important actions in the
department, such as:

e Budgeting;

e Rate development;

e Prioritization of work;

e Workforce development; and
e Investment of funds.

We intend for this document to be revised annually as part of the methodical and
continual improvement of our system and department.

INDEX
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Capital Plans
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Five-Year Capital and Reserve Plan: Financial Objectives

This Capital and Reserve Plan supports six financial objectives: (1) to manage necessary capital
projects in a predictable and fiscally sound manner; (2) to manage financial risks that are
inherent to operations; (3) to maintain sufficient cash reserves for both operational and
emergency expenses; (4) to prudently invest funds according to city policy; (5) to reduce
departmental debt; and (6) to reduce the amount of revenue required to operate the department.

¥ * *

Capital projects. Our system must be maintained and improved in order to provide reliable
electric service to our customers. The capital portion of this plan prioritizes major maintenance
and improvement expenses over the next five years to ensure the reliable and efficient delivery
of electric power. It is based on extensive analysis of our system with projected load growth in
some areas.

Manage risk. During our first year of participation in the Midcontinent Independent System
Operator (MISO) marketplace, we have managed risk through the City’s Risk Management
Policy. We manage the risk of fluctuations in the cost of power through a variable rate
component (ECR) and, through this plan, will expand on this philosophy in the management of
contingency reserve funds. We will also use this plan to manage operational risk by developing
a reasonable inventory of replacements for critical system components.

Maintain cash reserves. We must always maintain sufficient cash reserves to conduct day-to-day
operations and respond to emergency events. Through internal and external analysis, we have
found that minimum reserves of $24,000,000 will meet these objectives. This plan aligns work
flows to cash flows in order to maintain minimum reserves through 2019.

Prudently invest funds. Our cash reserves should be invested in a sound and lawful manner that
preserves principal value, maintains needed liquidity, and produces the best available yield. This
plan will work in conjunction with our investment plan to ensure the availability of funds when
needed.

Reduce debt. The electric industry has changed dramatically in recent years and will likely
continue to change. Technology, regulation and market innovation will present opportunities to
improve business practices. Outstanding debt obligations reduce our ability to seize these
opportunities. Over the next five years, we seek to restrict borrowing to revenue-producing
capital investments.

Reduce revenue requirements. We continually seek to reduce our cost of operation for the benefit
of our customers. This plan prioritizes capital expenditures according to those that provide the
greatest reduction in cost and risk.





Five-Year Capital Plan: Murray Hydroelectric Plant

1. Major Overhaul of Unit #1

Phase I - Material acquisition (FY15): $1,500,000

Phase II - Project performance (FY16): $3,500,000
In early 2015, we will complete the major overhaul of Unit #2. We believe this project will
reduce maintenance costs and unplanned outages for decades. Similarly, Unit #1 must be
refurbished. Unit #1 does not exhibit the same extensive mechanical problems as Unit #2, but
substantial cavitation of the draft tube will be costly to repair. We intend to order replacement
sections for the Unit #1 draft tube in 2015. The work to Unit #1 will begin in the early summer
of 2016 - a schedule similar to Unit #2 - and last approximately eight (8) months.

2. Governor System

FY17: $500,000
The system that is used to operate the Murray Hydroelectric Plant consists of several antiquated
components that have been updated in a piece-meal fashion over twenty years. By upgrading the
governor system, we will be able to remotely monitor and operate the plant in a limited manner.

3. Reserve Components

FY18: $1,300,000
The availability of the Murray Hydroelectric Plant is based, in large measure, on the proper
function of the transformer and relay that connects the Plant to its servicing transmission line. If
those components failed unexpectedly, the plant would be unusable until those critical
components were repaired or replaced. We intend to acquire and preserve replacement
components that would allow limited operation until repairs can be made. We anticipate starting
and completing this project in 2018.

4. Dredging

FY19: $3,500,000
Periodically, the Arkansas River must be dredged in front of the intakes of the Murray
Hydroelectric Plant. This is a very expensive undertaking, but necessary for operations.
NLRED anticipates dredging to be conducted in 2019.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Unit 1 Overhaul 1,500,000 | 3,500,000 $5.,000,000
Governor Upgrade 500,000 500,000
Reserve Components 1,300,000 1,300,000
Dredging 3,500,000 3,500,000
Total | 1,500,000 | 3,500,000 | 500,000 1,300,000 | 3,500,000 | $10,300,000






Five-Year Capital Plan: Distribution System Upgrades

1. H30 Express Circuit

FY15: $ 650,000
H30 is a heavily loaded circuit serving parts of Sherwood that continue to develop. This
additional circuit, along with substation improvements, will share the expanding load and
dramatically reduce line losses.

2. Pole Replacement

Phase I (FY15): $125,000

Phase II (FY16): $125,000
Our pole replacement program fell behind a few years ago. We have not been able to catch up
with organic labor. This project will get the pole replacement program back on schedule in a
two-year timeframe using contract labor.

3. Load Redistribution Project I (McCain/Sherwood)

Phase I - Entergy Engineering Study (FY15): $ 50,000

Phase II - Transformer and Breaker Installation (FY16): § 2,100,000

Phase III - Line Construction (FY17): $ 660,000
We continue to realize load growth in Sherwood. By expanding the capacity of the McCain
substation and constructing additional circuits, load growth may be accommodated by the current
substation fleet.

4. System Modeling (Milsoft)

Phase I - Software licensing and training (FY15): $ 260,000

Phase II - System inventory (FY16): $ 600,000
Milsoft is a geographic information system that can use advanced metering data as a planning
tool, manage outages, and increase efficiency of the department. The GIS system will predict
failures before they occur and drive preventative maintenance. A system inventory is necessary
to ensure the system is accurate.

5. Load Redistribution Project II (Lakewood/Sherwood)
Phase I - Entergy Engineering Study (FY18): $ 50,000
Phase II - Line Construction (FY19): § 805,000
Similar to project #3, this project explores the need to distribute load growth.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
H30 Exp. Circuit 650,000 $ 650,000
Pole Replacement 125,000 125,000 250,000
Load Redist. I 50,000 | 2,100,000 | 660,000 2,810,000
Milsoft 260,000 600,000 860,000
Load Redist. 11 50,000 805,000 855,000
Total | 1,085,000 | 2,825,000 | 660,000 50,000 805,000 | $ 5,425,000
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Five-Year Capital Plan: Advanced Metering

1. Poly-Phase Metering

FY15: § 1,450,000

We have nearly completed deployment of single-phase advanced meters. Upon completion, we
will immediately begin deploying poly-phase meters to industrial and commercial customers.

2. Meter Replacement

Phase I (FY15): § 1,330,000

Phase II (FY16): $ 1,330,000

Phase III (FY17): $ 400,000

Phase IV (FY18): $ 400,000

Phase V (FY29): $ 400,000
We are currently negotiating replacement of our Generation 3 remote-disconnect meters. Also,
our system contains approximately 7,200 single-phase advanced meters that lack the ability to
disconnect remotely. These meters must be replaced in order to fully implement new business
models, such as pre-paid electric service.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Poly-phase Meters 1,450,000 $ 1,450,000
Meter Replacements 1,330,000 | 1,330,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 3,860,000
Total | 2,780,000 | 1,330,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 | $ 5,310,000






Five-Year Capital Plan: Communications and Technology

1. Fiber Optic Interconnection
Phase I (FY15): $370,000
Phase II (FY16): $330,000
Phase III (FY17): $300,000
Phase IV (FY18): $120,000
Phase V (FY19): $40,000

The purpose of this project is to establish fiber optic connections to each substation. During
construction, several police and fire stations will be interconnected as well.

2. Server and Communications
Phase I — Disaster Recovery (FY15): $ 150,000
Phase II — Server/software replacement (FY16): $ 250,000
Phase III - SCADA (FY17): $ 250,000
Phase IV — Network replacement (FY18): $ 200,000
Phase V — Phone System replacement (FY19): $ 300,000

These projects are intended to ensure that our computer and communication systems are current

and operational.

3. Software Assurance Program
Phase I — Sharepoint and Lync (FY15): $ 100,000
Phase II — Warranty replacement (FY17): $ 250,000
Phase III — Office (FY18): $ 50,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Fiber optic lines 370,000 [ 330,000 300,000 | 120,000 40,000 $ 1,160,000
Servers/comms 150,000 | 250,000 250,000 | 200,000 | 300,000 1,150,000
Software assurance 100,000 250,000 50,000 400,000
Total | 620,000 | 580,000 800,000 | 320,000 | 390,000 | $2,710,000






Five-Year Capital Plan: Facility improvements

1. Expand Material Storage Capacity

FY15: § 520,000
Our new location at 1400 West Maryland has less material storage capacity than our former
downtown location. By increasing our material storage capacity at our new location, we will
reduce man-hours spent fetching supplies at the pole yard and from suppliers.

2. Ons-site Exercise Facility

FY16: § 60,000
The remote location of our new headquarters makes it impractical to use other city exercise
facilities. By constructing an exercise facility, we will improve morale, reduce lost time from
injury, and reduce medical costs.

3. Reconfigure Office Space

Phase I- FY15: $ 20,000

Phase II - FY16: § 130,000
As our business model changes, the layout of our office space must change to accommodate our
needs, such as the power working group, and combined metering staff.

4. Murray Hydro Storage

FY17: § 250,000
We need storage for large pieces of equipment that are periodically used at the Murray
Hydroelectric Plant which does not detract from nearby park property. This funding amount
may be reduced based on the availability of other city-owned property.

5. Security Upgrades

Phase I - FY15: $ 60,000

Phase II -FY16: $ 60,000

Phase III - FY17: $ 60,000

Phase IV - FY18: $ 60,000

Phase V-FY19: $ 60,000
We seek to improve the security of our critical infrastructure, such as substations, generators, and
headquarters facilities.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Expand Mat. Storage 520,000 $ 520,000
Exercise Fac. 60,000 60,000
Reconfigure Offices 20,000 130,000 150,000
Hydro Storage 250,000 250,000
Security Upgrades 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 300,000
Total | 660,000 | 190,000 | 310,000 60,000 60,000 | $1,280,000






Five-Year Contingency Reserve Plan

Our department must be able to operate under unpredictable and emergency circumstances.
Often when emergencies occur or critical components unpredictably fail, insurance proceeds and
assistance from federal and state authorities are available to mitigate our cost of returning to
normal operations. However, receiving these funds may take months or even years. The
contingency reserve fund will be used to manage these expenses while awaiting reimbursement.

We intend to maintain an adequate balance within a restricted contingency reserve fund to ensure
that we are financially able to respond to these circumstances. This fund will be pre-loaded and
the balance will be monitored monthly. When rates are revised in the near future, a variable-rate
component may be added so that fund overages will be returned to, and shortages will be
recovered from, customers.

Base Contingency Reserve Fund: $6,000,000

1. Distribution. $2,000,000

Weather-related damage is the primary cause of widespread distribution system failures.
Experience has shown that recovery from these failures may cost as much as $1,000,000 per
event. The base funding level enables our department to manage two major events before
incurring a financial shortfall.

2. Substation. $1,500,000

The most significant damage we have incurred at a substation was attributable to sabotage.
The damage was significant, but could have been worse. The base funding level enables our
department to manage the loss of two transformers before incurring a financial shortfall.

3. Murray Hydroelectric Plant. $2,500,000

The Murray Hydroelectric Plant depends on several critical components for proper operation.
The base funding level enables our department to acquire critical components that fail
unexpectedly. This amount may be reduced in 2018 after reserve components are acquired.





Capital Expenditure Summary

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Unit 1 Overhaul | 1,500,000 | 3,500,000 $5,000,000
Governor Upgrade 500,000 500,000
Reserve Components 1,300,000 1,300,000
Dredging 3,500,000 3,500,000
H30 Exp. Circuit 650,000 650,000
Pole Replacement 125,000 125,000 250,000
Load Redist. | 50,000 | 2,100,000 660,000 2,810,000
Milsoft 260,000 600,000 860,000
Load Redist. 11 50,000 805,000 855,000
Poly-phase Meters | 1,450,000 1,450,000
Meter Replacements | 1,330,000 | 1,330,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 3,860,000
Fiber optic lines 370,000 330,000 300,000 120,000 40,000 1,160,000
Servers/comms 150,000 250,000 250,000 200,000 300,000 1,150,000
Software assurance 100,000 250,000 50,000 400,000
Expand Mat. Storage 520,000 520,000
Exercise Fac. 60,000 60,000
Reconfigure Offices 20,000 130,000 150,000
Hydro Storage 250,000 250,000
Security Upgrades 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 300,000
Total | 6,645,000 | 8,425,000 | 2,670,000 | 2,130,000 | 5,155,000 [ $25,025,000

Given the anticipated year-end cash reserve (FY2014) of the Electric Department, an annual
appropriation of at least $ 2,850,000 will be required to complete this capital plan.

Anticipated reserve:

(less) Minimum reserve:

$ 35,000,000

$ 24,000,000

Available funds:

$ 11,000,000

Cash Flow

—0— Available Reserves

16,000,000 =0 Available Reserves +
14,000,000 Appropriations
12,000,000 \ Capital Expenditures
10,000,000 .\“\\\‘ ~e— Annual Appropriation
8,000,000 — \j\\ \
6,000,000 K = —»
4,000,000 << e

& & < ————— e —A
2,000,000 ——

0
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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R-14-ZA |
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMOUNTS OF LIENS TO BE
CERTIFIED TO THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR
AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS, AS A RESULT OF
GRASS CUTTING EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER
NUISANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City of North
Little Rock has corrected conditions existing on certain lots or other real property

within the City of North Little Rock and is entitled to compensation pursuant to Ark.
Code Ann. § 14-54-904; and

WHEREAS, state law also provides for a lien against the subject properties,
with the amount of lien to be determined by the City Council at a hearing held after
notice to the owner(s) thereof by certified mail or publication (see Exhibit “A” attached
hereto), with said amount (plus a ten percent collection penalty) to be thereafter
certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector; and

WHEREAS, a hearing for the purpose of determining such liens has been set for
6:05 p.m. on November 24, 2014, in order to allow for service of the attached notice of
same upon the listed property owners, by certified mail or publication as is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That after notice to property owners, a public hearing was held at
6:05 p.m. on November 24, 2014, for the purpose of determining the amount of liens, if
any, to be filed against certain real property as the result of grass cutting and abatement
of other nuisances by the City of North Little Rock.

SECTION 2: That after said public hearing, the amounts listed on Exhibit “A”
are hereby certified and are to be forwarded to the Pulaski County Treasurer and
Assessor. Except, prior to submission to the Pulaski County Treasurer and Assessor,
the list shall be updated to remove any lien amounts that have been paid in full prior to
forwarding the list to the County.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith





SPONSOR: ATTEST:

A Stk .

Miybr Joe A. Smith77 Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
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Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
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EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that lien amounts upon the following described lands will be
considered by the North Little Rock City Council at their meeting on November 24, 2014,
in the North Little Rock Council Chambers. The owner(s) has the right to contest the lien
amount before the City Council at the public hearing.

801 North H Street
Parcel #23N0460051000
Garcia Investment LL.C
Lot 12, Block 27

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

904 North G Street
Parcel #23N 0460029600
Wilma Jean Keel

Lot 15, Block 15

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

917 North G Street
Parcel #23N0460031000

Michael A. Garrett/Vincent S.

Ray

Lot 4, Block 16
Dixie Addition
Amt. $185.00

808 North F Street
Parcel #23N0460049000
Alice Young

Lot 16, Block 26

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

807 North F Street
Parcel #23N0460045800
Marcia Stewart

Lot 9, Block 25

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

1104 North F Street
Parcel #23N0460008500
Nathaniel Holmon

Lot 15, Block 4

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

817 North E Street
Parcel #23N0460043100
Lubirder Johnson

Lot 4, Block 24

Dixie Addition

$185.00

1002 North E Street
Parcel #23N0460015300
David Brooks

Lot 14, Block 9

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

1007 North E Street
Parcel #23N0460012800
Frank Butler

Lot 9, Block 8

Dixie Addition

Amount $185.00

1020 North E Street
Parcel #23N0460016100
Arthur L. Mayweather
Lot 22, Block 9

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

1006 North “E” Street
Parcel #23N0460015500
Home Opportunity LLC
Lot 16, Block 9

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

819 North “G” Street
Parcel #23N0460040600
Elizabeth Wilson

Lot 3, Block 23

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

North “D” Street

Parcel #23N0460044600
Mo-Zark Land Investors LI.C
Lot 20, Block 24

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

North D Street

Parcel #23N0460038400
Willean Norwood

Lot 8, Block 19

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

901 North D Street
Parcel #23N0460038800
Charles Squall

Lot 12, Block 19

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

822 North D Street
Parcel #23N0460044900
David Wilson

Lot 23, Block 24

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

2801 Lincoln Avenue
Parcel #33N0310032600
John N. Hutson

Lot 1, Block 46
Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00





Lincoln Avenue

Parcel #24N0090004600
Isiah Slaughter

Amt. $185.00

1700 Marion

Parcel #33N2570002600
Gloryland Baptist Church Inc.
Lot 9, Block O

Holts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1315 West 18™
Parcel #33N2460015500
Joann Green/Michael Winn

MOP E 60ft of Lots 7, 8 & 9,

Block 14
Missouri Pacific Addition
Amt, $185.00

1922 Augusta

Parcel #33N2510002200
Lois D. Shuffield

Lot 12, Block 2

Harts Addition

$370.00

2013 Moss Street

Parcel #33N2460007100
Joel Payne

Lot 3, Box 7

Missouri Pacific Addition
Amt, $185.00

2020 Moss Street

Parcel #33N2460009100
John P. & Marie Hill

Lot 11, Block 8

Missouri Pacific Addition
Amt. $185.00

1207 West 25" Street
Parcel #33N2410001700
Martha D. Griggs

Lot 16, Block 0

Myers Grover Addition
Amt. $185.00

720 West 22™ Street
Parcel #3302560001300
Adriel S. Martin

Lot 2, Block 3

Schaers Addition

Amt. $185.00

1716 Chandler Street
Parcel #33N2570001400
David R. Edgecombe
Lots 12-13, Block 1
Holts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1419 West Short 17" Street
Parcel #33N2530002500
Henry R & Monteen Purifoy
Lots 8-9, k 4

Maloney Addition

Amt, $185.00

1609 Schaer Street
Parcel #33N2570000700
Melvin Thomas Ewart
Lot 6, Block 5

Holts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1711 Allen Street

Parcel #33N2570000700
Michael Williams

Lot 6, Block 1

Holts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1800 West Short 17" Street
Parcel #33N2520004200
Lashonya C. Neal

Lots 1, 2, Block 5

Laskers Addition

Amt. $185.00

1501 West 20" Street
Parcel #33N2640016200
Brian Patrick Johnston

PT SENE NW SWBEG 20 FT N
& 20 FT W OF SE COR TH N
140 FT,W 100 FT,S 140 FT.,E 100

FT TO BEG 27 2N 12W
Amt. $185.00

2108 West 16™ Street
Parcel #33N2640016200
Dennis Tucker

Lot 10, Block 40
Laskers 2™ Addition
Amt. $185.00

2310 Railroad Avenue
Parcel #33N2340003000
Winnie B. and B H Murray
Lot 3, Block 3

Machins Addition

Amt. $185.00

2308 Railroad Avenue
Parcel #33N2340003100
Benjamin H. Murray
Lot 4, Block 3

Machins Addition

Amt. $185.00

Railroad Avenue

Parcel #33N2340002800
Jerry Ebsen

Lot 1, Block 3

Machins Addition

Amt. $185.00

2008 West 16" Street
Parcel #33N2640017500
Ameriland USA LLC
Lot 10, Block 41
Laskers 2™ Addition
Amt. $185.00

Railroad Avenue

Parcel #33N2340002900
Jerry Ebsen

Lot 2, Block 3

Machins Addition

Amt. $185.00

1515 West 16™ Street
Parcel #33N2520014300
William Ivory

Lot 9, Block 13

Laskers Addition

Amt. $185.00





2119 Moss Street

Parcel #33N2460001200
Jason D. Springer

Lot 1, Block 2

Missouri Pacific Addition
Amt. $185.00

1508 Marion Street

Parcel #33N2570015300
Argenta Com. Develop. Corp
Lot 11, Block 10

Holts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1109 West 20" Street
Parcel #33N2460007400
Richard L. & Jan Smith
Lot 6, Block 7

Missouri Pacific Addition
Amt. $185.00

Lincoln Avenue

Parcel #33N3180033300
Top Ten Inc.

Lot 2, Block 47
Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

Lincoln Avenue

Parcel #24N0130001200
McCormick Investments Inc.
Lot 1, Box 64

Topfs Addition

Amt. $185.00

1305 North Willow Street
Parcel #33N2110037100
Southern Real Estate Inv.
Lot 8, Block 42

Topfs Addition

Amt. $185.00

1116 East 2™ Street
Parcel #33N3080015200
Ameriland USA LLC
Lot 10, Block 16

East Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

320 West 14™ Street
Parcel #33N2110037800
Adriel D. Martin

Lot 5, Block 43

North Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

2009 Magnolia

Parcel #33N2110046600
Brandon White

Lot 4, Block 57

North Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

116 South Palm Street

Parcel #33N3180029500
Jessie G/Jacqueline/Pat Carter
N70° Lots 1 & 2, Block 43
Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

118 South Clover Street

Parcel #33N3180032400

Willie Mason

N70° of West Y2 Lots 4, 5 & 6,
Block 45

Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

East Washington

Parcel #33N3180031500
David Blackson

Lot 9, Block 44
Choctaw Addition
$185.00

2509 East Washington Ave.
Parcel #33N3180018500

Alisa Merchant/Charles McFee
Lot 3, Block 33

Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

2319 East Washington Ave.
Parcel #33N3180020700
Shirley Ann Hampton

Lot 4, Block 35

Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

2910 East Washington Ave.
Parcel #23N0490003200
Betty Momphrey

Lot 6, Block 4

John L. Baldwin Addition
Amt. $185.00

710 East 16™ Street

Parcel #33N2240101800
Estate of Emmitt Chestnut
Lot 010, Block 002

Fulk’s Sub of Haney’s
Amt. $185.00

118 East 19" Street

Parcel #33N2110013200
Capitol Financial & Dev. LLC
Lot 10, Block 17

North Argenta Addition

Amt. $185.00

1208 East 17™ Street
Parcel #33N2260007300
Leroy Watkins

Lot 7, Block 6

Industrial Addition

Amt. $185.00

1204 East 16™ Street
Parcel #33N2260003900
Rose Acre Enterprise LLC
Lot 10, Block 3

Industrial Addition

Amt. $185.00

2914 East 2™ Street
Parcel #23N0490003100
Mary Nutt

Lot 5, Block 4

John L. Baldwin Addition
Amt. $185.00

1215 East 16™ Street
Parcel #33N2260007900
Diversified Land Corp.
Lot 17, Block 6
Industrial Addition

Amt. $185.00





1600 West Short 17™ Street
Parcel #33N2520006600
Evelyn Miller

Lot 1, Block 7

Lasker’s Addition

Amt. $150.00

2505 Franklin Street
Parcel #33N2430001200
Johnny Williams, Jr.

N66 of Lots 12 &13, Block 0

Carman Addition
Amt, $185.00

1824 Van Street

Parcel #23N0380100100
Royzell Hall

Lot 1, Block 0

Glenview Ren. #2 Addition
Amt. $185.00

1405 Ben Street

Parcel #23N0700001600
Kevo Holdings LLC

Lot 5, Block 3

Ratterees Addition

Amt. $185.00

4514 Boyer Street
Parcel #23N0610013900
John C. Grise

Lot 0, Block 44

John L. Atkins School Addn.

Amt. $185.00

4420 Atkins Street
Parcel #23N0610009300
G.T. Hearne

Lot 0, Block 31

John L. Atkins School Addn.

Amt. $185.00

3821 Freeman Circle
Parcel #33N1570003000
Etta J. Phillips Rev. Trust
Lot 35, Block 0

Freeman Addition

Amt. $185.00

West Hill Court

Parcel #33N0200402000
Linda F. Brown

Lot 7, Block 3

Park Hill West Addition
Amt. $185.00

West Hill Court

Parcel #33N0200401900
Linda F. Brown

Park Hill West Addition
Amt. $185.00

4624 Schaer Street
Parcel #33N1510001500
Oromis Corporation

Lot 1, Block 2

Holeads Addition

Amt. $185.00

4201 Redding Lane
Parcel #33N1160001400
Al Turley

PT SE NE BEG 504'E & 545 2'N
OF SW COR N 240' N 81*50'E
181 5' S 240" S 81*50" W 181 5'

TO BEG 21 2N 12W
Amt. $185.00

100 O’Leary Street
Parcel #33N0480009600
Clarence Johnson

Lot 9, Block 19

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

907 North D Street
Parcel #23N0460038500
Griselda Buckner

Lot 9, Block 19

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

1006 North I Street
Parcel #23N0460001800
Landra Harris

Lot 22, Block 1

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

North I Street

Parcel #23N0460023600
Salvatore Pannette

Lot 3, Block 13

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

1109 East 2™ Street
Parcel #33N3080015900
Edward Shields

Lot 4, Block 17

East Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

1116 East 2° Street
Parcel #33N3080015200
Ameriland USA LLC
Lot 10, Block 16

East Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

8 Rhodes Avenue
#24N0060010000
Kenneth M. Giles
Lot 113, Block 0
Walters Addition
Amt. $185.00

1301 Crutcher Street
Parcel #33N2670002300
Jayvian Jamar Johnson
Lot 23, Block 0

River View Addition
Amt. $185.00

601 Protho Street

Parcel #23N07700014700
Walter/Dollie Faux

Lot 0, Block 233

Protho Addition

Amt. $185.00

807 Greenlea Drive
Parcel #23N0650010900
Dale H. Scates

Lot 12, Block 5
Greenlea Addition

Amt. $185.00





1209 Division Street
Parcel #33N2700015200
Deborah White

Lot 6, Block 8

Baring Cross Addition
Amt. $185.00

1317 West 15® Street
Parcel #33N2520024600
Saline & Perry G. Maggard
Lot 8, Block 22

Laskers Addition

Amt, $185.00

1311 Franklin Street
Parcel #33N2700009500
Mark/Michelle Newman
Lot 11, Block 5

Baring Cross Addition
Amt. $185.00

201 Redwood Street

Parcel #24N0090004700
Marshall G./Diana J. Aldridge
PT NW NW BEG 375'S & 15'E
OF NW COR E82' S56' w82
N56' TO POB 6-1N-11W

Amt. $185.00

3019 East 4" Street
Parcel #23N0450004800

Marcus Abraham

PT SW BEG INTERS E L BALWIN
ADDN&N LN E3ST E132'N TO N
LN 4ST E200'TO P OB E62'N156'TO
S LN CRIP RR SW62 8' S146 06'TO
BEG 312N 11W

Amt. $185.00

2300 East Washington Avenue
Parcel #33N3180027000

I & Investment Properties L1.C
Lot 12, Block 40

Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

219 South Laurel A & B
Parcel #33N3180038200
Aseliner Blakesley/

Paul Scruggs

Lot 4, Block 51
Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

1102 East Washington Avenue
Parcel #34N0070000400
Barbara Ruth Royce

Lot 4, Block 1

Riverside Addition

Amt. $185.00

2410-1/2 East Washington Ave
Parcel #33N3180028000
Mario/Lesa Stubblefield

Lot 10, Block 41

Choctaw Addition

Amt. $185.00

6109 Whitby Street
Parcel #33N0390016300
Derek Glover

Lot 31, Block 7
Bradford Place Addition
Amt. $185.00

202 North Cornish Street
Parcell #33N03150009600
Michael Allen Sears

Lot 12, Block 32

East Argenta Annex

Amt. $185.00

425 West 21* Street
Parcel #33N2540002500
Darrick D. Lipscomb
Lot 17, Block 2

Rose Hill Addition

Amt. $185.00

1212 West 18" Street
Parcel #33N2530000900
Tina Pesina/Raquel Ochoa
Lot 3, Block 2

Maloney Addition

Amt. $185.00

1515 Orange Street
Parcel #33N2110025900
James Hatchett

Lot 11, Block 31

North Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

1101 West 23" Street
Parcel #33N2450001800
Danny Jones

Lot 1, Block 3

Coor’s Addition

Amt. $185.00

1508 Chandler Street
Parcel #33N2570013700
Bessie Sharp

Lot 11, Block 9

Holts Industrial Addition
Amt. $185.00

1609 West Long 17" Street
Parcel #33N2520007300
Charles Anderson

Lot 10, Block 7

Laskers Addition

Amt. $185.00

2024 Schaer Street
Parcel #33N2560005000
Daisie Whiteside

Lot 1, Block 7

Schaers Addition

Amt. $185.00

1909 West 16™ Street
Parcel #33N2640007000
Easy Street Properties LLC
Lot 9, Block 31

Laskers 2™ Addition

Amt. $185.00

408 West 20" Street
Parcel #33N2550005800
Meyer Rentals LL.C

Lot 19, Block 5

College Park N1 Addition
Amt. $185.00

823 West 20™ Street

Parcel #33N2560006000
Gloryland Baptist Church Inc.
Lot 12, Block 7

Schaers Addition

Amt. $185.00





2013 Schaer Street
Parcel #33N2560006900

Gloryland Baptist Church Inc.

Lot 10, Block 6
Schaers Addition
Amt. $185.00

5110 Chandler Street
Parcel #33N070001500
Pam Charton

Lot 12, Block 1
Simpson’s Addition
Amt. $185.00

505 Latona Lane

Parcel #33N0090012900
Louise S. Ferguson

Lot 15, Block 8
Tanglewood Addition
Amt. $185.00

6217 Navajo Trail

Parcel #33N0140131300
Charles /Jennifer Brouillette
Lot 8, Block 13

Indian Hills Addition

Amt. $185.00

202 North Cornish Street
Parcel #33N3150009600
Michael Allen Sears

Lot 12, Block 32

East Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

1307 North Olive Street
Parcel #33N2890108200
Lot 9, Block 8

Davis Addition

Amt. $185.00

326 Johnson Street

Parcel #33N3170000300
Aquila Jones

Lot 2, Block 1

Washington Avenue Addition
Amt. $185.00

328 North Johnson Street
Parcel #33N3170000200
James C. Wilson

Lot 1, Block 1

Washington Avenue Addition
Amt. $185.00

1413 Sycamore

Parcel #33N2110035100
JB Moser

Lot 10, Block 40

North Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

1901 Schaer

Parcel #33N2560007900
Brian Patrick Johnston
Lot 12, Block 9

Schaers Addition

Amt. $185.00

220 College Park Drive
Parcel #33N2550006700

J Martin Property Mgmt. LLC
Lot 8, Block 6

College Park N1 Addition
Amt. $185.00

209 College Park Drive
Parcel #33N2550008900
Octavid C. Guerrero

Lot 16, Block 7

College Park N1 Addition
Amt. $185.00

205 College Park Circle
Parcel #33N2550008800
Eurydice S. Stanley

Lot 15, Block 7

College Park N1 Addition
Amt. $185.00

1900 Augusta Street
Parcel #33N2510001700
Sedric Davenport

Lot 7, Block 2

Harts Addition

Amt. $185.00

1104 North E Street
Parcel #23N0460011000
Michael A. Garrett/
Vincent S. Ray

Lot 15, Block 5

Dixie Addition

Amt. $185.00

308 East 18" Street

Parcel 33N2190002900

Hi-Five Properties

Lot 4, Block 4

Humphrey & Baldwin Addition
Amt. $185.00

1920 North Poplar Street
Parcel #33N2110050900
God Is Love Church

Lot 12, Block 60

North Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00

SA Jones & Pine Street
Level 3 Communications
Lot 0, Block 15

Tron Mountain Addition
Amt. $555.00

719 W. 50™ Street
Parcel #33N0380012800
Hi-Five Properties (Paul Heye)

PT S 2 AC OF N 5 AC OF E1/2
SWSE BEG 220' S & 162 1/2'W OF
NE COR OF E1/2 SW SE TH S 110’
W 75' N 110' TH E 75 'TO BEG 15

2N 12W
Amt. $185.00

33N3080016902

308 North Hickory Street
Mark Jackson

Lot 3, Block 18

East Argenta Addition
Amt. $185.00






DIRECTOR

The City of North Little Rock

rIR 701 WEST 20TH STREET
TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114
ORTH LY 501-701-8581 » Fax 501.791.8584
NLRCodeEn‘orcemant @ nonhitl'erock ar.gov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

November 17, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 1718 W. 19"
Lot 6 & W % of 7 Block 1
Walthour & Flake Addition
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Terry Melton L.
North Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

March 14" 2014 officer W. Reese while patrolling the area noticed a property in a bad
state of disrepair. March 20", 2014 Officer Reese made contact with Mr. Melton in
North Little Rock District Court Mr. Melton was issued a citation for Public Nuisance and
Property Maintenance Violations. Court Date April 17", 2014 @1:30pm Terry Melton
had a failure to appear, court date rescheduled for June 19", 2014 @ 1:30pm again Mr.
Melton had a failure to appear.

August 2014 Officer McHenry conducted an exterior inspection of the structure, this
property is a vacant structure that is unsecured with broken windows, tall grass and
trash and debris scattered about the premises. Officer McHenry obtained an
administrative search warrant for the purpose of an interior inspection. Interior
inspection showed which appeared to be vagrants living in the structure. The structure
has been vandalized and is considered to be unfit for human habitation

September 2014 after several attempts to make contact with Mr. Melton by mail and
phone Officer F. McHenry started the condemnation procedures due to the condition of
the structure. Owners and/or heirs and all interested parties were given notice of City
Council for the November 24" 2014 Hearing date. Notices were mailed by certified and
regular mail, legal notice ran in the newspaper, and were also posted on the property.

This property is considered to be a public nuisance; North Little Rock Utility account
department show the structure has not had utilities since May 2010. It is the
recommendation of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that this
structure be considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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R-1424 2
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 1718 WEST 19™
STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 6 and West % of Lot 7, Block 1, Walthour & Flake
Addition to the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County,
Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N24900000600 located at 1718
W. 19" Street and owned by Terry Melton.)





SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Mdyor Joe A. Smith:/'?'ﬁ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C. Jas‘or@éner, City Attomep#ﬁe

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

riLED [ [\ LY aMm. P.M
By a/‘l/%i @J& %’k\i g

pATE | |- lﬁ(’ L'/

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BR(\“) VL {Ma_gf
\
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CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

November 17, 2014

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 1718 W. 19"
Lot6 & W V2 of 7 Block 1
Walthour & Flake Addition
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Terry Melton L.
North Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

March 14, 2014 officer W. Reese while patrolling the area noticed a property in a bad
state of disrepair. March 20", 2014 Officer Reese made contact with Mr. Melton in
North Little Rock District Court Mr. Melton was issued a citation for Public Nuisance and
Property Maintenance Violations. Court Date April 17™, 2014 @1:30pm Terry Melton
had a failure to appear, court date rescheduled for June 19", 2014 @ 1:30pm again Mr.
Melton had a failure to appear.

August 2014 Officer McHenry conducted an exterior inspection of the structure, this
property is a vacant structure that is unsecured with broken windows, tall grass and
trash and debris scattered about the premises. Officer McHenry obtained an
administrative search warrant for the purpose of an interior inspection. Interior
inspection showed which appeared to be vagrants living in the structure. The structure
has been vandalized and is considered to be unfit for human habitation

September 2014 after several attempts to make contact with Mr. Melton by mail and
phone Officer F. McHenry started the condemnation procedures due to the condition of
the structure. Owners and/or heirs and all interested parties were given notice of City
Council for the November 24", 2014 Hearing date. Notices were mailed by certified and
regular mail, legal notice ran in the newspaper, and were also posted on the property.

This property is considered to be a public nuisance; North Little Rock Ultility account
department show the structure has not had utilities since May 2010. it is the
recommendation of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that this
structure be considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer





